Agenda ltem 1

CONSTITUTION

OF THE

LONDON BOROUGH

OF

CROYDON

This version of the Constitution was adopted by the Council on 21 May 2012.
It was amended on:

July 2012 and October 2012

January and July 2014

May 2015

January, May and September 2016

January 2017, June 2017 and September 2017

May 2018 and July 2018

May 2018

Page 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Contents

Part 1

Agenda Item 2

CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

Summary and Explanation

Part 2

Articles of the Constitution

Article
Article
Article
Article
Article
Article
Article
Article
Article
Article 10
Article 11
Article 12
Article 13
Article 14

©CoOoO~NOUIA~ WNPEF

Article 15

Article 16

Schedule 1

Part 3

The Constitution

Members

Citizens and the Councll
The Full Council

The Mayor

Scrutiny and Overview
Executive Arrangements
Non Executive Committees
The Ethics Committee
Community Governance
Joint Arrangements

Staff

Decision Making

Finance, Contracts and
Legal Matters

Review and Revision of the
Constitution

Suspension, Interpretation and
Publication of Constitution
Description of Executive
Arrangements

Responsibility for Functions

Part 4

Rules for Procedure

4. A - Council Procedure Rules

4.B - Access to Information Procedure Rules

4.C - Budget and Policy Framework

Procedure Rules

4.D - Executive Procedure Rules

4 E - Scrutiny and Overview

Procedure Rules

4 .F - Non Executive Committee

Procedure Rules

June 2017

Page 3

Page No.s
1/1-5

2/1
2/2-3
2/4-5
2/6-10
2/11-12
2/13-14
2/15-17
2/18-19
2/20
2/21
2/22-24
2/26-29
2/30-32

2/33
2/34
2/35-36

2137

3/1-12

4A /1 - 20
4B/1-21

4C/1-8
4D/1-10

4E/1-10

4F/1-6



Part 6

4.G - Delegation to Executive Directors’ Decision
Making Procedure Rules

4.H - Financial Reqgulations

4.] - Tenders and Contracts Requlations

4.J - Staff Employment Procedure Rules

4.K - Planning and Planning Sub Committee
Procedure Rules

4.L - Rules of Procedure of the Health and Wellbeing

Board
4 M- Local Pension Board Procedure Rules
4 .N- Pension Committee Terms of Reference

Part 5

Protocols and Codes

Protocols - General

5.A — Protocol for Decision Making

5.B — Protocol on Staff-Member Relations
5.C — Monitoring Officer Protocol

Planning
5.D —Planning Code of Good Practice
5.E —Not Used

Licensing

5.F — Protocol for Licensing Hearings

5.G - Protocol for Licensing Hearings Under the
Gambling Act 2005

Other

4G/1-5
4H/1-29
4/1-71
43/1-7
4K /1-14

41/ 1-10

4M/1 - 10
4N/1 -3

5A/1-4
5B/1-4
5C/1-2

5D/1-10

5F/1-15

5G/1-15

5.H —Protocol for Traffic Management Advisory Committee 5H/ 1 -3

Codes
5.1 - Members’ Code of Conduct
Amended January 2017

Schemes
6.A Scheme of Members’ Allowances
6.B  Not used
6.C  Not used
6.0 Scheme of Co-option

June 2017

Page 4

51/1-2

6A/1-7

6D/1-3



Agenda Item 3

CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

PART 1
SUMMARY AND EXPLANATION

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1  Croydon Council (the London Borough of Croydon) has established
decision-making arrangements that comply with the requirements of
the Local Government Act 2000 as amended by the Local Government
and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 and the Localism Act 2011.
They are known as the Executive Leader and Cabinet model.

1.2  This Constitution provides for all the Council’s responsibilities and
functions to be separated between Executive Leader and Council
responsibilities and functions. The Articles (Part 2) of the Constitution
set out the rules and framework which govern the operation of the
Authority, and Parts 3 to 6 of the Constitution provide further details of
the allocation of responsibility for functions; procedure rules, codes and
protocols for specific parts of the decision-making structure. The main
elements of the Council’'s Constitution are summarised below.

2 THE COUNCIL

2.1 Al 70 Members (also referred to as Councillors) are entitled to attend
and take part in meetings of the Full Council. The Council Year begins
in May each year with an Annual Meeting that appoints a new Mayor,
and Deputy Mayor. It also appoints the Leader (for a period of four
years) and makes appointments to Committees, Sub-Committees,
Working Parties and Outside Bodies for that Municipal Year.

2.2  Ordinary Full Council meetings are held on six other occasions during
the Council Year. One of the Ordinary Meetings is to set the Council
Tax. Extraordinary and Special Meetings of the Full Council may also
be convened.

2.3 Only the Full Council meeting may set the Budget for the Authority or
approve the policies, plans and strategies that are specified in the
Council's “Policy Framework”, as defined in Article 4.02 of this
Constitution.

2.4  Certain decision taking functions may be retained by the Full Council or
delegated to a non-executive Committee or to Executive Directors.
Other decision taking functions must be discharged by the Leader or by
the Chief Executive. Part 3 of the Constitution sets out how the
responsibility for functions is allocated to the Leader and Committees.

May2018 Part1/Page 1 of 5
Summary and Explanation

Page 5



2.5

2.6

2.7

3.2

3.3

3.4

At Ordinary Meetings of the Full Council, the Leader and Cabinet:

e Reply to questions from the public (except at the meeting of the
Council at which the Council sets the rate of Council Tax);

e Presenta Report including any recommendations for decision and
replies to Members’ questions on the Report; and

e Reply to questions asked by Members.

Ordinary Full Council Meetings also deal with:

e The formal presentation to the Council of petitions by Members;

e Petitions from Members of the Public for Debate in accordance with
the Part 4A , 3.12 of this Constitution; and

e Motions for Debate.

All meetings of the Council are open to the public and press, unless
they are exempted.

THE LEADER AND CABINET

The Cabinet comprises up to 10 Members including the Leader and
Deputy Leader(s). Details of the responsibilities and functions allocated
by the Leader to the Cabinet as a whole or to individual Cabinet
Members are set out fully in the Leader's Scheme of Delegation. For
the avoidance of doubt, such Cabinet arrangements may include
provisions for job-share portfolios however there may not be more
than 10 acting Members of Cabinet inclusive of the Leader at any one
time and any non-acting job share Cabinet Member may not exercise
any executive functions whilst not Acting Cabinet Member for the
relevant portfolio.

The Leader is responsible, in consultation with others, for shaping the
plans and strategies which form the Council’s Policy Framework and
recommending them to the Council; and for taking decisions on
executive matters within that framework. The Leader gives political
direction to the Chief Executive and Executive Directors in relation to
the way in which services are managed within the budgets allocated to
them. The Leader may establish one or more Cabinet Committees to
exercise specified executive functions.

All meetings of the Cabinet are open to all Members, the public and
press to attend. In the event of there being confidential or exempt
business to discuss in accordance with the Council’s Access to
Information Procedure Rules, that part of the meeting is held in private.
Notice of meetings and availability of papers prior to a meeting shall
also comply with the Council’'s Access to Information Procedure Rules
set out at Part 4 of the Constitution.

“Key Decisions”, shall be published in accordance with the Council’s
Access to Information Procedure Rules set out fully in Part 4B of the
Constitution.

May2018 Part1/Page 2 of 5
Summary and Explanation

Page 6



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

Informal meetings of the Leader and Cabinet Members occur from time
to time. No executive decision can be taken at an informal meeting of
Cabinet Members. These meetings are not subject to the Access to
Information Procedure Rules.

Cabinet Members may publish Bulletins at regular intervals as an
added means of informing non-executive Members, the public and
press of matters of significance but not requiring Cabinet consideration.
Bulletins issued are included in the Leader and Cabinet Questions
agenda item at Ordinary Council and are therefore open to questions.

Chief Executive

Certain matters not reserved to the Council, Leader, Cabinet or a
Cabinet Committee are decided by the Chief Executive acting under
delegated powers.

The Scrutiny and Overview Committee

The Scrutiny and Overview function is part of the Council’s executive
arrangements as required by the law. The Council has one
overarching Scrutiny and Overview Committee encompassing all
scrutiny functions required by Statute. Seats are allocated according to
the rules of proportionality, which provide for the allocation of seats on
committees so that they continue to reflect the overall political
composition of the Council.

The Scrutiny and Overview Committee ensures the efficient and
effective conduct of its responsibilities through the work of a number of
Sub-Committees, and “task and finish” groups.

The Scrutiny and Overview Committee and its Sub-Committees hold
the executive to account, monitor the performance of Council services
and investigate matters affecting the wellbeing of Croydon. In addition
the Scrutiny and Overview function has a statutory duty to scrutinise
Health Services, Community Safety issues and education matters.
They carry out these roles in a number of ways including:

¢ Reviews of services which often cut across organisational
boundaries and roles.

o The scrutiny of Action Plans and Implementation.

e In certain circumstances and in accordance with the Scrutiny and
Overview Procedure Rules at Part 4 of the Constitution, Members
may request the review of an executive key decision taken by the
Cabinet or a Cabinet Member but not yet implemented.

Any Councillor except a Cabinet Member is eligible to be appointed to
the Scrutiny and Overview Committee or any of its Sub-Committees.

May2018 Part1/Page 3 of 5
Summary and Explanation

Page 7



3.12

3.13

3.14

4.1

5.1

6.1

7.

7.1

The Scrutiny and Overview Committee reports annually to the Council.
During the year the Committee and its Sub-Committees may make
recommendations to the Leader and Cabinet and exceptionally direct
to the Council.

Members, the Chief Executive and Executive Directors or other senior
staff are under a duty to attend the Scrutiny and Overview Committee
or Sub-Committee to answer questions. There is a power to co-opt
non-Council members onto the Committee or any Sub-Committee.
There is a statutory requirement to co-opt church and parent-governor
representatives when matters related to the duties of the Council
relating to education functions are considered.

All meetings of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee and its Sub-
Committees are open to the public and press, except where
confidential or exempt information is considered. Confidential or
exempt business is discussed in private in accordance with the
Council's Access to Information Procedure Rules.

NON-EXECUTIVE COMMITTEES

The Full Council has made arrangements to delegate various powers
and duties that are not executive functions to a number of Committees,
Sub-Committees and the Chief Executive for the efficient conduct of
business. These Delegations are set out in ‘Responsibility for
Functions’ contained in Part 3 of the Constitution and the Non-
Executive Committee Procedure Rules at Part 4. As with the Scrutiny
and Overview Committee, seats on the non-executive committees are
allocated between the party groups in proportion to their respective
numbers of Members.

SHADOW CABINET

The Shadow Cabinet comprises the Leader of the Opposition and up to
nine other Members nominated by the largest political Group
represented on the Council having no executive members. Shadow
Cabinet members hold policy portfolios that broadly mirror the portfolios
held by members of the Cabinet. The Shadow Cabinet has no

power to discharge any function of the Authority.

PARTNERSHIPS

The Council continues to develop a wide range of partnerships and
other consultative bodies. These bodies are not part of the Council’s
formal decision making structure but are an important part of informing
the policy process and of collaborative working.

SCHEME OF MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES

The Council has adopted a Scheme of Members’ Allowances in

May2018 Part1/Page 4 of 5
Summary and Explanation

Page 8



7.2

7.3

accordance with the relevant Regulations. This Scheme is set out at
Part 6A of the Constitution.

Members also known as “Councillors” are not employees of the
Council. They have a role description but do not have fixed “hours of
work”. They carry out their duties at all and sundry times.

Some Members are in paid employment elsewhere. Although they are
entitled to reasonable time off without pay for public duties some
employers are very uncooperative and do not willingly allow the
amount of time off required. However, Members have to balance the
need to take time off for Council work and the impression given to their
employer by the amount of time to take off work in order to perform
their public duties.

May2018 Part1/Page 5 of 5
Summary and Explanation

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 4

CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

PART 2
ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION

ARTICLE 1 The Constitution

1.1 The Constitution

This Constitution and all its appendices, is the Constitution of the
London Borough of Croydon, hereinafter referred to as ‘The Authority’.

1.2 Powers of the Authority

The Authority shall exercise all its powers and duties in accordance
with the law and this Constitution.

1.3  Purpose of the Constitution

The purpose of this Constitution is to:

1 enable the Council to provide clear leadership to the community
in partnership with citizens, businesses and other organisations;

2 support the active involvement of citizens in the process of local
authority decision-making;

3 help Members represent their constituents more effectively;
enable decisions to be taken efficiently and effectively;

5 create a powerful and effective means of holding decision—
makers to public account;

6 ensure that no one shall review or scrutinise a decision in which
they were directly involved;

7 ensure that those responsible for decision making are clearly
identifiable to local people and they explain the reasons for
decisions; and

8 provide a means of improving delivery of services to the
community.
1.4 Interpretation and review of the Constitution
The Council shall monitor and evaluate the operation of the
Constitution as set out in Article 15.

May2018
Articles Part 2 / Page 1 of 37

Page 11



CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

ARTICLE 2 Members

2.1 Composition and eligibility

@) Composition. The Council shall comprise 70 Members. With
the exception of the following Wards which shall each return two
Members: Fieldway and New Addington, three Members shall
be elected by the voters of each Ward in accordance with a
scheme drawn up by the Boundary Committee for England and
approved by the Electoral Commission.

(b) Eligibility. Only registered voters of the Borough or those living
or working (as provided by statute) there shall be eligible to hold
the office of Member.

2.2 Election and terms of Members

The regular election of Members shall be held on the first Thursday in
May every four years. The terms of office of Members shall start on the
fourth day after being elected and shall finish on the fourth day after the
date of the next regular election. In the event of a vacancy occurring
between regular elections, a by-election will be held in accordance with
statutory provisions.

2.3 Roles and functions of all Members.

(@) Key roles. All Members shall:

() collectively as members of the Council be the ultimate
policy-makers and carry out a number of strategic and
corporate management functions;

(i) represent their communities and bring their views into the
Council’s decision-making process, i.e. become an
advocate of and for their communities;

(i)  deal with individual casework and act as an advocate for
constituents in resolving particular concerns or
grievances;

(iv)  balance different interests identified within their Ward and
represent the Ward as a whole;

(V) be involved in decision taking and/or the scrutiny function;
(vi)  be available to represent the Council on other bodies; and

(vii)  maintain the highest standards of conduct and ethics.

May2018
Articles Part 2 / Page 2 of 37

Page 12



(b) Rights and Duties

()

(if)

(i)

2.4 Conduct

Members shall have such rights of access to such
documents, information, land and buildings of the Council
as are necessary for the proper discharge of their
functions and in accordance with the law.

Members shall not make public, information which is
confidential or exempt without the consent of the Council
or divulge information given in confidence to anyone other
than a Member or officer entitled to know it.

For these purposes, “confidential” and “exempt”
information are defined in the Access to Information
Procedure Rules in Part 4B of this Constitution.

Members shall at all times observe the Members’ Code of Conduct
Members and co-opted Members as set out in Part 51 of this

Constitution.

2.5 Allowances

Members shall be entitled to receive allowances in accordance with the
Scheme of Members’ Allowances set out in Part 6A of this Constitution.

May2018
Articles

Part 2 / Page 3 of 37

Page 13



ARTICLE 3

CONSTITUTION OF THE

LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

Citizens and the Council

3.1 Citizens’ Rights

Citizens have the following rights. Their rights to information and to
participate are explained in more detail in the Access to Information
Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution:

(@)

(b)

©

(d)

€)

May2018
Articles

Voting. Citizens on the electoral roll for the Borough have the
right to vote in local, national and European elections in
accordance with statutory provisions.

Petitions. i) Citizens on the electoral roll for the Borough may
sign a petition to request a referendum for an Elected Mayor
form of Constitution. ii) Local People (working, studying or
resident in the Borough) may sign a petition to request particular
actions.

Information. Citizens have the right to:

() attend meetings of the Full Council, its Committees and
Sub Committees, the Cabinet and its Committees except
where confidential or exempt information is likely to be
disclosed and the meeting is therefore held in private;

(i) find out what key decisions shall be taken and when;

(i)  see reports and background papers and any records of
decisions made by the Council, its Committees or Sub
Committees, the Cabinet or its Committees except where
these contain confidential or exempt information;

(iv)  inspect the Council’s accounts and make their views
known to the external auditor; and

(v) inspect the Register of Members’ Interests.

Participation. Citizens have the right to participate at Full

Council meetings through Public Question Time and may be

invited to contribute to investigations by any Committee or Sub

Committee charged with a scrutiny role.

Complaints. Citizens have the right to complain to:

() the Council itself under its complaints schemes;

(i) the Ombudsman after using the Council’s own complaints
scheme;

Part 2 / Page 4 of 37

Page 14



(i)  the Monitoring Officer of the London Borough of Croydon
about an alleged breach of the Members’ Code of
Conduct.

3.2 Citizens’ Responsibilities

Citizens must not be violent, abusive or threatening to Members or staff
and must not wilfully harm things owned by the Council, Members or
staff.

Citizens are encouraged to make conscientious use of their roles as
both voters and members of a wider community. In particular by:

(@ voting at every opportunity;
(b) respecting the expression of differing opinions in public debate;
() promoting tolerance and respect between their fellow citizens; and

(d) individually and collectively seeking information about the
decision-making role of Members and respecting the Authority’s
procedures which give effect to a representative democracy.

May2018
Articles Part 2 / Page 5 of 37

Page 15



CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

ARTICLE 4 The Full Council

4.1 Functions of the Full Council

Unless otherwise delegated to a Committee or Officer the Council shall
exercise the following functions:

(@)

(b)

©

(d)

©)
()

@)

May2018
Articles

adopting and changing the Constitution with the exception of
matters allocated to the Leader (and or Cabinet as appropriate)
and related Procedure Rules and subject to the provisions of
Article 15 in relation to minor and consequential amendments and
of Article 16 in relation to the powers of the Leader and Cabinet
and certain Committees to agree protocols;

defining, approving or adopting the Policy Framework, approving
and adopting the Budget and any application to the Secretary of
State in respect of any Housing Land Transfer;

subject to the special urgency procedure contained in the Access
to Information Procedure Rules in Part 4B of this Constitution,
making decisions about any matter in the discharge of an
executive function which is covered by the Policy Framework or
the Budget where the decision maker is minded to make itin a
manner which would be contrary to the Policy Framework or
contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the Budget if the
procedure for approval in Part 4E has not been complied with;

appointing the Mayor and notes the appointment of the Deputy
Mayor;

appointing and removing the Leader,

agreeing and amending the terms of reference for non-executive
Committees, deciding on their composition and making
appointments to them; [The Council Solicitor is empowered to
make in year appointment to committees after consultation with
party whips];

appointing representatives to outside bodies at the Annual Meeting
[In respect of Executive appointments the Leader and Cabinet or
the Council Solicitor, after consultation with the relevant Cabinet
Member may make appointments to outside bodies as necessary
during the year. In respect of Non-Executive appointments the
General Purposes and Audit Committee or the Council Solicitor
after consultation with the Chair of the General Purposes and Audit
Committee may make appointments to outside bodies as
necessary during the year.];

Part 2 / Page 6 of 37

Page 16



(h)
(i)

0]
K

()

(m)
(n)

(0)

(P)
(@)

adopting an allowances scheme under Article 2.05;

changing the name of the area, conferring the title of Honorary
Alderman or Alderwoman or granting Freedom of the Borough,
conferring the title of Honorary Recorder;

confirming the appointment of the Head of the Paid Service;

Following receipt of a report from Appointments Committee under
the Staff Employment Procedure Rules, to consider disciplinary
action, including dismissal of the Head of Paid Service, Chief
Finance Officer or Monitoring Officer. Before the taking of a vote at
the relevant Council meeting on whether or not to approve such a
dismissal, full Council must take into account, in particular:

(a) any advice, views or recommendations of the Appointments
Committee;

(b) the conclusions of any investigation into the proposed
dismissal; and

(c) any representations from the relevant officer.

making, amending, revoking, re-enacting or adopting bylaws and
promoting or opposing the making of local legislation or Private
Members’ bills and/or Local Acts;

any other non-executive functions which the Council has decided
should be undertaken by itself;

consider reports of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee, together
where necessary with the response of the Leader and Cabinet or
relevant non-executive Committee as appropriate;

approval of a three-year Statement of Principles under section 349
of the Gambling Act 2005 and passing a resolution that no casino
premises licences will be granted by the Authority under section
166 of the Gambling Act 2005;

approve the pay policy statement; and

any other matters which by law must be reserved to the Council.

4.2  Meanings

May2018
Articles

(@) Policy Framework. The policy framework which the Council
has reserved to itself to approve, means the Plans Policies and
Strategies set out in the appendix to this Article.

(b) The Council may add further significant plans and strategies to
the Policy Framework as it sees fit from time to time.

(c) Budget. The Budget includes the allocation of financial
resources to different services and projects, proposed
contingency funds, setting the Council Tax and decisions
relating to the control of the Council’s borrowing requirement,

Part 2 /Page 7 of 37

Page 17



the control of its capital expenditure and the setting of virement
limits.

(d) Housing Land Transfers. To authorise applications under
Section 135 of the Leasehold Reform, Housing and Urban
Development Act 1993 to the Secretary of State to include a
qualifying disposal in the disposals programme or to dispose of
land under Section 32 or 43 of the Housing Act 1985 where the
specific consent of the Secretary of State is required.

4.3 Full Council Meetings
There are four types of Full Council meetings:

(@) the Annual Meeting;

(b) Ordinary Meetings;

(© Extraordinary Meetings; and
(d) Special Meetings.

These meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the Council
Procedure Rules in Part 4A of this Constitution.

4.4 Responsibility for Functions
The Council has set out in Part 3 of this Constitution the responsibilities

for the Council’s functions, which are not the responsibility of the Leader
and Cabinet.

May2018
Articles Part 2 / Page 8 of 37

Page 18



CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

Appendix to Article 4.02

Policy Framework.

1.

2.

3.

8.

9.

Equality Strategy;

Health and Well Being Strategy;

Sustainable Community Strategy;
Community Safety Strategy;

Children and Young Persons Plan;

Initial Local Implementation (Transport) Plan;
Annual Council Budget

Licensing Statement;

Gambling Strategy;

10. The Admission arrangements for Community schools;

11. The plans and strategies for planning, development and conservation in

the Borough comprising the Croydon Plan and other approved and
adopted development plan documents and supplementary planning
documents which make up the Local Development Framework for
Croydon;

12.Plans, Policies and Strategies which together make up the Housing

Strategy;

13. Youth Justice Plan.

14. The Making or revising of a Council Tax Reduction Scheme

May2018
Articles

Part 2 / Page 9 of 37

Page 19



15. Exercise of the power to determine further discounts for certain
dwellings and set higher amount of council tax in respect of long term
empty dwellings under sections 11A and 11B of the LGFA 1992, as

amended

Articles Part 2 / Page 10 of 37
May 2018

Page 20



CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

ARTICLE 5 The Mayor

5.1 Role and functions of the Mayor

A Mayor shall be elected by the Council annually and shall have the

following roles and functions:

(@ The Mayor shall be the ceremonial representative of the Council,
taking precedence on all such occasions.

(b) The Mayor, or in the Mayor’'s absence the Deputy Mayor, shall
chair meetings of the Full Council and in this connection, shall
exercise all the powers and duties described in the Council
Procedure Rules as set out in Part 4 of this Constitution.

The Mayor shall have the following responsibilities:

(c) to uphold and promote the purpose of the Constitution and to
interpret it when necessary;,

(d)  to preside over meetings of the Full Council so that its business
can be carried out efficiently and with regard to the rights of
Members and the interests of the community;

(e to ensure that the Full Council meeting is a forum for the debate
of matters of concern to the local community and, subject to the
arrangements for Scrutiny and Overview set out at Article 6, the
place at which Members who are not Members of the Cabinet or
a Committee Chair are able to hold the Leader and Cabinet and
Committee Chairs to account;

® to promote public involvement in the Council’s activities; and

(9 to attend such civic and ceremonial functions as are appropriate.

5.2  Continuing Membership in Council Election Year

In a year when the term of office of the Mayor spans full Council

elections the Mayor shall, unless he/she resigns or becomes

disqualified, continue in office and remain as a Member of the Council

until his/her successor becomes entitled to act as Mayor

notwithstanding that he/she does not seek or achieve re-election as a

Member.

In a year when the term of office of the Deputy Mayor spans full

Council elections the Deputy Mayor shall, unless he/she resigns or

becomes disqualified, continue in office until his/her successor

May2018
Articles Part 2 / Page 11 of 37

Page 21



becomes entitled to act as Deputy Mayor, but shall not remain as a
Member of the Council unless he/she achieves re-election as a
Member.

5.3 Voting Rights at the Annual Council Meeting

(@) If the person presiding at the Annual Meeting of the Council would
have ceased to be a Member of the Council but for the provision at
5.02 above, he/she shall not be entitled to vote at the Annual
Meeting except in accordance with (b) below.

(b) In the case of an equality of votes, the person presiding at the
meeting shall give a casting vote in addition to any other vote
he/she may have.

May2018
Articles Part 2 / Page 12 of 37

Page 22



CONSTITUTION OF THE LONDON
BOROUGH OF CROYDON

ARTICLE 6 Scrutiny and Overview

6.1

6.2

Terms of reference

The Council shall appoint a Scrutiny and Overview Committee to discharge
the functions conferred by Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000, any
Regulations made under Section 32 of that Act, the Health and Social Care
Act 2001, the Local Government Act 2003, the Police and Justice Act 2006,
National Health Service Act 2006, the Local Government and Public
Involvement in Health Act 2007, the Localism Act 2011 and the Health and
Social Care Act 2012 and any other subsequent legislation. Without prejudice
to this legislation, the terms of reference of the Committee are as set out in
Part 4 of this Constitution.

General Role

The Scrutiny and Overview Committee may:

(@ review or scrutinise decisions made or actions taken in
connection with the discharge of any of the Executive’s or
Council’'s functions;

(b) review and scrutinise the performance of the Council in relation to its
policy objectives, community needs and particular service areas;

(©) in accordance with statute and statutory regulations, review and
scrutinise the work of partner agencies, partnership boards and any
other body providing services to the public;

(d) guestion members of the Cabinet, Committee Chairs, Council Officers
and representatives of partner agencies, partnership boards and any
other body providing public services about decisions and performance,
whether generally in comparison of service plans and targets over a
period of time, or in relation to particular decisions, initiatives or
projects;

(e) make reports or recommendations on matters affecting the area or its
inhabitants;

) guestion and gather evidence from any other person and conduct
research and consultation in the analysis of policy issues and
possible options;

(o)) make reports and recommendations to the Full Council, the Executive
or relevant non-executive Committee, partner agency or Partnership
Board in connection with the discharge of any functions;

Page 23



6.3

(h)

()

0]

)

()

(m)
(n)

discharge the functions relating to petitions as
set out elsewhere in this Constitution;

receive and discharge the Council’s functions in relation to
Health Watch referrals and Councillor Call for Action;

recommend that a key decision made by the Executive but
not yet implemented be reconsidered by the Executive;

appoint such Sub-Committees as may be required in order to
discharge the Scrutiny and Overview role and shall allocate
areas of responsibility to each Sub-Committee, determine the
terms of reference of the Sub-Committees when they are
established, appoint the members to the Sub-Committee,
including any co-optees and co- ordinate the work
programmes of the Sub Committees;

receive the reports and recommendations of its
Sub- Committees;

report annually to the Council on its work;

Establish or join Joint Scrutiny Committees in partnership
with any other authority to scrutinise Executive decisions
taken by Joint Committees established in accordance with
Article 11 of this Constitution.

Application to Scrutiny and Overview Sub-Committees

Article 6.2 shall apply to any Sub-Committees appointed by the
Scrutiny and Overview Committee acting within their respective
delegations with the following exceptions:

Any Scrutiny and Overview Sub-Committees established shall
not be permitted to appoint further members or co-optees onto
the Sub- Committee.

With the exception of reports and recommendations from the
Children & Young People Scrutiny Sub- Committee, Health &
Social Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee and Streets Environment
and Homes Scrutiny Sub Committee, any reports and
recommendations from the Sub- Committees established by
Scrutiny and Overview Committee shall, in the first instance, be
considered by the Scrutiny and Overview Committee, and Scrutiny
and Overview Committee may thereafter take any of the actions
specified in 6.2

If, however, the Council’'s Health Scrutiny functions have been
delegated to a Sub-Committee, any referrals from the Health
Watch shall be considered by that Sub-Committee alone.

Page 24



6.4

Proceedings of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee and
its Sub Committees

The Committee and Sub Committees shall conduct their proceedings in

accordance with the Scrutiny and Overview Procedure Rules set out in
Part 4 of this Constitution.

Page 25



CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

ARTICLE 7 Executive Arrangements

7.1

Role

The Council has allocated to the Leader under the Local Government
Act 2000 and Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act
2007, and any subsequent related legislation, all the powers and duties
of the Authority, other than those reserved to the Council or delegated
to a non-executive Committee or Sub-Committee, or the Chief
Executive of the Council by Statute or this Constitution.

7.2 Form and composition
The Cabinet shall consist of the Leader appointed by Full Council
together with not more than 9 other Members appointed by the Leader
at least one of whom shall be the Statutory Deputy Leader.
7.3 Leader
1. The Leader shall be a Member appointed to the position of
Leader by the Council, normally at the Annual Meeting or at the next
meeting of the Council after a vacancy arises. Except in an election
year when the Leader’s term of office ends on the day of the post
election Annual Council meeting, the Leader shall hold office for four
years or until he/she:
(@) resigns from office; or
(b) is suspended from being a Member under relevant statutory
provisions (although he/she may resume office at the end of the
period of suspension); or
(c)  he/she ceases to be a Member except where the Leader fails to
be returned as a Member following an ordinary election of all
Members when, unless the Leader resigns, he/she is disqualified
or is otherwise removed from office he/she shall continue as
Leader until the day of the Annual Meeting; or
(d) is removed from office by resolution of the Extraordinary Council
meeting (such a resolution may only be moved on 10 working
days’ notice in writing to the Head of the Paid Service of the
Council); or
(e) by resolution of the Council where he/she fails for six months to
attend any meeting of the Cabinet, or any Cabinet Committee or,
acting alone, fails to discharge any functions which are the
responsibility of the Leader then unless the failure was due to
May2018
Articles Part 2 / Page 15 of 37

Page 26



some reason approved by the Council, he/she shall cease to be
a Member of the Council.

a. Where the Annual Council Meeting or any other meeting of
the Council fails to elect a Leader an Extraordinary Meeting
of the Council shall be held within a maximum of ten working
days for the purpose of electing a Leader.

b. Where a meeting of the Council removes a Leader from
office then a new Leader is to be elected at that meeting.

c. Where a Leader resigns then an Extraordinary Meeting of the
Council shall be held within ten working days of the receipt of
the letter of resignation for the purpose of electing a Leader.

3. In the period between the ordinary election of Members and the
appointment of a Leader, if for any reason there is not a Leader in place
then any Executive decisions normally reserved to Members

which need to be taken as a matter of urgency to protect the interest of
the Council or which cannot be delayed until after the appointment of
the Leader shall be taken by the Chief Executive in consultation with
the Leader of the Group with the overall majority of seats following the
election. In the event of there being no Group with an overall majority of
seats the Chief Executive shall consult with all Group Leaders.

4, Where the Leader (“Original Leader”) ceases to be a Leader in
accordance with 7.03.1 (above) the Statutory Deputy Leader shall
exercise the powers of the Leader until a new Leader is appointed by
the Full Council (“New Leader”). The New Leader shall hold the office
for the balance of the remaining term of office of the Original Leader or
until such of the conditions of paragraph 7.03.1 shall apply.

7.4  Statutory Deputy Leader
The Leader shall appoint one Cabinet Member to the position of
Statutory Deputy Leader. The Statutory Deputy Leader shall hold office
for a period determined by the Leader until he/she:
(@) resigns from office;
(b) is suspended from being a Member under relevant statutory
provisions;
() is no longer a Member; or
(d) is removed from office by the Leader.
7.5 Cabinet Members
1. Cabinet Members shall be Members appointed by the Leader to
the position of Cabinet Member with a specific portfolio responsibility
May2018
Articles Part 2 / Page 16 of 37

Page 27



7.6

1.7

7.8

for a period determined by the Leader. Cabinet Members shall hold
office until they:

(@) resign from office;

(b) are suspended from being Members under relevant statutory
provisions;

(©) are no longer Members; or
(d) are removed from office by the Leader.

2. In an election year, the Cabinet Members shall continue to hold
office until the day of the Election.

Cabinet Committees

The Leader may establish one or more Cabinet Committees to exercise
specified delegated executive functions.

Deputies to Cabinet Members

The Leader may appoint one or more Members as Deputies to advise a
Cabinet Member or Members on particular areas within their

portfolio(s). Any such Deputies are not Executive Members and may
not exercise the powers of the Executive or vote on any matter for
decision at a Cabinet or Cabinet Committee meeting. The areas of
responsibility of any Deputies appointed shall be determined and may
be varied by the Leader of the Council.

Proceedings of the Cabinet

Proceedings of the Cabinet shall take place in accordance with the
Executive Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution.

May2018

Articles

Part 2 /Page 17 of 37

Page 28



CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

ARTICLE 8 Non-Executive Committees

8.1 Non-Executive Committees

The Council has established Committees in order to discharge its
functions and has determined to appoint the Committees named below.
Rules of Procedure for these Committees are set out in the Non-
Executive Committee Procedure Rules contained in Part 4 of this

Constitution.

Committee

Appointments Committee

Ethics Committee

General Purposes & Audit Committee

General Purposes & Audit Urgency
Sub- Committee

Page 29

Membership

6 Members + 2
independent voting

co-optees for
specified purposes

6 Members + 2
independent non-
voting co-optees

10 Members + 2
independent non-
voting co-optees

3 Members drawn
from the membership

of the General
Purposes and Audit
Committee



Committee

Health and Wellbeing Board

Licensing Committee

Licensing Sub-Committee (ad hoc)

Mayoralty & Honorary Freedom
Selection Sub- Committee

Pension Board

Page 30

Membership

5 Majority Group
Members (voting) —such
members to include the
Cabinet Member for
Families Health and
Social Care and the
Cabinet Member for
Children, Young People
and Learning

2 Minority Group
Members (voting)
Executive Director
People (non-voting)
Director of Public Health
(non-voting)

CCG Representative
(voting)

Croydon Health Services
NHS Trust Chair (non-
voting)

Healthwatch

(Croydon)
Representative

(voting)

South London &
Maudsley NHS
Foundation Trust
Representative (non-
voting)

Croydon Voluntary
Action Representative
(non-voting)

12 voting members (+
pool of 12 reserve
Members

3 voting members drawn
from Membership of
Licensing Committee

5 Members

Independent non-voting
Chair and 3 Employer
representatives (one to
be a Councillor) & 3
Employee representatives



Pension Committee
Committee
Planning Committee

Planning Sub-Committee

Scrutiny & Overview Committee

Children & Young People Scrutiny Sub-
Committee

Health & Social Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee

Streets Environment and Homes Scrutiny
Sub Committee-

8.2 Delegations

8 Members + 1 voting co
optee and 2 non-voting
co-optees

Membership
10 Members

5 Members drawn from
the membership of the
Planning Committee

6 Members + 1 non-
voting co-optee in respect
of crime & disorder
matters

8 Members + 4 voting
and 1 non-voting co-
optees

6 Members + 1 non-voting co-
optee from Healthwatch
(Croydon)

7 Members

The Council delegations to the above Committees are as set out in
Responsibility for Functions contained in Part 3 of this Constitution.

Page 31



CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

ARTICLE 9 The Ethics Committee

9.1 Ethics Committee
The Council has established an Ethics Committee.
9.2 Composition
(@) The Ethics Committee shall be composed of five Members
(none of whom shall be the Mayor or Leader).
(b) No Cabinet Member appointed to the Committee shall be eligible
to Chair meetings of the Ethics Committee.
(c) Appointed "Independent Persons” shall be entitled to attend and
may vote at meetings of the Ethics Committee, where the
committee is dealing with a specific allegation against a
Member.
9.3 Role and Function
The roles and functions of the Ethics Committee are set out in
Responsibility for Functions contained in Part 3 of this Constitution.
May2018
Articles Part 2 / Page 20 of 37

Page 32



CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

ARTICLE 10 Community Governance

The Council may, at its discretion, create, facilitate or participate in
neighbourhood partnerships, area forums, area committees, focus groups and
service or user based consultative groups as part of its community leadership
role and in order to aid transparent and accountable decision-making. If
invited to do so, the Council may appoint representatives to serve on existing
(and any subsequently established) community forums/partnerships.

May2018
Articles Part 2 / Page 21 of 37

Page 33



CONSTITUTION OF THE

LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

ARTICLE 11 Joint Arrangements

11.1 Arrangements to promote well-being

The Council or the Leader may:

(@)
(b)

©

enter into arrangements or agreements with any person or body;

co-operate with or facilitate or co-ordinate the activities of, any
person or body; and

exercise on behalf of that person or body any functions of that
person or body.

11.2 Joint Arrangements

(@)

(b)

©

(d)

©)

May2018
Articles

The Council may establish joint arrangements with one or more
local authorities and/or their executives to exercise functions
which are not executive functions in any of the participating
authorities, or advise the Council. Such arrangements may
involve the appointment of a joint committee with these other
local authorities.

The Leader may establish joint arrangements with one or more
local authorities to exercise functions which are executive
functions. Such arrangements may involve the appointment of
joint committees with these other local authorities.

Except as set out below, the Leader may only appoint Cabinet
Members to a joint committee and those Members need not
reflect the political composition of the local authority as a whole.

The Leader may appoint Members who are not Cabinet
Members to a joint committee in the following circumstances:

Where the joint committee has functions for only part of the
Borough, and that part is smaller than two-fifths of the Authority
by area or population. In such cases, the Leader may appoint to
the joint committee any Member for a Ward, which is wholly or
partly contained within the area concerned.

The Council or the Leader have established Joint Committees
with terms of reference which are set out in Schedule 1 to this
Article.

Part 2 / Page 22 of 37

Page 34



11.3 Access to Information

(@)

(b)

©

The Access to Information Rules set out in Part 4B of this
Constitution shall apply to any joint committees established
under paragraph 11.02 above unless the Constitution of the joint
committee specifies alternative Access to Information Rules.

If all the members of a joint committee are Executive Members
in each of the participating authorities, then its access to
information regime is the same as that applied under the
Executive Procedure Rules.

If the joint committee contains Members who are not on the
executive of any participating authority then the access to
information rules in Part VI of the Local Government Act 1972
shall apply.

11.4 Delegation to and from other local authorities

(@)
(b)

©

The Council may delegate non-executive functions to another
local authority.

The Leader may delegate executive functions to the executive of
another local authority in certain circumstances.

The decision whether or not to accept such a delegation from
another local authority shall be reserved to the Council meeting.

11.5 Contracting Out

Any contracting out arrangements which are subject to an order under
section 70 of the Deregulation and Contracting Out Act 1994 will
appear at Schedule 2 to this article.

May2018
Articles

Part 2 / Page 23 of 37

Page 35



ARTICLE 11 - SCHEDULE 1
The Bandon Hill Cemetery Joint Committee

The provision and management of the Bandon Hill Cemetery with the London
Borough of Sutton

The Coast to Capital Joint Committee

The Croydon/Lewisham Street Lighting Joint Committee
The joint governance of a street lighting PFI contract.

South London Partnership Joint Committee

The setting and reviewing of objectives for strategic growth, regeneration and
investment with the London Boroughs of Merton, Sutton and Richmond upon
Thames and the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames.

South London Waste Partnership Joint Committee

The joint procurement and management of waste disposal contracts with the
London Boroughs of Merton, Sutton and the Royal Borough of Kingston upon
Thames.

London Councils

The effective coordination and formulation of policy and discharge of functions
and any other related Joint Committees acting on behalf of the constituent
authorities and as set out in the Schedules of the Agreement made under
sections 101 and 102 of the Local Government Act 1972.

The Pensions Collective Investment Vehicle (CIV) Sectoral Joint
Committee

Hosted by London Councils, the joint committee is established under section
102 of the Local Government Act 1972 with a view to pooling pension
investments and with functions necessary for the proper functioning of the
Authorised Contractual Scheme (ACS) Operator(which is the company that
would manage the ACS), including the effective oversight of the ACS
Operator.

May2018
Articles Part 2 / Page 24 of 37

Page 36



ARTICLE 11 - SCHEDULE 2

None

May2018
Articles Part 2 / Page 25 of 37

Page 37



CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

ARTICLE 12 Staff

12.1 Definition

“Staff” includes all persons with a permanent, short term, fixed or temporary
contract with the Authority.

12.2 Management Structure
(@) General. The Authority may engage such staff as it considers
necessary to carry out its functions.
(b) Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance

Officer.

The Council designates the following posts as shown:

Post Designation

Chief Executive Head of Paid Service
Council Solicitor Monitoring Officer
Assistant Chief Executive Chief Finance Officer and
(Corporate Resources and Section 151 Officer
Section 151 Officer)

Resources department

12.3 Functions of the Chief Executive as Head of Paid Service

(@) Discharge of functions by the Council. The Chief Executive
shall report to the Council on the manner in which the discharge
of the Council’s functions is co-ordinated and the staff required
for the discharge of functions.

(b) Restrictions on functions. The Chief Executive may not be the

Monitoring Officer but may hold the post of Chief Finance Officer
if a qualified accountant.

May2018
Articles Part 2 / Page 26 of 37

Page 38



(©)

Consideration of applications for dispensation by Executive
Members in relation to Conflicts of Interest relating to
Executive Decisions in which they are involved. The Chief
Executive, by virtue of the Access to Information Procedure
Rules in Part 4B of the Constitution, is required to consider
applications for a dispensation from Members of the Executive in
relation to an Executive Decision where they are either:
(1) a Member of the executive decision making body
and have a conflict of interest; or
(i) are consulted by a Member taking an Executive
Decision and the Executive Member consulted has
a conflict of interest; or
(i)  are consulted by an officer taking an Executive
Decision and the Executive Member consulted has
a conflict of interest
And grant a note of dispensation if satisfied that it is appropriate
to do so

12.4 Functions of the Monitoring Officer (Council Solicitor)

(@)

(b)

©

(d)

©)

May2018

Articles

Maintaining the Constitution. The Monitoring Officer shall
maintain an up-to-date version of the Constitution including
making such changes as envisaged by paragraph 15.02 and
shall ensure that it is widely available for Members, staff and the
public to consult.

Ensuring lawfulness and fairness of decision-making. After
consulting with the Chief Executive and the Chief Finance
Officer, the Monitoring Officer shall report to the Full Council, or
the Leader in relation to an executive function, if they consider
that any proposal, decision or omission would give rise to
unlawfulness or if any decision or omission would give rise to
unlawful action. Such a report shall have the effect of stopping
the proposal or decision being implemented until the report has
been considered.

Supporting the Ethics Committee. The Monitoring Officer shall
contribute to the promotion and maintenance of high standards
of conduct through provision of support to the Ethics Committee.

Conducting investigations. The Monitoring Officer shall
conduct investigations into matters referred by the Ethics
Committee and make reports and recommendations in respect
of them to the Ethics Committee.

Dispensations where Disclosable pecuniary interests exist:
The Monitoring Officer shall consider applications for a grant of a

dispensation for a Member with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest
in the following circumstances:

Part 2 / Page 27 of 37

Page 39



()

@)

(h)

()

0)

*)

I.  That so many Members of the decision-making
body have disclosable pecuniary interests (DPIs)
in a matter that it would impede the transaction of
the business; or

ii.  That, without a dispensation, no Member of the
Cabinet would be able to participate in
consideration of this matter.

And may refer the dispensation request to the Ethics Committee
to advise on or express a view should the Monitoring Officer
consider it appropriate to do so. Granting dispensations in other
circumstances is a matter reserved to the Ethics Committee.

Proper Officer for Access to Information. The Monitoring
Officer shall ensure that Cabinet and other executive decisions,
together with the reasons for those decisions and relevant officer
reports and background papers are made publicly available as
soon as possible.

Advising whether decisions are within the Budget and
Policy Framework. The Monitoring Officer shall advise whether
decisions of the Council, a Committee, or Sub-Committee, the
Leader, the Cabinet, or Cabinet Committee or an Officer under
their allocated or delegated powers are in accordance with the
budget and policy framework.

Contributing to corporate management. The Monitoring
Officer shall contribute to the corporate management of the
Council, in particular through the provision of professional legal
advice.

Providing advice. The Monitoring Officer shall provide advice
on the scope of powers and authority to take decisions,
maladministration, probity and Policy Framework issues to all
Members.

A Monitoring Officer Protocol is included at Part 5C of this
Constitution.

Restrictions on functions. The Monitoring Officer cannot be
the Chief Finance Officer or the Chief Executive.

12.5 Functions of the Chief Finance Officer

(@)

May2018
Articles

Ensuring lawfulness and financial prudence of decision-
making. After consulting with the Chief Executive and the
Monitoring Officer, the Chief Finance Officer shall report to the
Full Council, or to the Leader (and/or Cabinet as appropriate) in

Part 2 / Page 28 of 37

Page 40



12.6

12.7

12.8

relation to an executive function, and the Council’s external
auditor if they consider that any proposal, decision or course of
action shall involve incurring unlawful expenditure, or is unlawful
and is likely to cause a loss or deficiency or if the Council is
about to enter an item of account unlawfully.

(b) Administration of financial affairs. The Chief Finance Officer
shall have responsibility for the administration of the financial
affairs of the Council.

(© Contributing to corporate management. The Chief Finance
Officer shall contribute to the corporate management of the
Council, in particular through the provision of professional
financial advice.

(d) Providing advice. The Chief Finance Officer shall provide
advice on the scope of powers and authority to take financial
decisions, financial impropriety, probity and budget issues to all
Members and shall support and advise Members and staff in
their respective roles.

(e) Give financial information. The Chief Finance Officer shall
provide financial information to the media, members of the public
and the community.

) Restrictions of Functions. The Chief Finance Officer cannot
be the Monitoring Officer.

Duty to provide sufficient resources to the Monitoring Officer and

Chief Finance Officer

The Council shall provide the Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance

Officer, with such staff, accommodation and other resources as are in

their opinion sufficient to allow their duties to be performed.

Conduct

Staff shall comply with the Staff Code of Conduct and the protocol on
Staff-Member Relations as set out in Part 5B of this Constitution.

Employment
The recruitment, selection and dismissal of staff shall comply with the

Staff Employment Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this
Constitution.

May2018

Articles

Part 2 / Page 29 of 37

Page 41



CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

ARTICLE 13 Decision making

13.1

13.2

Responsibility for decision making

The Authority shall issue and keep up to date a record of the body or individual
that has responsibility on behalf of the Council for particular types of decisions
or decisions relating to particular areas or functions. This record is set out in
Part 3 of this Constitution.

Types of decision

(@)  Various levels of decision making provided for under this
Constitution can be described as follows:

(0 Non-Executive functions: Council - Committees - Sub-
Committees - delegations to the Chief Executive.

(i) Executive functions: The Leader, the Cabinet - Cabinet
Committees - Cabinet Member - delegations to the Chief
Executive.

Whilst specific functions are reserved to the Full Council by statute a purpose of
this Constitution is to encourage delegation of decision making to individual
officers. Where such decisions have been delegated it remains open to the
body or person making the delegation to call back for their own decision, issues
of significance or sensitivity and for the decision maker to refer matters upwards
for determination.

Except where a decision is taken by the Chief Executive on grounds of
urgency, as a matter of principle all Key Decisions shall be taken by the
Leader, or Cabinet at a meeting of the Cabinet or a Cabinet Committee, or by
a Cabinet Member or Chief Officer using powers as specifically delegated.

Decisions which the Council are delegating to Committees are identified in
Article 8 and Part 3, Responsibility for Functions, of this Constitution.

(b) Decisions reserved to the Full Council. Decisions relating to the
functions listed in Article 4.1 shall be made by the Full Council and not
delegated, except to the General Purposes and Audit C ommittee or
the Chief Executive on grounds of urgency and where this is not in
conflict with a statutory provision.

(c) Urgency shall mean a decision that is required where the interests of
the Council are prejudiced if a decision were not to be taken prior to the
next scheduled ordinary meeting of the Full Council. Decisions taken
under this urgency procedure shall be reported to the next Council
meeting. Matters reserved by statute to the Full Council may not be
dealt with under this urgency procedure.

(d) Key Decisions: Subjectlg)dta%pﬂision that a decision taker may only



13.3

13.4

135

13.6

13.7

13.8

13.9

take a decision in accordance with the requirements of the Executive
Procedure Rules and in compliance with the provisions of the Access to
Information Procedure Rules set out, respectively in Part 4 of this
Constitution, a Key Decision is an executive decision which is likely to:

() result in the Council incurring expenditure, or making savings,
of more than £1,000,000 or such smaller sum which the
decision-taker considers is significant having regard to the
Council’s budget for the service or function to which the
decision relates; or

(i) significant in terms of its effects on communities living or
working in an area comprising two or more Wards in the
Borough.

Decision making by the Full Council

Subiject to article 13.8, the Council meeting shall follow the Council Procedure
Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution when considering any matter.

Decision making by the Leader and Cabinet

Subject to article 13.8, the Leader and Cabinet shall follow the Executive
Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution when considering any
matter. No executive decision or Key Decision shall be taken in private unless it
complies with the Access to Information Procedure Rules.

Decision Making by Officers

Subject to article 13.8, Officers shall follow the Decision Making Procedure
Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution when considering any matter.

Decision making by the Scrutiny and Overview Committee

The Scrutiny and Overview Committee and its sub committees shall follow the
Scrutiny and Overview Procedure Rules set out in Part 4E of this Constitution
when considering any matter.

Decision making by other Committees and Sub Committees
established by the Council

Subject to article 13.8 and 13.9, other Council Committees and Sub-
Committees shall follow the Non-Executive Committee Procedure Rules
set out in Part 4 of this Constitution when considering any matter.

Decision making by Council bodies acting as tribunals

The Authority or Members acting as a tribunal or in a quasi-judicial manner in
respect of any person shall follow a proper procedure which accords with the
requirements of natural justice and the right to a fair hearing contained in
Article 6 of the European Convention on Human Rights

Decision making by Health and Wellbeing Board
The Authority has established a Health and Wellbeing Board with functions
and terms of reference as set out in Part 4L. The Health and Wellbeing Board

Page 43



is, save for the following exceptions, to be treated as a Council Committee
and subject to the Non-Executive Procedure Rules as set out in Part 4 of this
Constitution. The exceptions are:

13.9.1

13.9.2

13.9.3

13.9.4

13.9.5

13.9.6

The Health and Wellbeing Board is not permitted to establish or
delegate functions to a Sub-Committee

The Health and Wellbeing Board is not permitted to appoint
additional members or co-opt members onto the Board

The Health and Wellbeing Board is not subject to the Rules on
proportionality or the duty to allocate seats under the provisions
of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989

All Board members who are also elected Members of the
authority, and all statutory members of the Health and Wellbeing
Board, except the Executive Director People and the Director of
Public Health, shall be voting members of the Board. Any non-
statutory members of the Board shall be non-voting members.
The Health and Wellbeing Board may only perform those
functions specifically assigned to it by statute or delegated by this
Constitution

Health and Wellbeing board is not permitted to undertake Health
Scrutiny functions.

Page 44



CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

ARTICLE 14 Finance, contracts and legal matters

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

Financial management

The management of the Council’s financial affairs shall be conducted in
accordance with the Financial Regulations set out in Part 4H of this
Constitution.

Contracts

Every contract which falls within the remit of the Council’s Tenders and
Contracts Regulations must comply with the provisions of those
Regulations, as set out in Part 41 of this Constitution.

Legal proceedings

The Council Solicitor is authorised to institute, defend or participate in
any proceedings or to settle claims where such action is necessary to
give effect to decisions of the Authority, protect the interests of the
Authority, the Borough or some or all of its citizens. Only the Council
Solicitor may authorise the engagement of a lawyer to act for the
Council.

Authentication of documents

Where any document is necessary to any legal procedure or
proceedings on behalf of the Authority, or to give effect to any decision
of the Authority, it shall be signed by the Council Solicitor, or other
person authorised by the Council Solicitor.

The Common Seal of the Council shall be kept in a safe place in the
custody of the Council Solicitor. A decision of the Council, or any part
of it, shall be sufficient authority for sealing any document necessary to
give effect to the decision. The Common Seal shall be affixed to those
documents, which in the opinion of the Council Solicitor should be
sealed. The affixing of the Common Seal shall be attested by the
Council Solicitor, a Deputy Council Solicitor or some other person so
authorised by the Council Solicitor. Where the affixing of the Common
Seal follows a decision of the Council it may instead be attested by the
Mayor and Chief Executive.

May2018

Articles

Part 2 / Page 33 of 37

Page 45



CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

ARTICLE 15 Review and revision of the Constitution

15.1 Dutyto monitor the Constitution

The Council shall monitor and review the operation of the Constitution
to ensure the aims and principles of the Constitution are given full
effect.

15.2 Changes to the Constitution

(@) Subject to paragraph (b) below, changes to this Constitution
shall only be approved by the Full Council after consideration of
written proposals made by the Leader, Cabinet, General
Purposes and Audit Committee or Monitoring Officer and the
submission of a recommendation to a meeting of the Council.
Changes approved by the Council shall take effect from the
conclusion of the meeting at which those changes are agreed
unless the recommendation specifies otherwise.

(b) Provision exists within the remit of the General Purposes and
Audit Committee to approve changes on the grounds of urgency.
The Leader and certain Council Committees are also authorised
to make changes to certain matters included in the Constitution,
for example the establishment of sub-committees, as indicated
in the Constitution. The Council Solicitor is authorised, after
consultation with the Leader or Committee Chair, to make any
necessary amendments to the Constitution consequent on
legislation or a decision of the Council, the Leader, the Cabinet
or a Committee.

(©) Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Resources and Section
151 Officer) Resources Department may agree changes to the
Council’s Financial Regulations in consultation with the Chief
Executive and the Monitoring Officer.

(d) The Council Solicitor shall be empowered to make any changes
to the Constitution which arise as a result of legislative changes
and any changes necessitated by administrative convenience.

(e) The Head of Paid Service is empowered to make any changes
to the job titles and/or descriptions of Officers within the
Constitution as necessitated by changes to these
titles/descriptions.

May2018
Articles Part 2 / Page 34 of 37

Page 46



CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

ARTICLE 16 Suspension, interpretation and publication of
the Constitution

16.1 Suspension of the Constitution

(@) Limit to Suspension. The articles of this Constitution may not be
suspended. The Rules specified below may be suspended by
the Full Council to the extent permitted within those Rules and
the law:

Council Procedure Rules

(b) Procedure to Suspend. A motion to suspend Council Procedure
Rules shall not be moved without notice unless at least one half
of the total number of Members are present.

16.2 Interpretation

The ruling of the Chair of the Council as to the construction or
application of the Constitution or as to any proceedings of the Council
shall not be challenged at any meeting of the Council. Such
interpretation shall have regard to the purposes of this Constitution
contained in Article 1.

The Council may agree protocols to give guidance on the detailed
operation of any part of the Constitution. In addition the following
bodies may agree protocols in respect of the matters shown:

The Scrutiny and Overview Committee — Scrutiny and Overview
Committee/Sub-Committee Protocols.

General Purposes and Audit Committee — Protocols relating to
the exercise of non-executive functions delegated to the
Committee.

The Planning Committee and Planning Sub-Committee —
Protocols relating to participation at meetings of the Committee,
the conduct of Members in relation to planning matters and other
aspects of the operation of the Committee.

The Licensing Committee — Protocols relating to the licensing
function and the conduct of hearings under the Licensing Act
2003 and Gambling Act 2005.

May2018
Articles Part 2 / Page 35 of 37

Page 47



16.3

May2018
Articles

Any protocol agreed under this Atrticle shall be fully in accordance with
the Articles of the Constitution and shall be included at Part 5 of the
Constitution.

Publication

(@) The Council Solicitor and Monitoring Officer may give a copy of
this Constitution to every Member at an appropriate time.

(b) The Council Solicitor shall ensure that copies of this Constitution
are available for inspection at Bernard Weatherill House, Council
Libraries and any other appropriate locations and can be
purchased by members of the local press and the public on
payment of a reasonable fee. The Constitution shall also be
published on the Council’s website.

Part 2 / Page 36 of 37

Page 48



CONSTITUTION OF THE

LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

SCHEDULE 1

Description of Executive Arrangements

The following parts of this Constitution constitute Executive Arrangements
under the provisions of the Local Government Act 2000 as amended:

Article 6
Article 7
Article 10
Article 11
Article 13
Part 3
Part 4B
Part 4D
Part 4E

OCoOoO~NOUIhWNPE

May2018
Articles

Scrutiny and Overview

The Leader and Cabinet

Community Governance

Joint Arrangements;

Decision Making

Responsibility for Functions.

Access to Information Procedure Rules;
Executive Procedure Rules; and
Scrutiny & Overview Procedure Rules

Part 2 / Page 37 of 37

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



2.1

Agenda Iltem 5

CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

PART 3

RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS

RESPONSIBILITY FOR LOCAL CHOICE FUNCTIONS

The Council has determined that all local choice functions contained in
Schedules 2 and 3 of The Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities)
Regulations (to be known as the Functions Regulations) except approval of non-
executive contracts, are to be Executive functions.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR COUNCIL FUNCTIONS

The Council has delegated the responsibilities and functions to the Committees
and Sub-Committees named below. These Committees may consider and
decide any matter of relevant non-executive business referred to the Committee
by a Sub-Committee, the Chief Executive or an Executive Director.

All Committees have power to create such Sub-Committees as are necessary
for the efficient conduct of their business.

Appointments Committee (Membership 6 + 2 Independent voting Co-optees

for consideration of disciplinary matters as detailed below.)

1. To appoint Executive Directors and the Chief Executive and to such other
senior posts in accordance with the Staff Employment Procedure Rules in
Part 4 of this Constitution

2. The Authority’s Consultation requirements with the staff side

3. Consideration and recommendation to Full Council of the Pay Policy
Statement as required

4, The functions in respect of voting on salary packages upon appointment
and severance packages of staff above such specified threshold as may,
from time to time, be updated by statutory guidance.

5. The function of deciding, in respect of severance packages, whether the

Council wishes to vote on a severance package above the specified
threshold

Page 51



2.2

Consideration of disciplinary action, as defined within the Staff
Employment Procedure Rules in Part 4 of the Constitution, which could
result in dismissal of the Head of Paid Service, the Chief Finance Officer
or the Monitoring Officer. For this purpose, the Appointments Committee
shall include at least one Member of the Cabinet and at least two voting
co-opted Independent Persons when consideration is being given to
dismissal of the Head of Paid Service, the Chief Finance Officer or the
Monitoring Officer. The Appointments Committee shall consider the
matter in accordance with the processes and procedures approved by
Ethics Committee for this purpose from time to time and make a report
and recommendations to full Council for consideration and final
determination. Any such report shall specifically include the Committees
recommendations on appropriate action.

Consideration of suspension of Head of Paid Service, Chief Finance
Officer or Monitoring Officer, including following provisional suspension
by the Chair of the Appointments Committee in accordance with the Staff
Employment Procedure Rules in Part 4 of the Constitution;

Any matter not reserved to the Council or delegated to another
Committee which pertains to a staffing matter and is referred to the
Committee by the Head of Paid Service for consideration

Ethics Committee (Membership 6 + 2 Independent non-voting co-optees)

1.

2.

Supporting the statutory role of the Monitoring Officer.

Receiving reports from the Monitoring Officer on matters of probity and
ethics, and to consider and recommend any necessary revisions of the
Members’ Conduct of Conduct (the Code) to the Council.

Reviewing the operation of the Code and recommending revisions for the
consideration of full Council as necessary.

Monitoring compliance with the Code and granting any dispensations church
and parent governor representatives from requirements relating to interests
set out in the Code.

To comment on the content of guidance and advice to be issued to elected
and non-elected Members.

Agreeing programmes of advice and training for elected, co-opted and non-
elected Members on ethics and probity, and on the Code.

To consider applications for a grant of dispensation in the following
circumstances:

a. That, without the dispensation, the representation of different

political groups on the body transacting the business would be so
upset as to alter the outcome of any vote on the matter.

Page 52



2.3

10.

b. That the authority considers that the dispensation is in the interests
of persons living in the authority’s area.

c. That the authority considers that it is otherwise appropriate to grant
a dispensation.

d. If referred to them for consideration by the Monitoring Officer, to
advise on or express a view on whether a dispensation would be
appropriate in either of the following circumstances:

i.  That so many Members of the decision-making body have
disclosable pecuniary interests (DPIs) in a matter that it
would impede the transaction of the business; or

ii.  That, without a dispensation, no Member of the Cabinet
would be able to participate on this matter.

To agree the processes and procedures for the Appointments Committee for
the consideration of disciplinary action and suspension pursuant to Part 4J
of the Constitution.

To make future invitations for appointment of Independent Persons in
accordance with and for the purposes of the Staff Procedure Rules.

To undertake the role of Hearings Panel in respect of a complaint that a
Member or co-opted Member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct
upon the matter being referred to the Committee by the Monitoring Officer in
accordance with the arrangements adopted by the Council under the
Localism Act 2011.

General Purposes and Audit Committee

(Membership 10 including 2 independent non-voting co-opted Members who may
not be Members or officers of the Council and who are involved only in relation to
Audit Functions)

General Purposes Functions:

1.

Periodic review of the Scheme of Members’ Allowances and approval of
arrangements in respect of the scheme to reimburse costs incurred for
childcare/dependent relative care, travel and subsistence whilst a Member is
on Council business.

Appointments to outside bodies, subsequent to the Annual Council Meeting.
[Note: The Council Solicitor, after consultation with the Chair of the General
Purposes and Audit Committee or (in respect of Executive appointments) the
relevant Cabinet Member, may also make appointments to outside bodies as
necessary during the year.]

Any matter not reserved to the Council or delegated to another Committee
and related to a non-executive function.

Any matter reserved to the Council and a non-executive function, or a matter
reserved to a non-executive committee or sub-committee of the Council

Page 53



which requires, in the Committee's view or on the recommendation of the
Cabinet, the Chief Executive or an Executive Director, action as a matter of
urgency.

Any protocol concerning the exercise of relevant delegated powers of the
Committee.

Audit Functions:

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

1. In exercising its audit functions the Committee’s purpose is to

provide independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk
management framework and the associated control environment,
independent scrutiny of the Council’s financial and non-financial
performance to the extent it affects the Council’s exposure to risk and
weakens the control environment, and to oversee financial reporting.

To consider the effectiveness of the Council's risk management
arrangements, the control environment and associated anti-fraud and anti-
corruption arrangements.

To seek assurances that action is being taken on risk-related issues
identified by auditors and inspectors.

To be satisfied that the Council’s assurance statements, including the
Statement on Internal Control, properly reflect the risk environment and any
actions required to improve it.

To review (but not direct) internal audit’s strategy, plan and monitor
performance and make recommendations as appropriate to Cabinet and/or
Full Council.

To review summary internal audit reports and the main issues arising, and
seek assurance that action has been taken where necessary.

To receive the annual report of the Head of Internal Audit and make
recommendations as appropriate to Cabinet and/or Full Council.

To consider the reports of external audit and inspection agencies and make
recommendations as appropriate to Cabinet and/or Full Council.

To ensure that there are effective relationships between external and internal
audit, inspection agencies and other relevant bodies, and that the value of
the audit process is actively promoted.

To review the financial statements, external auditor's opinion and reports to
Members, and monitor management action in response to the issues raised
by external audit.

To make an annual report to the full Council.

Page 54



General Purposes and Audit Urgency Sub-Committee

(Membership of 3 drawn from the Membership of the General Purposes and
Audit Committee and constituted as and when necessary by the Council
Solicitor)

All of the responsibilities and functions of the General Purposes and Audit
Committee where in the opinion of the Council Solicitor it is necessary for a decision
to be taken before the next meeting of the Committee.

24 Health and Wellbeing Board ( Membership: 5 Majority Group Members (voting)
such members to include the Cabinet Member for Families Health and Social
Care and the Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Learning , 2
Minority Group Members (voting), Executive Director People (nhon-voting),
Director of Public Health (non-voting), CCG Representative (voting), Croydon
University Hospital Chair (non-voting), Healthwatch Representative (voting),
SLAM representative (non-voting), Croydon Voluntary Action representative
(non-voting). The terms of Reference of the Health and Wellbeing Board are set
out in Part 4L

2.5 Licensing Committee (Membership 12. A further 12 Members shall form a
pool of reserve Members for the Committee).

1 All licensing, registration and related functions as set out in Schedule 1
of the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England)
Regulations 2000 as amended and the Licensing Act 2003 (Note:
Applications and other matters under the Licensing Act 2003 shall be
determined in accordance with the schedule of delegations at Annex 2
to the Protocol on Licensing Hearings. Responsibility for hearing and
determining applications where a hearing is required under the
provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 shall be delegated to the
Licensing Sub- Committee).

2 Matters relating to the adoption or review of the Authority’s Licensing
Statement prior to final consideration by the Council as part of the
policy framework.

3 Subject to any matters reserved to the full Council by statute, to
exercise all functions of the Council as Licensing Authority under the
Gambling Act 2005 including the power to set fees under s212 of the
Act. (Note: Responsibility for hearing and determining applications
where a hearing is required under the Gambling Act 2005 shall be
delegated to the Licensing Sub-Committee).

4 To comment on the three year Statement of Principles in respect of the
Authority’s functions under the Gambling Act 2005 prior to its adoption by
the full Council; and to make recommendations to the full Council on all
Licensing functions under both the Gambling Act 2005 and the Licensing
Act 2003 where those functions are reserved to full Council.

5 Health and Safety functions under the relevant statutory provision within
the meaning of Part 1 of the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, to
the extent that those functions are discharged otherwise than in the
Council’s capacity as employer.

Page 55



6 Registration of births, deaths and marriages.

7 To agree any protocol concerning the exercise of relevant
delegated powers.

Licensing Sub-Committee (Membership 3, drawn from the Membership of
the Licensing Committee and constituted as and when necessary by the
Council Solicitor)

Hearing and determining applications when a hearing is required under the
provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling Act 2005.

Hearings will be conducted in accordance with the requirements of the
relevant Act, Regulations issued under the Act, and the Council’s agreed
Protocol for Licensing Hearings.

2.6 Mayoraltyand Honorary Freedom Selection Sub-Committee
(Membership 5)

To make recommendations directly to the Council on the selection of:
@ The Mayor;

(b) Persons that should be admitted to the Roll of Honorary Aldermen and
Alderwomen;

(© Persons or organisations that should be granted Freedom of the
Borough; and

(d) Honorary Recorder.

2.7 Pension Board (Membership 1 Independent non-voting Chair, 3 Employer
representatives (one to be a Councillor) & 3 Employee representatives)

The Pension Board, with an independent non-voting Chair, is formed of three
employer representatives and three representatives of the Pension Fund.

The Board secures the effective and efficient governance and administration of
the Croydon Council Pension Fund.

2.8 Pension Committee (Membership 8, plus 1 Staff Side non-voting co-opted
member and 2 Pensioner Side co-opted Members (1 voting co-opted
member and one non-voting co-opted member). Staff side and Pensioners’
side members are appointed on an annual basis following consultation with
the Staff side and Pensioners of the Pension Fund. Pensioners’ side
members are appointed in keeping with the outcome of an election by ballot
of Pensioners of the Fund, normally for a term of four years. Terms of
Reference are set out at Part 4N. Functions of the Pensions Committee are:

2.8.1. To ensure that the Fund is properly operated in accordance with the
Local Government Pensions Scheme Regulations (“the Regulations”)
all other relevant legislation and best practice as advised by the
Pensions Regulator, including financial, governance and administrative

matters.
Page 56



2.8.2 To adopt Fund specific policies concerning the administration of the Fund,
investing of Fund monies and the management of the Fund’s solvency
level. In addition, the Committee is responsible for compliance with all
financial and regulatory requirements of the Fund.

2.8.3 To discharge its fiduciary responsibility in the best interest of the
Fund, in particular:
a. To set the investment policy and review the performance of the
Fund’s investment managers, pooling operators, scheme
administration, and external advisors;

b. To make arrangements for the triennial actuarial valuation;

C. To determine the Pension Administration Strategy;

d. To approve and monitor compliance of statuary statements and
policies required under the Regulations;

e. To approve the Fund’s Statements of Accounts and annual
report;

f. To ensure that the Council discharges its obligation, as

administrating authority for the local government pension
scheme, to other scheme employers;

g. To make representations to government as appropriate
concerning any proposed changes to the Local Government
Pension Scheme; and

h. To keep these terms of reference under review.

2.9 Planning Committee (Membership: 10. A further 10 councillors shall form a
pool of reserve members for the committee.)

1 To determine applications for planning permission, where the recommendation is
for approval by the Director of Planning and Strategic Transport, and the
development is for:

a) a residential development containing 200 or more new dwellings or,
where the number of dwellings is not given, the site area is 4 hectares
or more; or

b) the erection of a building or buildings with a gross floor space of
10,000 square metres or more or, where the floor space is not given,
the site area is 2 hectares or more; or

C) applications for reserved matters pursuant to outline planning

permission related to the development types specified by l1la) and 1b)

above

2. To determine applications for planning permission (except for the
construction of or a development in relation to a single building with an
existing floorspace of no greater than 300 square metres or a new building
or extension within the curtilage of such a qualifying building) where the
development is for:

a) a residential development containing less than 200 new dwellings or,
where the number of dwellings is not given, the site area is less than 4
hectares; or

b) the erection of a building or buildings with a gross floor space of less than
10,000 square metres or, where the floor space is not given, the site
area is less than 2 hectar%ge 57



where the Committee Consideration Criteria (part 4K of this Constitution) are
met.

Planning Committee will only deal with reserved matters pursuant to outline
planning permission related to development types specified in 2a) and 2b)
above where the Planning Committee have expressly requested (when
determining applications for outline planning permission) for the subsequent
reserved matters to be referred to Planning Committee. This request will be
included in the minutes and specified by way of an informative attached to
the outline planning permission.

Applications for minor material amendments, variations of planning conditions
and non-material amendments submitted under S.73 and S.96A of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 will be determined by officers under delegated
authority in all instances

The confirmation of Directions under Article 4 of the Town and Country
Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995.

Any other application or planning matter referred to the Planning
Committee by the Director of Planning and Strategic Transport acting in
his or her discretion.

Where the Planning Committee determines an item on an agenda:

a) In the event of changes being made to an officer recommendation by
the committee, the task of formalising the wording of those changes,
in accordance with the substantive nature of the committee’s
decision, is delegated to the Director of Planning and Strategic
Transport;

b) the Director of Planning and Strategic Transport has delegated
authority to make changes to the wording of the committee’s decision
(such as to delete, vary or add conditions, informatives, planning
obligations or reasons for the decision) prior to the decision being
actioned, provided that the Director of Planning and Strategic
Transport is satisfied that any such changes could not reasonably be
regarded as deviating from the overall principle of the decision reached
by the committee nor that such change(s) could reasonably have led
to a different decision having been reached by the committee.

Where a report has been placed on the agenda of the Planning Committee but
the meeting fails to start to consider the item prior to its 10pm guillotine, the
determination of that matter shall be automatically delegated to the
Director of Planning and Strategic Transport, unless the meeting determines
otherwise by way of a resolution made prior to the 10pm meeting
deadline and agreed on a two thirds majority.

Page 58



2.10 Planning Sub-Committee (Membership: for each meeting, 5 drawn from the
membership of the Planning Committee).

a)

To determine the following application types:

a. Applications for Planning Permission made under the Town
& Country Planning Act 1990 for the construction of or a
development in relation to a single building with an existing
floorspace of no greater than 300 square or a new building or
extension within the curtilage of such a qualifying building;

b. Applications for Listed Building Consent made under the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990;

c. variations of planning conditions (covering issues such as
variations in hours of use or other related changes in how a use
operates pursuant to previous grants of planning permission)

where the Committee Consideration Criteria (part 4K of this Constitution) are met.

b)

all applications submitted pursuant to the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order, applications for advertisement
consent, determination of reserved matters pursuant to outline planning
permissions, minor material amendments and non-material amendments
submitted under

S.73 and 96A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and
notwithstanding the above, minor residential extensions and alterations
(including boundaries and rear outbuildings) involving less than 20
square metres of additional internal accommodation (gross internal) will
be determined by officers under delegated authority in all instances

Any other application or planning matter referred to the Planning Sub-
Committee by the Director of Planning and Strategic Transport acting
in his or her discretion.

Any other application or planning matter referred to the Planning Sub-
Committee by the Director of Planning and Strategic Transport acting in
his or her discretion.

The Planning Sub-Committee may refer agenda items to Planning
Committee for consideration and determination if they consider it
necessary or appropriate to do so.

Where the Planning Sub-Committee determine an item on an agenda:

a.In the event of changes being made to an officer
recommendation by the committee, the task of formalising the
wording of those changes in accordance with the substantive
nature of the committee’s decision, is delegated to the Director
of Planning and Strategic Transport;

Page 59



b. the Director of Planning and Strategic Transport has delegated
authority to make changes to the wording of the committee’s
decision (such as to delete, vary or add conditions, informatives,
planning obligations or reasons for the decision) prior to the
decision being actioned, provided that the Director of Planning
and Strategic Transport is satisfied that any such changes could
not reasonably be regarded as deviating from the overall
principle of the decision reached by the committee nor that such
change(s) could reasonably have led to a different decision having
been reached by the committee.

7. Where items for consideration and determination by the Planning Sub
Committee have not been considered or have not started to be
considered by 10pm, the determination of those matters shall be
automatically delegated to the Director of Planning and Strategic
Transport.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS

Other than those matters reserved to the Council or delegated to a non- executive
Committee or to the Chief Executive as a non-executive function, all other remaining
functions are allocated as executive functions.

The Leader has power to create Cabinet Committees, agree protocols on matters
relating to the operation of their remit and, between Annual Meetings of the
Council, to make nominations to outside bodies where Executive Members are
required to be appointed.

4 EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

4.1 The following posts shall be Executive Directors for the purposes of this

4.2

Constitution:

Chief Executive

Executive Director of People Executive
Director for Place Executive Director for
Resources

Non-Executive delegations to the Chief Executive

The Chief Executive has delegated to him/her all the powers of the Council other than
those reserved to the Council or to a Non-Executive Committee or Sub-
Committee or allocated to the Leader by Statute or this Constitution. This
delegation is subject to:

4.2.1 such protocols as may be approved by a Committee or Sub-Committee from
time to time and deposited with the Council Solicitor;

4.2.2 all Policies of the Authority;

4.2.3 any consequent expenditure being included in the Council’s
Revenue Budget or approved Capital Programme;

Page 60



4.3

4.2.4

4.2.5

4.2.6

4.2.7

4.2.8

4.2.9

the requirements of the Tenders and Contracts and Financial Regulations;

compliance with any legal requirements and the provisions of any
statutory codes of conduct or statutory guidance;

the approval of the Council Solicitor to the instigation and conduct and
settlement of legal proceedings and to the engagement of any lawyer to act
for the Council;

compliance with any legal requirements and the provisions of any
statutory codes of conduct or statutory guidance;

the approval of the Director of Human Resources to the grading and
conditions of service of staff (other than those based in schools or subject to
the conditions of service of the Chief Officers and Chief Executives J.N.C.);

the approval of the Appointments Committee to the grading and conditions
of service of staff employed subject to the conditions of service of the Chief
Officers and Chief Executives J.N.C.

Executive delegations to the Chief Executive

The Leader’s delegation of Executive functions is contained in Part 6C of
this Constitution.

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



4.A

4.B

4.C

4.D

4.E

4.F

4.G

4.H

4.1

4.

4.K

4.L

4.M

4.N

Agenda Item 6

CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

PART 4

PROCEDURE RULES

Council Procedure Rules

Access to Information Procedure Rules

Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules
Executive Procedure Rules

Scrutiny and Overview Procedure Rules

Non Executive Committee Procedure Rules

Delegations to Executive Directors Decision Making
Procedure Rules

Financial Regulations

Tenders and Contracts Regulations

Staff Employment Procedure Rules

Planning and Planning Sub Committee Procedure Rules

Rules of Procedure of the Croydon Health and Wellbeing
Board

Local Pension Board Procedure Rules

Pension Committee Terms of Reference

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 7

CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

Part 4.A - Council Procedure Rules

1 GENERAL PROCEDURES APPLYING TO ALL FULL COUNCIL MEETINGS

Quorum

1.1 No business shall be considered unless 18 Members are present in the
Chamber or meeting room. If the Chair considers the meeting to be inquorate,
the meeting shall stand deferred for 15 minutes. If after 15 minutes deferment
there is still no quorum then the consideration of any business not transacted
shall be held over to the next ordinary meeting of the Council, unless an
alternative date is fixed by the Chair.

Powers of the Chair

1.2 The Chair shall decide all matters of order, competence, relevancy,
interpretation of Procedure Rules relating to the conduct of the meeting or the
appropriateness of Council Questions. The Chair shall have the power to vary
the order of business so as to give precedence to any Report, Motion or other
matter. The decision of the Chair shall be final.

1.3 A Member may be directed to discontinue speaking if the Chair considers the
Member is being repetitive, tedious or irrelevant, uses unbecoming language, or
is in some other way breaching the order of the meeting. When necessary, the
Chair, having warned the Member shall move that the Member called by name,
leaves the meeting. The motion, if seconded, shall be put immediately to the
vote without further debate and if carried the Member shall leave immediately.
In the event of a general disturbance within the Chamber by Members the Chair
may order an adjournment for up to 15 minutes.

1.4 In the case of a member of the public disrupting the meeting, the Chair may
order the removal of a person or that the public areas be cleared. Re-
admission shall be at the discretion of the Chair.

1.5 Council Members, officers and members of the public are reminded that the use
of mobile electronic devices during the meeting is permitted for the use of wifi
services. You are asked to leave the meeting should you wish to make or
receive a telephone call.

The recording/reporting of meetings using any type of audio or visual

equipment is permitted subject to the proviso that any such
reporting/filming/photography does not become distracting, disruptive or

June2017 Council Part4A/Page 1 of 31
Procedure Rules

Page 65



contrary to the good order or conduct of the meeting. Should any such
reporting/filming/photography become distracting, disruptive or contrary to the
good order or conduct of a meeting, the person/s responsible may be asked by
the Chair to terminate this, regardless of the format in which the
reporting/filming/photography is taking place.

Disclosure of Interests

1.6 Members shall abide by the Members’ Code of Conduct. It is the responsibility
of every Member to declare any disclosable pecuniary interest not already
recorded on their register of interests or subject to a pending notification at the
beginning of the meeting or as soon as the relevant item of business is
reached. These disclosures shall be minuted.

Rules of Debate

1.7 A Member may indicate their desire to speak by standing or by raising their
hand, but shall only speak when called by name by the Chair. When speaking
the Member shall stand, unless unable to do so.

1.8 Members shall when speaking address the Chair and:

1 refer to each other as Mayor, Deputy Mayor, Leader, Cabinet Member,
Chair or Councillor, as the case may be;

2  refrain from using unbecoming language;
3 refrain from comments of a personal nature about another Member;
4  not attribute improper motives to another Member.

1.9 No debate shall be allowed except in relation to a motion or amendment under
consideration. Only one motion or amendment may be considered at a time. A
motion or amendment once moved and seconded may be withdrawn only by
the mover and with the consent of the meeting. No further debate shall take
place on a motion or amendment once it has been withdrawn.

1.10 Every motion or amendment must be moved and seconded and if the Chair
requires, be put in writing for the Chief Executive to read out before it is
debated and put to the meeting. A Member may not move more than one
amendment or motion on the same subject.

1.11 The following procedural motions may be moved without prior notice at the
discretion of the Chair to:

1 appoint the Deputy Mayor or another Member to chair the meeting if the
Mayor is absent;

June2017 Council Part4A/Page 2 of 20
ProcedureRules

Page 66



2 amend the minutes of the previous meeting when these are submitted for
approval, for reasons of accuracy;

3 change the order of business from that printed in the Agenda, other than
where this has already been determined by the Chair;

4  receive reports and decide recommendations presented as part of the
agenda;

5 extend the termination of the meeting by not more than 20 minutes to
enable business set out on the agenda to be transacted,;

6 refer an item of business to the Leader (and/or Cabinet as appropriate) or a
Committee;

7 permit the withdrawal of a motion or a question;

8 suspend specific Procedure Rules for the purpose stated in the Motion
provided that at least one half of the whole Council are present;

9 proceed to the next item of business or put to a vote the matter under
debate;

10 adjourn the debate or the meeting;

11 exclude the public from the meeting under statutory provisions for that
purpose;

12 exclude a Member from further participation in the debate or from the
meeting.

1.12 An amendmentto a motion may be proposed, provided it is seconded and:
1 is not moved whilst another amendment is under discussion;
2 does not have the same intent as one already defeated at the meeting;

3 refers to the subject matter under discussion and does not introduce a new
subject;

4  does not render ineffective the motion under consideration.

1.13 Only in respect of a planning application referred to the Council for decision
may an amendment specify that the application be refused and must in that
event include the proposed grounds for refusal in the amendment.

1.14 A Member may not move a motion to rescind or amend a resolution passed

within the previous six months, nor may a Member move a motion or

June2017 Council Part4A/Page 3 of 20
ProcedureRules

Page 67



1.15

1.16

1.17

1.18

1.19

1.20

1.21

amendment to the same effect as one rejected within the previous six months.
An exception shall be allowed in either case where not less than fifteen
Members sign a notice in support of such a motion in which case an item shall
be placed on the Agenda.

A Member may raise a point of order by declaring “point of order”, in which case
the Chair shall ask the Member speaking to give way. The Chair shall invite the
point of order to be explained by the Member concerned.

A Member may assert a right to be heard immediately on a point of personal
explanation by declaring “point of personal explanation”, in which case the
Chair shall ask the Member speaking to give way. The Chair shall invite the
point of personal explanation to be made by the Member concerned.

Voting

Unless required otherwise by law, all matters shall be decided by a simple
majority. Voting shall in the first instance be by voices saying “Yes” or “No” as
appropriate. The Chair shall declare that either the Yes vote or the No vote is
successful, as the case may be. In the event that the Council introduces
electronic voting, voting may take place electronically.

Where immediately after a vote is taken at a meeting of the Council, if any
Member so requires there shall be recorded in the minutes of the proceedings
of that meeting whether the person cast their vote for or against the question or
whether they abstained from voting.

If the result is unchallenged, the Chair shall declare the result. If the result is
challenged, the Chair shall ask Members to indicate their vote. The method of
voting shall be determined by the Chair.

One Member may rise and ask that a Poll vote be taken and if ten Members
rise in their places in support of the request the Chair shall instruct the Chief
Executive to call each Member by name and record their vote where this voting
takes place orally, or to confirm their vote where this takes place electronically,
with the Chair being called upon to vote last. These provisions are subject to
paragraph 3.37 of this Part 4A.

In the event of an equality of votes on either side, the Chair (including where
this is the Mayor) shall have a second or casting vote and may use their casting
vote even where they have not used their first vote.

2 THE ANNUAL MEETING

2.1 In a year when there is an ordinary election of Members, the Annual Meeting
shall take place within 21 days of the retirement of the outgoing Members. In
any other year, the Council has determined that the Annual Meeting shall take
place in May unless it decides otherwise.

June2017 Council Part4A/Page 4 of 20

ProcedureRules

Page 68



2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

The Council Solicitor, shall prepare and provide lists of appointments to be
made by the Council to the Secretary of each Political Group represented on
the Council prior to the Annual General Meeting of each Political Group, taking
account of the statutory rules of proportionality, where these apply. The
Secretary of each Political Group shall submit a list of the members of the
Group together with nominations for all appointments, as listed, to the Council
Solicitor not less than eight working days prior to the day of the Annual Council
meeting.

The Annual Meeting of the Council shall be reserved for the election of the
Mayor, Deputy Mayor who shall be the Vice Chair of the Council meeting, the
Leader and all other Members holding an Office of Special Responsibility;
appointments to Committees and outside bodies, receiving the Annual Reports
from Committees, including Overview and Scrutiny, which are required to be
presented to full Council and approval of the minutes of the last meeting. No
other business shall be transacted at the Annual Meeting unless in the opinion
of the Mayor or the Monitoring Officer there is business that the Council is
required urgently to consider before the next Ordinary Meeting.

The Mayor shall determine the order of business for the meeting.
Appointment of substitute Members of Committees and Sub-Committees

As well as allocating seats on Committees and Sub-Committees, the Annual
Meeting of the Council will allocate seats for substitute Members.

For all non-Executive Committees, the Council will appoint the same number of
substitutes in respect of each political group as that group holds ordinary seats
on that Committee or Sub-Committee.

Those substitute Members will be required to undertake any mandatory training
required of ordinary Members of those Committees prior to participating in any
meeting of those Committees.

Substitute Members will have all the powers and duties of any ordinary Member
of the Committee but will not be able to exercise any special powers or duties
exercisable by the person they are substituting.

Leader, Cabinet and Shadow Cabinet

The Leader of the Council shall be appointed at the Annual Meeting of the
Council or at an Ordinary or Extraordinary Council Meeting as necessary. The
Leader shall act within the powers allocated to him/her, be a member of the
Cabinet and Chair its meetings.

In addition to the Leader of the Council, the appointment of up to nine other
Members to serve as members of the Cabinet shall also be noted.

June2017 Council Part4A/Page5of 20
ProcedureRules

Page 69



2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

3.1

3.2

3.3

The Leader and up to nine other members of the Cabinet shall compose the
Executive Members of the Council.

Other Political Groups represented on the Council may nominate a Member to
act as their Leader. The Leader of the largest Political Group represented on
the Council having no Executive Members shall be known as the Leader of the
Opposition and shall act as the spokesperson for the Opposition on all matters
of general policy and business.

In addition to the Leader of the Opposition, up to nine other Members of the
largest Political Group having no Executive Members shall be appointed by that
Group and their appointment shall be noted at the Annual Meeting of the
Council or at an Ordinary or Extraordinary Council Meeting as necessary, to
serve as members of the Shadow Cabinet.

One or more members of the Shadow Cabinet may be appointed Opposition
Deputy Leader(s) by that Group. Each Shadow Cabinet Member, except the
Opposition Leader, shall be nominated by their Political Group to act as
Opposition Spokesperson for a portfolio.

COUNCIL MEETINGS

Dates, Time and Frequency of Meetings

Seven meetings of the Council, including the Annual and Council Tax Meetings,
shall be scheduled to be held at the Town Hall, Croydon, on such dates as the
General Purposes and Audit Committee may agree on behalf of the Council
and occasionally as the Mayor shall direct during each Council Year.

Unless the Mayor or the Council determines otherwise Ordinary Council
Meetings and the Council Tax Meeting shall begin at 6.30 p.m. The Annual
Meeting shall begin at 6.30 p.m. or such other time determined by the Mayor or
the General Purposes and Audit Committee. Ordinary Council Meetings shall
conclude by 10.00 p.m. The Council Tax Meeting shall conclude by 9.35 p.m.

In the event that business remains outstanding at the time specified for the
meeting to conclude and the Council does not agree to a motion to extend the
meeting under Procedure Rule 1.11, or if no such motion is moved, the
following Guillotine procedure shall apply:

1) The Chair shall put to the vote without further debate any motion or
amendment currently under discussion;

2) The Chair shall then put to the vote in turn, without further debate, any
further recommendations included in the Leader and Cabinet Business
Report, reports from Committees or other agenda item which remains
outstanding for consideration;

June2017 Council Part4A/Page 6 of 20
ProcedureRules

Page 70



3) Any other outstanding business shall be taken as read,
4) The Chair shall then close the meeting.

3.4 The date and time of any Special or Extraordinary Council Meeting may be
determined by the Mayor or the General Purposes and Audit Committee. On
occasions when a Special or Extraordinary Meeting is on the same date as an
Ordinary Meeting, the Mayor or General Purposes and Audit Committee may
determine the arrangements for a shortened Ordinary Council Meeting.

Order of Business at Ordinary Council Meetings

3.5 The business at an Ordinary Meeting shall be as follows, taken in the sequence
indicated unless otherwise directed by the Chair or agreed following a motion
carried:

1.  Apologies for absence;
2. Minutes of the previous meeting;

3. Disclosures of interests;
4.  Urgent business (if any);

5.  Announcements by the Mayor, the Leader, Head of Paid Service
and/or Returning Officer;

6. The Croydon Debate:
a) Borough Petition Debate;
b) Local Petition Debate.

~

Croydon Question Time:
a) Public Questions from the public gallery;
b) Leader and Cabinet Questions.

8. Member Petitions

9. Maiden Speeches (Only taken as an item at Ordinary Council
meetings following the/an election and permits newly elected
Members to speak for up to three minutes each. No more than 5
maiden speeches shall be taken at any Ordinary Council meeting
and Members who have previously been elected or have been re-
elected shall be ineligible to make a Maiden Speech.)

10. Council Debate Motions;

June2017 Council Part4A/Page 7 of 20
ProcedureRules

Page 71



3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

11. Recommendations of Cabinet or Committees referred to the
Council for decision (if any);

12. Any other relevant business specified in the Agenda, included at
the discretion of the Mayor or required by law (e.g. Section 151,
Monitoring Officer reports);

13. Any exempt or confidential business where the Public are
excluded from the meeting.

Agendas and Minutes

The Council Solicitor shall ensure that an Agenda and Summons for the
meeting is dispatched to Members and available to the public and press in
advance of the meeting.

The Council Solicitor shall ensure that a record is made of the decisions taken
at every meeting of the Council. The minutes shall also include a record of the
Members in attendance, those absent and any apologies received.

The disclosure of any disclosable pecuniary interest shall be recorded in the
minutes of the meeting

Minutes shall be considered for approval at the next meeting and shall be only
open to question as to their accuracy before being signed. Minutes of an
Extraordinary Meeting shall be signed at the next convenient Ordinary Meeting
following the Extraordinary Meeting.

Announcements

Up to 5 minutes shall be available at each Ordinary Council Meeting for
announcements by the Mayor or other Member chairing the meeting; the
Leader; the Head of Paid Service; and/or the Returning Officer, Council
Solicitor, shall be limited to civic and statutory matters. The number and order
of any such announcements shall be at the discretion of the Chair.

The Croydon Debate
The Croydon Debate item shall not be taken at Annual Council or the Council

Tax Meeting. The Croydon Debate item shall, where relevant, comprise the
following matters: Borough Petitions Debate and Local Petitions Debate.

Petitions: General requirements for all Petitions and Croydon Debate
items

3.12.1 Three types of petition may be presented to full Council under the Croydon

Debate item: Borough Petitions; Local Petitions; and Member Petitions each of

June2017 Council Part4A/Page 8 of 20
ProcedureRules

Page 72



which are governed by these Rules and, where relevant, the provisions of the
Council’s Petition Protocol.

3.12.2 Petitions presented to full Council under the Croydon Debate item shall not

include any petitions in respect of which there is a statutory petitions process,
for example Statutory Petitions with regard to changes to Governance
Arrangements for the Council. Statutory Petitions shall be governed in
accordance with their respective statutory processes and are not set out in
these Rules. Nor may they include Petitions presented in response to a
statutory process or associated consultations being undertaken by the Council

3.12.3 Petitions shall not be received or debated by the Council at the Annual or

Council Tax Meeting.

3.12.4 Petitions shall not be received or debated by the Council under the Croydon

Debate Item where they relate to a current planning or licensing matter or any
matter relating to an individual or entity in respect of which that individual or
entity has a right of recourse to a review or right of appeal conferred by or
under any enactment. In addition, the Council shall not receive or debate items
under the Croydon Debate item which pertain to anticipated or ongoing
litigation, conciliation or mediation or any employment or personnel related
disputes. Petitions may address other issues within the direct responsibility of
the Council or where the Council could be reasonably expected to lobby on
behalf of citizens of the Borough.

3.12.5 Petitions may only be submitted for the Croydon Debate item by “Local People”

who appear on the electoral register within the Borough, are a person who lives
and/or works in the area or a child or young person who lives in, or attends a
school or college in, the Borough.

3.12.6 In order to be valid:

a)

b)

Petitions must be materially accurate in respect of the facts upon which the
Petition is based. Petitions which are defamatory, discriminatory or which incite
civil unrest shall not be received or debated by the Council.

A full Copy of any Petition to be submitted to the Council, including the full
Petition wording and any supporting petitioners’ details and signatures,
including the date upon which they have appended their signature to the
Petition, must be delivered to the Council Solicitor or his/her nominee by noon
fifteen (15) clear working days before the Council meeting to which it seeks to
be presented. Any Petition submitted less than fifteen (15) clear working days
before the Council meeting shall, if successfully verified, be presented to the
following Council meeting.

3.12.7 The Council shall be responsible for verifying that the qualifying numbers of

Local People have signed the Petition in question based on the information
provided by the petitioners. If the qualifying number of Local People have

June2017 Council Part4A/Page 9 of 20
ProcedureRules

Page 73



signed the petition, and provided the above requirements for a valid petition are
met, the Petition will be presented to the next available Ordinary Council
meeting.

3.12.8 The subject matter of a Petition which has been debated at Full Council shall
not be the subject of a further Petition to the Council within a period of twelve
months and where a similar or substantially similar matter has been debated by
the Council in the previous six months or is due to be debated within the next
six months the Petition shall not be deemed to be valid.

3.13 Petitions by Members of the Public

3.13.1 Other than Statutory Petitions, which are not dealt with in these Rules,
members of the public may submit two different types of Petition to the Council:
Borough Petitions and Local Petitions.

3.13.2 Only one Borough and one Local Petition debate shall be considered at each
Ordinary Council Meeting. Where two or more Borough or two or more Local
Petitions are received in accordance with these Rules, subject to validation of
the necessary number of signatures, the first Local and the first Borough
petition submitted shall be the petitions that go forward to be received and
debated at the next Ordinary Council Meeting.

3.13.3Where two or more Borough or Local petitions are received, or where a
Borough or Local Petition is received in accordance with these Rules and the
next meeting of Council is the Council Tax Meeting or Annual Meeting, receipt
and debate of any additional Petitions will be dealt with at the next Ordinary
Council Meeting in the order they have been submitted and in accordance with
3.13.2.

3.13.4 At the conclusion of a Borough or Local Petition debate the relevant Cabinet
Member will announce what steps the Council will take in response. These
steps will take into account whether the matter debated relates to an executive
or non-executive function or responsibility of the Council and whether a
decision has or has not yet been taken.

3.13.5 Borough Petitions:
3.13.5 (&) The number of signatures required in order to trigger a Borough Petition
Debate at a Full Council meeting shall be 2000 signatures of Local
People.
3.13.5(b) The rules of debate for a Borough Petition will be as follows:
i. The Lead Petitioner or their representative may address the Council on
the Petition for up to three minutes from the public gallery;

ii. A member from the Majority group may address the Council for up to
three minutes;

June2017 Council Part4A/Page 10 of 20
ProcedureRules

Page 74



Vi,

Vii.

viii.

A member of the Opposition group may address the Council for up to
three minutes;

A second member from the Majority group may address the Council for
up to three minutes;

A second member of the Opposition group may address the Council for
up to three minutes;

The Lead Petitioner or their representative may address the Council for a
further three minutes;

A member from the Majority group may address the Council for a final
response for up to one minute and summarise the next steps to be taken
in the matter.

No further debate shall take place on the Borough Petition thereafter.

3.13.6 Local Petitions

3.13.6(a) The number of signatures required in order to trigger a Local

Petition Debate at a Full Council meeting shall be 1000 signatures
of Local People living, working or studying in the Ward where the
matter which is the subject of the Local Petition arises.

3.13.6(b) The rules of debate for a Local Petition will be as follows:

i. The Lead Petitioner or their representative may address
the Council on the Petition for up to 3 minutes from the public
gallery;

i. A Member of the Majority Group may then speak for up to
three minutes

iii. A Member of the Opposition Group may then speak for up to
three minutes;

iv. A Member of the Majority Group may then make a final
response for up to one minute and summarise the next steps
to be taken in the matter;

V. No further debate shall take place on the Local Petition
thereatfter.

Croydon Question Time

3.14 The Croydon Question Time item shall not be taken at the Annual Council

Meetin

g or at the Council Tax Meeting.

3.15 The Croydon Question Time item shall comprise Leader and Cabinet Questions
and Public Questions at meetings.

Public Questions:

3.16 Public questions can be asked of the Leader or Cabinet Members on issues of
policy at the Meeting as set out within these Rules. Any questions of a purely
factual or of a detailed nature shall be noted and shall receive a written

June2017 Council Part4A/Page 11 of 20

ProcedureRules

Page 75



response within 3 weeks following the meeting. The responses shall be
published on the Council’'s website.

3.17 Questions which relate to a current planning or licensing matter or any matter
relating to an individual or entity in respect of which that individual or entity has
a right of recourse to a review or right of appeal conferred by or under any
enactment shall not be permitted. In addition, questions shall not be received or
responded to where they pertain to anticipated or ongoing litigation, conciliation
or mediation or any employment or personnel related issues or disputes. A
named member of staff shall not be the subject of a question. If necessary, the
Council Solicitor shall provide guidance for members of the public and staff on
the above.

3.18 Public Questions shall only be taken at Ordinary Council meetings and shall be
allocated a total time of 30 minutes. This time frame shall include both the
response by the relevant Cabinet Member or Leader and any supplementary
guestions permitted under Paragraph 3.20.

3.19 The Mayor has absolute discretion to decline to allow any question to be dealt
with under this procedure on the grounds that it addresses matters that would
be inappropriate to consider at the meeting, including where the questions
being asked are repetitive or have already been addressed.

3.20(i) At the Mayor’s discretion, questions shall be dealt with in the following order:
guestions from members of the public present in the public gallery who have
emailed in their questions in advance in accordance with 3.20(ii);questions from
members of the public in the public gallery who did not email their questions in
advance, followed by the Mayor reading out public questions from members of the
public not present in the public gallery but who emailed their questions in advance
in accordance with 3.20 (ii) below. Members of the public seated in the public
gallery may be invited in turn by the Mayor to address the Leader or Cabinet
Member. Members of the public invited to put their questions will also be permitted
to ask a single supplementary question but shall do so only if called upon by the
Mayor to do so as this may be subject to time constraints.

3.20(ii) The Mayor may also accept questions from Members of the Public submitted
by email to the designated email address by 12noon on the Friday prior to an
ordinary Council meeting. The Mayor will put questions received by email to
the relevant Cabinet Member and, where a number of questions are received
on the same subject, the Mayor may put a summary of those questions instead.

Leader and Cabinet Questions:

3.21 This item is to enable Members to ask questions of the Leader and Cabinet on
issues of policy. Any questions of a purely factual or of a detailed nature shall
be noted and shall receive a written response within 3 weeks following the
meeting. The responses shall be published on the Councils  website.
Questions which relate to a current planning or licensing matter or any matter
relating to an individual or entity in respect of which that individual or entity has

June2017 Council Part4A/Page 12 of 20
ProcedureRules

Page 76



3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

3.26

3.27

3.28

3.29

3.30

a right of recourse to a review or right of appeal conferred by or under any
enactment shall not be permitted. In addition, questions shall not be received or
responded to where they pertain to anticipated or ongoing litigation, conciliation
or mediation or any employment or personnel related issues or disputes.

The Leader shall be the first to respond to questions under this item and the
total time allocated to questions by Members to, and responses from the
Leader, shall be 15 minutes. The first two minutes of the Leader's 15 minute
slot may be used by the Leader to make any announcements.

Cabinet Members, divided up into three ‘pools’ of three Members each, shall
thereafter respond to questions by other Members of the Council. The total time
allocated to each ‘pool’ of Cabinet Members shall be 30 minutes. The three
Cabinet Members shall each be permitted to use two minutes of this 30 minute
slot to make announcements.

Representatives of political groups may give advance notice to the Council
Solicitor by 12noon on the Friday preceding an ordinary Council Meeting, the
names of the first two Members of their respective political group that they wish
the Mayor to call to ask a question of each Member of the Cabinet, including the
Leader of the Council. After those Members have been called, the Mayor will
call Members that indicate they have a question, with a presumption of inviting
guestions from as many different Members as possible. Each Member asking a
guestion will also be allowed to ask a supplementary question.

The Leader of the Council and Cabinet Members may submit bulletins to be
included in the Council agenda papers for this item. Bulletins may summarise
the business undertaken by a Cabinet Member since the last ordinary meeting
of the Council.

Petitions Presented by Members

Subject to the provisions set out in Rule 3.12, any Member may formally
present a Member Petition in accordance with the Rules 3.27 — 3.31 below

In order to be valid, a Member Petition shall contain the signatures of at least
100 Local People or 50% of the Local People affected by the subject of the
Petition.

No Member Petitions shall be received at Annual Council or the Council Tax
meeting.

Where more than three Member Petitions are received in accordance with
these Rules, subject to validation of the necessary number of signatures, the
first three Valid Member Petitions submitted shall be the petitions which go
forward to be received at the next Ordinary Council Meeting. The remaining
Petitions shall not automatically be received at the following Ordinary Council
meeting but may be resubmitted by the Member subject to Paragraph 3.12.

The full Petition wording of each of the three Member Petitions to be received

June2017 Council Part4A/Page 13 of 20
ProcedureRules

Page 77



3.31

will be included in the Council agenda. The Member Petitions will be received
but shall not be the subject of a debate or questions at that or a subsequent
Council meeting. Where possible, the Cabinet Member shall provide a

response at the Council meeting at which the Member's Petition is received.
Where a response is not provided at the meeting, a written response shall be
provided within three weeks of the meeting.

A copy of the wording of any Petition to be submitted to the Council must be
delivered to the Council Solicitor, or his/her nominee by noon, seven clear
working days before the Council meeting by the Member who is to formally
presentit to the Council meeting.

The Council Debate Motions;

3.32

3.33

3.34

3.35

3.36

The Leader of the Council and the Leader of the Opposition may each put
forward a single motion for debate at an Ordinary Council meeting on a matter
which they respectively consider as being of importance to the Borough, which
pertains to a matter that is within the direct responsibility of the Council, or
where the Council could reasonably be expected to lobby on behalf of citizens
of the Borough. Despite the provisions of paragraph 1.09 and 1.10 above, no
amendments may be made or proposed to the Council Debate Motion
submitted by either the Leader of the Council or the Leader of the Opposition
under this item.

The subject of such a motion shall not be a current planning or licensing
application or a public petition that has been received and debated by Full
Council within the previous six months or has been received and is to be
debated within the next six months.

The wording of the motion shall be contained on the notice submitted to the
Council Solicitor. Such notices shall be received by the Council Solicitor no
later than noon of the third clear working day prior to the day of the Council
meeting. The names of the Councillors proposing the motion and seconding
the motion are to be submitted by 12noon on the Friday prior to the Council
meeting and a composite list will be circulated to political group leaders.

The time available for Council Debate Motions shall be divided equally between
them subject to each motion having no more than 12 minutes for debate. If the
amount of time available prior to 10.00 p.m. to debate two Motions for Debate is
less than 24 minutes, the Chair shall confirm that the Motions have fallen. In the
event that only one Council Debate Motion is presented to the Council for
debate, if the time available prior to 10.00 p.m. to debate the Motion is less than
12 minutes, the Chair shall confirm that the Motion has fallen.

The proposer of a Motion for Debate shall be allowed to speak for a maximum
of 3 minutes. All other speakers shall be restricted to a maximum of 3 minutes.
There shall be no more than four speakers (including the proposer) called to
speak in respect of each Motion.

June2017 Council Part4A/Page 14 of 20
ProcedureRules

Page 78



3.37

3.38

3.39

3.40

3.41

3.42

3.43

3.44

3.45

3.46

3.47

The proposer of a Motion for Debate shall have no right of reply but, a speaker
from the same Political Group as the proposer shall close the debate and if
necessary, the time limit referred to above shall be extended to enable the speech
to be concluded and the vote taken. Despite the general provisions of paragraph
1.20 above, it shall not be in order for a Motion to become the subject of a poll
vote.

If any Motion is considered to be not in order it shall be submitted to the Mayor
for consideration. If the Mayor considers that the Motion is out of order, the
Member responsible for proposing the Motion shall be informed.

Any Motion, which is listed, if not moved at the meeting shall be deemed to
have fallen.

For the purposes of these rules, a Political Group shall be as defined by statute.

No Motions for Debate shall be submitted or dealt with at the Annual Council
Meeting or at an Ordinary Meeting called for the purposes of setting the Council
Tax.

Annual Report of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee

In accordance with 2.03 the Annual report of the Scrutiny and Overview
Committee shall be received at the Annual Council meeting.

The overall time, which may be devoted to questioning the Annual Report of the
Scrutiny and Overview Committee, shall be not more than 20 minutes. The
Chair of the Committee (or in the absence of the Chair, the Deputy Chair) and
the Chairs of each Sub-Committee shall introduce and answer questions on the
Report. The Chair of the Committee shall have not more than 3 minutes’
speaking time and the Chairs of each Sub-Committee shall each have not more
than 3 minutes’ speaking time to introduce the report.

For the remaining time available, the report will be open to questions. In the
event that any recommendation in the report has not been reached when the
overall time limit has expired, it shall be put immediately to the vote.

Any Member, except the Seconder of the Report, may ask the Chair, Deputy or
Vice Chair, as appropriate, not more than two questions on each paragraph of
the Report.

Annual Reports

In accordance with 2.03 the Annual reports shall be received at the Annual
Council meeting.

The overall time which may be devoted to questioning any Annual Reports shall
be not more than ten minutes per report. The Chair of the relevant Committee
(or in the absence of the Chair, the Vice-Chair) shall introduce and answer

June2017 Council Part4A/Page 15 of 20
ProcedureRules

Page 79



3.48

3.49

3.50

3.51

3.52

3.53

3.54

3.55

3.56

guestions on the report. The Chair of the Committee shall not have more than
3 minutes speaking time to introduce the report.

For the remaining time available, the report will be open to questions. In the
event that any recommendation in the report has not been reached when the
overall time limit has expired, it shall be put immediately to the vote.

Any Member, except the seconder of the report, may ask the Chair or Vice-
Chair (as appropriate) not more than two questions on each paragraph of the
report.

Recommendations from Cabinet and Committees

These rules do not apply to any recommendations contained in the Annual
Report of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee. The Leader or Chair of the
Committee making the recommendation may exercise a right to introduce the
recommendation; in so doing the Leader or Chair of the Committee shall speak
for a maximum of 3 minutes.

The recommendation shall be seconded without any further speakers and if not
deferred for debate shall immediately be put to the vote.

Any Member supported by a seconder, may ask that a recommendation be
deferred for debate and the recommendation shall immediately stand deferred.

In the event that any Cabinet or Committee recommendations have not been
reached when the time Ilimit for the meeting has expired, those
recommendations shall immediately be put to the vote without further debate.

Cabinet and Committee Recommendations Deferred for Debate

No more than one recommendation shall be the subject of debate at any one
time. The Member moving the deferral debate shall indicate in writing to the
Chair their intention by way of the form of any amendment proposed to the
recommendation, or that the recommendation be referred back to the Cabinet
or relevant Committee for further consideration.

The time allowed for consideration of each Cabinet or Committee
recommendation that is the subject of a deferral debate shall not exceed 21
minutes, or 6 speakers in total. The Member moving the amendment or
reference back shall speak for not more than five minutes. The Cabinet
Member or Committee Chair exercising a right of reply shall not speak for more
than four minutes. Up to four other speakers shall be called, including the
Member seconding the motion, each of whom shall not speak for more than
three minutes.

If a Member simply seconds the motion they shall be deemed to have reserved
the right to speak until later in the debate.

June2017 Council Part4A/Page 16 of 20
ProcedureRules

Page 80



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

THE COUNCIL TAXMEETING

The Council Tax shall be discussed annually at a meeting of the Council called
for the purpose of discussing the proposed level of Council Tax, the Budget and
to deal with questions from Members on those matters. There shall be no Public
Questions, Petition Debates or Council Debate Motions. The Mayor shall
exercise discretion as to any other relevant urgent business that shall be
included on the agenda.

The business to be transacted shall include approval of the Minutes of the
previous Council meeting. Unless the Mayor or the Council agrees otherwise,
the meeting will begin at 6.30 p.m. and terminate no later than 9.35 p.m.

1. The business at the Council Tax Meeting shall be as follows, taken in
the sequence indicated unless otherwise directed by the Chair or agreed
following a motion carried:

1. Apologies for absence;

2. Minutes of the previous meeting;
3. Disclosures of interests;

4. Urgent business (if any);

5. Announcements by the Mayor, the Leader, Head of Paid
Service and/or Returning Officer;

6. Council tax and Budget report

¢ Questions to the Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance
incorporating questions on the items contained in the Council Tax
Report ;

e Scrutiny Business report — specific to the Council Tax setting ;

e Council Tax Debate —Vote

Council Tax and Budget report: Questions to Leader and Cabinet Member
for Finance

This report will contain the recommendations to the Cabinet Member for
Finance made by the Cabinet on the Council tax and Budget to Council

This item is to enable Members to ask questions of the Leader and Cabinet for
Finance on a matter related to the Council Tax or draft Budget. Any questions of
a detailed nature regarding a specific budget item shall be noted and shall
receive a written response within 3 weeks following the meeting. The responses
shall be published on the Council’'s website. Questions asked under this item
are also subject to the rules detailed in 3.21 above. In case of doubt, the Mayor
shall decide whether it is appropriate for the matter to be considered at a
Council Tax Meeting and shall disallow any questions considered inappropriate

Page 81



4.5

4.6

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

The Leader shall be the first to respond to questions under this item and the
total time allocated to questions by Members to, and responses from the
Leader, shall be 15 minutes. The first three minutes of the Leader's 15 minute
slot may be used by the Leader to make any announcements. The Cabinet
Member for Finance shall be the second party to respond to questions under this
item and the total time allocated to questions by Members to, and responses from
the Cabinet Member for Finance, shall be 15 minutes. The first three minutes of
the Cabinet Member for Finances’ 15 minute slot may be used by the Cabinet
Member for Finance to make any announcements.

Representatives of political groups can give advance notice to the Council
Solicitor by 12 noon on the Friday preceding the Council Tax Meeting, the
names of the first two Members of their respective political group that they wish
the Mayor to call to ask a question. After those Members have been called,
the Mayor will call Members that indicate they have a question, with a
presumption of inviting questions from as many different Members as possible.
Each Member asking a question will also be allowed to ask a supplementary
guestion.

Business Report of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee

The Business Report of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee shall comprise a
written scrutiny update following the Scrutiny Council Tax meeting with a brief
opportunity for questions to the Chair of the Committee, subject to a time limit of
10 minutes including up to 2 minutes for announcements.

Council Tax Debate

The Leader of the Council or other Cabinet Member in moving the motion for
the Council Budget shall have not more than 10 minutes. The seconder of the
motion shall be deemed to have reserved their right to speak later in the
debate. The Leader of the Opposition shall have not more than 10 minutes to
speak.

Five further Members from each Group shall be called alternately by the Chair
and shall each speak for not more than 3 minutes.

The Chair shall exercise complete discretion in calling any other Member from a
third or other Group or any ungrouped Member to speak for not more than 3
minutes each, before inviting the Leader of the Council or other Cabinet
Member to wind up the debate. The Leader, or other Cabinet Member, in
exercising a right of reply shall be allowed to speak for a maximum of 5 minutes.

At the conclusion of all speeches, the Chair shall immediately put the Council
Tax and budget report recommendations to the vote. Immediately after any
vote is taken at a budget decision meeting of the Council there must be
recorded in the minutes of the proceedings of that meeting the names of the
persons who cast a vote for the decision or against the decision or who
abstained from voting. For these purposes, references to a vote are references
to a vote on any decision related to the making of the calculation or the issuing
of the precept as the case may be. The provisions of this paragraph 4.12 are
not subject to the requirements of paragraph 1.20 above.

Page 82



5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

6.1

6.2

Extraordinary Meetings

Extraordinary Meetings of the Council may be called by the Mayor.

Any five or more Members may submit a requisiton for an Extraordinary
Council Meeting. The requisition shall bear the signatures of the Members and
shall specify the business to be transacted at the meeting. If the Mayor does not
call an Extraordinary Council Meeting within 7 days of receiving a valid
requisition, the Members submitting that requisition may themselves call such a
meeting.

The Mayor shall determine the order of business in respect of any Extraordinary
Meeting.

The business to be transacted may include approval of the Minutes of the
previous Council meeting as the first item and confirmation of the date of the
next meeting as the last item. Unless the Council agrees otherwise, the time
limit for each remaining item of business shall be equal to that for 6 speakers.
The proposer of the item shall be allowed to speak for a maximum of 5 minutes.
The Leader, other Cabinet Member, or Committee Chair exercising a right of
reply shall be allowed to speak for a maximum of 5 minutes. Four other
speakers shall be permitted, each restricted to a maximum of 3 minutes.

At the conclusion of the sixth speaker, the Chair shall immediately put the item
of business to the vote.

SPECIAL MEETINGS

The Council at an Ordinary or Extraordinary Meeting may resolve to hold a
Special Meeting for the purposes of admitting former Members to the Roll of
Honorary Aldermen and Alderwomen, or for the grant of Freedom of the
Borough to any person, organisation or body that meets the criteria approved
by the Council and as set out below:

Honorary Aldermen and Alderwomen

Former Members of the London Borough of Croydon who have rendered
eminent service in their capacity as Member and where a period of 16
years has been served.

Freedom of the Borough

Persons of distinction who have rendered eminent service to Croydon.

The Mayor shall determine the order of business in respect of any Special
Council Meeting.

June 2017 Council Part 4A/Page 19 of 20
ProcedureRules

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8

CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

Part 4.B - Access to Information Procedure Rules

I. Access to information procedure rules: Council, Council non-
executive committees and Scrutiny and Overview Committee

1 SCOPE

These rules apply to all meetings of the Council, the Scrutiny and Overview
Committee and all other non-executive Committees and any non-executive

Sub-Committees which together are referred to hereafter as “non-executive
meetings”.

2 ADDITIONAL RIGHTS TO INFORMATION

These rules do not affect any more specific rights to information contained
elsewhere in the Constitution or the law.

3 RIGHTS TO ATTEND MEETINGS

Members of the public and media may attend all non-executive meetings of
the Council, Committees and Sub-Committees subject only to the exceptions
in these rules.

4. NOTICE OF MEETINGS

The Council Solicitor shall, on behalf of the Authority give at least five clear
working days’ notice of any meeting (unless called at a later time) by posting
details of the meeting at Bernard Weatherill House (8 Mint Walk, Croydon)
and on the Council’s website.

5. ACCESS TO AGENDA AND REPORTS BEFORE THE MEETING

The Council Solicitor shall, on behalf of the Authority, make copies of the
agenda and reports open to the public and press available for inspection at
Bernard Weatherill House, 8 Mint Walk, Croydon at least five clear working
days before the meeting or as soon as available if later. These documents
will also be posted on the Council’s website (www.croydon.gov.uk).

If an item is added to the agenda later, as an item of urgent business at the
direction of the Chair, the Council Solicitor shall make each such report
available to the public and press and open to inspection as soon as the report
is available to Members attending the meeting.

May 2016 Part 4B/ Page 1 of 21
Accessto Information Procedure Rules

Page 85



6 SUPPLY OF COPIES

The Authority shall supply copies of:

(@) any agenda and reports which are open to public inspection;

(b) any background documents identified in the report;

to any person on payment of a charge for postage and any other costs.
7. ACCESS TO MINUTES ETC. AFTER THE MEETING

The Authority shall make available copies of the following for six years after a
meeting listed in paragraph 1 of these rules:

@) the minutes of the meeting, or records of decisions taken together with
reasons, excluding any part of the minutes of proceedings when the
meeting was not open to the public or which disclose exempt or
confidential information;

(b) a summary of the proceedings not open to the public where the
minutes open to inspection would not provide a reasonably fair and
coherent record,;

(c) the agenda for the meeting; and

(d) reports relating to items when the meeting was open to the public.

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS

List of Background Papers

The Lead Officer named at the head of every report shall set out at the end of

every report a list of those documents (under the heading Background

Papers) relating to the subject matter of the report which in their opinion:

@ disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of
the report is based; and

(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report.

The List of Background Papers shall not include published works or those
which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in rule 10 below.

May 2016 Part 4B / Page 2 of 21
Accessto Information Procedure Rules

Page 86



Public Inspection of Background Papers

Every Executive Director shall make arrangements to ensure that documents
referred to in any report written by them or by a member of their staff are
available for inspection for four years after the date of the non-executive
meeting concerned. One copy of each of the background documents listed
shall be retained for this purpose.

9. SUMMARY OF PUBLIC’S RIGHTS

These Rules, as part of the Constitution of the Council, shall be regarded as
the written summary of the public’s rights to attend non-executive meetings
and to inspect and copy documents. These Rules together with the whole
Constitution are available for inspection at Bernard Weatherill House, 8 Mint
Walk, Croydon, and shall be available on the Council’s website
(Www.croydon.gov.uk).

10. EXCLUSION OF ACCESS BY THE PUBLIC TO NON-EXECUTIVE
MEETINGS

Confidential Information — Requirement to Exclude Public

The public must be excluded from non-executive meetings whenever it is
likely in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of
the proceedings that confidential information would be disclosed.

Exempt Information — Discretion to Exclude Public

The public may be excluded from non-executive meetings whenever it is likely
in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the
proceedings that exempt information would be disclosed.

Where the non-executive meeting shall determine any person’s civil rights or
obligations, or adversely affect their possessions, Article 6 of the Human
Rights Act 1998 establishes a presumption that the non-executive meeting
shall be held in public unless a private hearing is necessary for one of the
reasons specified in Article 6.

Meaning of Confidential Information

Confidential information means information given to the Council by a
Government Department on terms which forbid its public disclosure or
information which cannot be publicly disclosed by Court Order.

May 2016 Part 4B / Page 3 of 21
Accessto Information Procedure Rules

Page 87



11

Meaning of Exempt Information

Exempt information means information falling within the categories set out in
Part 1 of Schedule 12a of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) and
as reproduced in Appendix 1 attached to these rules.

Information falling within those categories is not exempt by virtue of that
paragraph if it relates to proposed development for which the Council as local
planning authority can grant itself planning permission under Regulation 3 of
the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992.

Licensing Sub-Committee

At any meeting of a Licensing Sub-Committee convened for the purpose of a
hearing under the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003, the Press and Public
may be excluded at any time to enable the Sub-Committee to deliberate in
private on any matter.

EXCLUSION OF ACCESS BY THE PUBLIC TO REPORTS

If the Monitoring Officer or Council Solicitor thinks fit, the Council may exclude
access by the public to reports which in their opinion relate to items during
which, in accordance with Rule 10, the non-executive meeting is likely not to
be open to the public. Such reports shall be marked “Not for publication”
together with the category of information likely to be disclosed.

II. Access to information procedure rules: Leader, Cabinet and
Cabinet Committees and sub-committees

12

SCOPE

These rules apply to all meetings of the Cabinet, Cabinet Committees and alll
other executive Committees, executive Committees and executive Joint
Committees which together are referred to hereafter as “executive meetings”.

For the purposes of these Rules “executive decision” means a decision made
or to be made by a decision maker in connection with the discharge of a
function which is the responsibility of the executive of a local authority.

A decision is regarded as being “in connection with the discharge of a function
which is the responsibility of the executive” if it is closely connected to the
discharge of the executive function in question and not merely an
administrative action.

For the purposes of these Rules “decision maker” means the decision making
body by which or the individual by whom an executive decision is made.

May 2016 Part 4B / Page 4 of 21
Accessto Information Procedure Rules

Page 88



13 GENERAL PROVISIONS RELATING TO INFORMATION AND REPORTING
OF MEETINGS

13.1 Nothing in these Rules is to be taken to authorise or require the disclosure of
confidential information in breach of the obligation of confidence.

13.2 Nothing in these Rules—

(@) authorises or requires a local authority to disclose to the public or make
available for public inspection any document or part of document if, in
the opinion of the proper officer, that document or part of a document
contains or may contain confidential information; or

(b)  requires a local authority to disclose to the public or make available for
public inspection any document or part of document if, in the opinion of
the proper officer, that document or part of a document contains or is
likely to contain exempt information or the advice of a political adviser
or assistant.

13.3 Where a member of the executive or an officer makes an executive decision
in accordance with executive arrangements, nothing in these Rules—

(@) authorises or requires documents relating to that decision to be
disclosed to the public, or made available for public inspection where,
the documents contain confidential information; or

(b)  requires documents relating to that decision to be disclosed to the
public, or made available for public inspection where the disclosure of
the documents would, in the opinion of the member or officer making
the decision, give rise to the disclosure of exempt information or the
advice of a political adviser or assistant.

13.4 For the purposes of these Rules:
13.4.1 Reporting on proceedings at a meeting means-

(@) Filming, photography, or making an audio recording of the
proceedings at the meeting;

(b) Using any other means for enabling persons not present to see or
hear proceedings at the meeting as it takes place or later; or

(c) Reporting or providing commentary on proceedings at the meeting,
orally or in writing, so that the report or commentary is available to
a person not present, as the meeting takes place or later.

May 2016 Part 4B/ Page 5 of 21
Accessto Information Procedure Rules

Page 89



13.4.2 Whilst the meeting is open to the public, any person attending is
permitted to report the proceedings;

13.4.3 Subject to 13.4.4,

e A person who attends the meeting to report the proceedings
may use any communication methods, including the internet, to
publish, post or otherwise share the results of their reporting
activities; and

e Publication and dissemination of the report may take place at
the time of the meeting or occur after the meeting.

13.4.4 Paragraphs 13.4.1 - 13.4.3 above do not permit the oral reporting or
oral commentary on a meeting as it takes place if the person reporting
or providing the commentary is present at the meeting. In addition, any
reporting is subject to the Chair’'s power to require that any person
terminate their reporting if such reporting is distracting, disruptive or
contrary to the good order or conduct of the meeting.

13.4.4Where the public are excluded from a meeting pursuant to these Rules,
no person may report on the proceedings using methods which can be
used without that person’s presence at the meeting or which enable
persons not present at the meeting to see or hear the proceedings at
the meeting as it takes place or later;

13.5 These rules do not affect any more specific rights to information contained
elsewhere in the Constitution or the law.

14. RIGHTS TO ATTEND EXECUTIVE MEETINGS

Members of the public and media may attend all executive meetings of the
Cabinet and Executive Committees, Sub-Committees and Joint Committees
subject only to the exceptions in these rules.

15 NOTICE OF PUBLIC EXECUTIVE MEETINGS

The Council Solicitor shall, on behalf of the Authority give at least five clear
working days’ notice of any executive meeting (unless called at a later time)
by posting details of the executive meeting at Bernard Weatherill House (8
Mint Walk, Croydon) and on the Council’s website

16 ACCESS TO AGENDA AND REPORTS BEFORE PUBLIC EXECUTIVE
MEETINGS

The Council Solicitor shall, on behalf of the Authority, make copies of the
agenda and reports open to the public and press available for inspection at
Bernard Weatherill House, 8 Mint Walk, Croydon at least five clear working
days before the executive meeting or as soon as available if later. These

May 2016 Part 4B / Page 6 of 21
Accessto Information Procedure Rules

Page 90



documents will also be posted on the Council’s website
(www.croydon.gov.uk).

If an item is added to the agenda later, as an item of urgent business at the
direction of the Chair, the Council Solicitor shall make each such report
available to the public and press and open to inspection as soon as the report
is available to Members attending the executive meeting.

17. NOTICE OF PRIVATE EXECUTIVE MEETINGS

At least twenty eight clear days before a private executive meeting the Council
Solicitor shall, on behalf of the Authority, make available for inspection at
Bernard Weatherill House, 8 Mint Walk, Croydon and on the Council’s website
(www.croydon.gov.uk), a notice of intention to hold a meeting or part thereof in
private and the reasons for doing so.

The Council Solicitor shall, on behalf of the Authority make available for
inspection at Bernard Weatherill House, 8 Mint Walk, Croydon and on the
Council’s website (www.croydon.gov.uk), at least five clear working days
before the date of the private executive meeting, a further notice of its
intention to hold a meeting or part thereof in private. The notice shall include
the reasons for holding the meeting in private, any representations received
about why the meeting should be open to the public and a statement of the
Council’s response to any such representations.

18. URGENT PRIVATE EXECUTIVE MEETINGS

Where the date by which an executive meeting must be held makes
compliance with Rule 17 impractical, the executive meeting may only be held
in private where the decision making body has obtained agreement from:

(@) the Chairman of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee; or

(b) if the Chairman of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee is unable to
act, the Mayor, or

(© if neither the Chairman of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee nor
the Mayor is able to act, the Deputy Mayor

that the meeting is urgent and cannot reasonably be deferred.

As soon as reasonably practicable after agreement has been obtained to hold
a private meeting, the Council Solicitor shall, on behalf of the Authority, make
available for inspection at Bernard Weatherill House, 8 Mint Walk, Croydon,
CRO 1EA and on the Council’s website (www.croydon.gov.uk), a notice setting
out the reasons why the meeting is urgent and cannot reasonably be deferred.

May 2016 Part 4B/ Page 7 of 21
Accessto Information Procedure Rules

Page 91


http://www.croydon.gov.uk/
http://www.croydon.gov.uk/
http://www.croydon.gov.uk/

19. ACCESS TO REPORTS BEFORE PRIVATE EXECUTIVE MEETINGS

Where the Council Solicitor considers that whole or any part of a report relates
to matters during which it is likely the meeting will be a private meeting the
report or part thereof shall not be available for inspection by the public.

Where the whole or any part of a report for a public meeting is not available
for inspection by the public—

(&) every copy of the whole report or of the part of the report, as the case
may be, must be marked “not for publication”; and

(b)  there must be stated on every copy of the whole or the part of the
report—

(1) that it contains confidential information; or

(i) by reference to the descriptions in Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972 the description of exempt information by
virtue of which the decision-making body discharging the
executive function are likely to exclude the public during the item
to which the report relates.

20. RECORD OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS MADE AT EXECUTIVE MEETINGS

As soon as reasonably practicable after any meeting of a decision-making
body at which an executive decision was made, the Council Solicitor must
ensure that a written statement is produced for every executive decision made
which includes the following information —

(@) arecord of the decision including the date it was made;
(b) a record of the reasons for the decision;

(© details of any alternative options considered and rejected by the
decision-making body at the meeting at which the decision was made;

(d) arecord of any conflict of interest relating to the matter decided which
is declared by any member of the decision-making body which made
the decision; and

(e) inrespect of any declared conflict of interest, a note of dispensation
granted by the Head of Paid Service.

May 2016 Part 4B / Page 8 of 21
Accessto Information Procedure Rules

Page 92



21. RECORD OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS MADE BY INDIVIDUAL MEMBERS

As soon as reasonably practicable after an individual Member has made an
executive decision, the Council Solicitor must ensure that a written statement
is produced for that executive decision which includes the following

information —

(@) a record of the decision including the date it was made;

(b) a record of the reasons for the decision;

(c) details of any alternative options considered and rejected by the
Member when making the decision ;

(d) a record of any conflict of interest declared by any Executive Member
who is consulted by the Member which relates to the decision; and

(e) in respect of any declared conflict of interest, a note of dispensation

granted by the Head of Paid Service

22 RECORD OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS MADE BY OFFICERS

As soon as reasonably practicable after an individual officer has made an
executive decision, the Council Solicitor must ensure that a written statement
is produced for that executive decision which includes the following

information —

(@) a record of the decision including the date it was made;

(b) a record of the reasons for the decision;

(c) details of any alternative options considered and rejected by the officer
when making the decision ;

(d) a record of any conflict of interest declared by any Executive Member
who is consulted by the officer which relates to the decision; and

(e) in respect of any declared conflict of interest, a note of dispensation

granted by the Head of Paid Service

23. ACCESS TO MINUTES ETC. AFTER THE EXECUTIVE MEETING

The Authority shall make available copies of the following for six years after
an executive meeting:

May 2016

Part 4B / Page 9 of 21

Accessto Information Procedure Rules

Page 93



(@)  the minutes of the executive meeting, or records of decisions taken
together with reasons, excluding any part of the minutes of proceedings
when the executive meeting was not open to the public or which
disclose exempt or confidential information;

(b) asummary of the proceedings not open to the public where the
minutes open to inspection would not provide a reasonably fair and
coherent record,;

(©) the agenda for the executive meeting; and
(d) reports relating to items when the executive meeting was open to the

public.

24. BACKGROUND PAPERS

24.1 List of Background Papers

The Lead Officer named at the head of every report shall set out at the end of
every report a list of those documents (under the heading Background
Papers) relating to the subject matter of the report which in their opinion:

(@  disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of
the report is based; and

(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and
() does not include published works
The list of Background Papers shall not include published works or those

which disclose exempt information, confidential information or advice of a
political advisor or assistant as defined in Rule 27 below.

24.2 Public Inspection of Background Papers

Every Executive Director shall make arrangements to ensure that any
background papers listed in any report written by them or by a member of
their staff are available for inspection for four years after the date of the
executive decision concerned. One copy of each of the background
documents listed shall be retained for this purpose.

25. SUPPLY OF COPIES

The Authority shall supply copies of:

May 2016 Part 4B / Page 10 of 21
Accessto Information Procedure Rules

Page 94



26.

27

(@) any agenda and reports which are open to public inspection;

(b) any background documents identified in the report which are open to
public inspection;

()  such further statements or particulars as are necessary to indicate the
nature of the items contained in the agenda; and

(d) if the Council Solicitor thinks fit in the case of any item, a copy of any
other document supplied to Members of the Executive in connection
with the item

(e)  Anyrecords prepared in accordance with Rules 20-22 and any reports
considered by the individual Member or officer and relevant to the
decision taken, or where only part of the report is relevant to such
decision, only that part.

to any person on request and payment of a charge for postage, copying or
other necessary charge for transmission. The supply of copies is subject to
the restriction that such supply shall not occur in respect of documentation
which is not open to the public by virtue of containing confidential information,
exempt information or advice of a political advisor or assistance as set out in
Rule 27.

SUMMARY OF PUBLIC’S RIGHTS

These Rules, as part of the Constitution of the Council, shall be regarded as
the written summary of the public’s rights to attend executive meetings and to
inspect, copy and request copy documents. These Rules together with the
whole Constitution are available for inspection at Bernard Weatherill House, 8
Mint Walk, Croydon, and shall be available on the Council’s website
(www.croydon.gov.uk).

EXCLUSION OF ACCESS BY THE PUBLIC TO EXECUTIVE MEETINGS

Confidential Information — Requirement to Exclude Public

The public must be excluded from Executive meetings whenever it is likely in
view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the
proceedings that confidential information would be disclosed.

Meaning of Confidential Information

Confidential information means information given to the Council by a
Government Department on terms (however expressed) which forbid its public

May 2016 Part 4B/ Page 11 of 21
Accessto Information Procedure Rules

Page 95



28.

29

disclosure or information which cannot be publicly disclosed by virtue of a
prohibition by or under any enactment or by a Court Order.

Exempt Information — Requirement to Exclude Public

The public shall be excluded from executive meetings whenever it is likely in
view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the
proceedings that exempt information would be disclosed.

Where the executive meeting shall determine any person’s civil rights or
obligations, or adversely affect their possessions, Article 6 of the Human
Rights Act 1998 establishes a presumption that the executive meeting shall
be held in public unless a private hearing is necessary for one of the reasons
specified in Article 6.

Meaning of Exempt Information

Exempt information means information falling within the categories set out in
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) and
as reproduced in Appendix 1 attached to these rules.

Information falling within those categories is not exempt by virtue of that
paragraph if it relates to proposed development for which the Council as local
planning authority can grant itself planning permission under Regulation 3 of
the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992.

Exclusion to maintain orderly conduct or prevent misbehaviour

The public must be excluded from a meeting during an item of business
whenever a lawful power is used to exclude a member or members of the
public in order to maintain orderly conduct or prevent misbehavior at an
executive meeting.

EXCLUSION OF ACCESS BY THE PUBLIC TO REPORTS

If the Monitoring Officer or Council Solicitor thinks fit, the Council may exclude
access by the public to reports which in their opinion relate to items during
which, in accordance with Rule 27, the executive meeting is likely not to be
open to the public. Such reports shall be marked “Not for publication” together
with a statement that it contains confidential information or if it contains
exempt information, the category of information likely to be disclosed.

KEY DECISION RULES

In these Rules a “key decision” is as defined in Article 13.02 namely an
executive decision, which is likely to—

May 2016 Part 4B/ Page 12 of 21
Accessto Information Procedure Rules

Page 96



(&  result in the Council incurring expenditure, or making
savings, of more than £1,000,000 or such smaller sum which
the decision-taker considers is significant having regard to
the Council’s budget for the service or function to which the
decision relates; or

(b) be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or
working in an area comprising two or more Wards in the
Borough.

Key decision rules apply only in respect of Executive decisions and not to
non-executive decisions.

30 PUBLICITY IN CONNECTION WITH KEY DECISIONS:

30.1 Subject to Rule 31 (General Exception) and Rule 32 (Special Urgency) a Key
Decision may not be taken unless:

@ a notice has been make available for inspection at Bernard Weatherill
House, 8 Mint Walk, Croydon and published on the Council’'s website
(www.croydon.gov.uk) in connection with the matter in question;

(b) at least 28 clear days have elapsed since the publication of the notice;
and

(c) if the decision is to be taken at a executive meeting, notice of the
executive meeting has been given in accordance with Rule 15 (Notice
of executive meetings) and where applicable Rule 17 (Procedures
before private meetings).

30.2 The notice shall contain matters, which shall be the subject of a Key Decision
to be taken by the decision maker in accordance with any agreed Protocol in
the course of the discharge of an executive function and shall state:

(@ that a key decision is to be made on behalf of the relevant local
authority;

(b) the matter in respect of which the decision is to be made;

(©) where the decision maker is an individual, that individual's name, and
title if any and, where the decision maker is a decision-making body, its
name and a list of its members;

(d) the date on which, or the period within which, the decision is to be
made;

May 2016 Part 4B / Page 13 of 21
Accessto Information Procedure Rules

Page 97


http://www.croydon.gov.uk/

30.3

(e) a list of the documents submitted to the decision maker for
consideration in relation to the matter in respect of which the key
decision is to be made;

) the address from which, subject to any prohibition or restriction on their
disclosure, copies of, or extracts from, any document listed is available;

(g that other documents relevant to those matters may be submitted to the
decision maker; and

(h)  the procedure for requesting details of those documents (if any) as they
become available.

Where, in relation to any matter—

(@  the public are to be excluded under Rule 27 from the meeting at which
the matter is to be discussed; or

(b)  documents relating to the decision contain confidential information,
exempt information or advice of a political advisor or assistant,

the notice shall contain particulars of the matter but may not contain any
confidential information, exempt information or particulars of the advice of a
political adviser or assistant.

31 GENERAL EXCEPTION

31.1 Subject to Rule 32 (Special Urgency), where the publication of the intention to
make a key decision under Rule 30 is impracticable, that decision may only be
made where—

(@) the Chairman of Scrutiny and Overview Committee has been informed
of the matter about which the decision is to be made by notice in writing
or where there is no Chairman, each Member of the Scrutiny and
Overview Committee ;

(b)  the Council Solicitor has made available for inspection at Bernard
Weatherill House, 8 Mint Walk Croydon and published on the Council’s
website (www.croydon.gov.uk) a copy of the notice provided in
accordance with Rule 31.1(a) above; and

(c) Five clear working days have elapsed following the day on which the
notice required by Rule 31.1(a) was made available for inspection and
published on the Council’s website.

31.2 As soon as reasonably practicable after Rule 31.1 has been complied with,
the Council Solicitor shall make available for inspection at Bernard Weatherill
May 2016 Part 4B / Page 14 of 21

Accessto Information Procedure Rules

Page 98


http://www.croydon.gov.uk/

32

32.1

32.2

33.

33.1

33.2

House, 8 Mint Walk, Croydon and published on the Council’'s website
(www.croydon.gov.uk) a copy of a notice setting out the reasons why
compliance with Rule 30 are impractical

CASES OF SPECIAL URGENCY

Where the date by which a key decision must be made, makes compliance
with Rule 31 (General Exception) impracticable, the decision may only be
made where the decision maker has obtained agreement from—

(@) the Chairman of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee; or

(b) if there is no such person, or if the Chairman of the Scrutiny and
Overview Committee is unable to act, the Mayor; or

(c) where there is no Chairman of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee or
Mayor, the Deputy Mayor of the Council,

that the making of the decision is urgent and cannot reasonably be deferred.

As soon as reasonably practicable after Rule 32.1 has been complied with
the Council Solicitor shall make available for inspection at Bernard Weatherill
House, 8 Mint Walk, Croydon, CRO 1EA and published on the Council’s
website (www.croydon.gov.uk) a copy of a notice setting out the reasons that
the meeting is urgent and cannot reasonably be deferred

REPORTS TO COUNCIL: WHEN SCRUTINY AND OVERVIEW
COMMITTEE CAN REQUIRE REPORTS

Where an executive decision has been made and—
(@) was not treated as being a key decision; and

(b)  Scrutiny and Overview Committee are of the opinion that the decision
should have been treated as a key decision,

Scrutiny and Overview Committee may require the Leader or executive
decision maker which is responsible for the decision to submit a report to the
Council within such reasonable period as the Committee may specify.

The report must include details of—

(@) the decision and the reasons for the decision;

(b) the decision maker by which the decision was made; and

May 2016 Part 4B / Page 15 of 21
Accessto Information Procedure Rules

Page 99


http://www.croydon.gov.uk/
http://www.croydon.gov.uk/

33.3

33.4

34.

35.

35.1

35.2

(c) if the Leader and/or Cabinet are of the opinion that the decision was not
a key decision, the reasons for that opinion.

The power to require a report rests with the Scrutiny and Overview
Committee who shall raise it by resolution passed at a meeting of the
Committee.

The Leader and/or Cabinet shall submit a report to the next available meeting
of the Council. However, if the next meeting of the Council is within 7 working

days of the resolution of the Committee, then the report may be submitted to
the meeting after that.

REPORTS TO COUNCIL ON USE OF SPECIAL URGENCY

The Leader shall submit to Council, at least one annual report, containing
details of each executive decision taken during the period since the last report
was submitted to Council where the making of the decision was agreed as
urgent in accordance with Rule 32 (Special Urgency)

The report submitted shall include—
(@) particulars of each decision made; and

(b) a summary of the matters in respect of which each decision was made.

ADDITIONAL RIGHTS OF ACCESS TO DOCUMENTS FOR MEMBERS OF
THE COUNCIL

Subject to Rules 35.4 and 35.5. , any document which—

(@) is in the possession or under the control of the Executive of the
Council; and

(b)  contains material relating to any business to be transacted at a public
executive meeting,

shall be available for inspection by any Member of the Council.
Any document which is required by Rule 35.1 to be available for inspection by

any Member of the Council shall be available for such inspection for at least
five clear working days before the executive meeting except that—

May 2016 Part 4B / Page 16 of 21
Accessto Information Procedure Rules

Page 100



(&)  where the executive meeting is convened at shorter notice, such a
document must be available for inspection when the executive meeting
is convened; and

(b)  where an item is added to the agenda at shorter notice, a document
that would be required to be available in relation to that item, shall be
available for inspection when the item is added to the agenda.

35.3 Subject to Rules 35.4 and 35.5 any document which—

(@) isin the possession or under the control of the Executive of the
Council; and

(b)  contains material relating to—
() any business transacted at a private executive meeting;

(i) any decision made by an individual Member in accordance with
executive arrangements; or

(i)  any decision made by an officer in accordance with executive
arrangements,

shall be available for inspection by any Member of Council within 24 hours of
the conclusion of the meeting or where an executive decision is made by an
individual member or an officer, within 24 hours after the decision has been
made.

35.4 |If it appears to the Council Solicitor that any of the information or
documentation referred to in Rules 35.1 or 35.3 discloses confidential
information, exempt information of a description falling within Part 1 of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 or that compliance with
Rules 35.1 or 35.3 in relation to a document or part of a document would
involve the disclosure of advice provided by a political adviser or assistant, the
document or part thereof is not required to be available to Members.

35.5 Notwithstanding Rule 35.4 the document/s shall be available for inspection by
Members if the information is information of a description for the time being
falling within—

(@) paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to the 1972 Act (except to the extent that
the information relates to any terms proposed or to be proposed by or
to the Council in the course of negotiations for a contract); or

(b) paragraph 6 of Schedule 12A to the 1972 Act.

May 2016 Part 4B/ Page 17 of 21
Accessto Information Procedure Rules

Page 101



36. ADDITIONAL RIGHTS OF ACCESS TO DOCUMENTS FOR MEMBERS OF
SCRUTINY AND OVERVIEW COMMITTEES

36.1 Subject to Rule 36.2 a Member of Scrutiny and Overview Committee is
entitled to a copy, no later than 10 clear working days after the Executive receives
the request, of any document which—

(@) is in the possession or under the control of the Executive of the
Council; and

(b)  contains material relating to—
0) any business transacted at an executive meeting;

(in) any decision made by an individual Member in accordance with
executive arrangements; or

(i)  any decision made by an officer in accordance with executive
arrangements,

36.2 No member of Scrutiny and Overview is entitled to a copy—

(@ of any such document or part of a document as contains exempt or
confidential information unless that information is relevant to—

() an action or decision that that member is reviewing or
scrutinising; or

(i) any review contained in any programme of work of such a
committee or sub-committee of such a committee; or

(b) of a document or part of a document containing advice provided by a
political adviser or assistant.

36.3 Where the Executive determines that a Member of Scrutiny and Overview
Committee is not entitled to a copy of a document or part of any such
document for a reason set out Rules 36.1 or 36.2 it must provide Scrutiny and
Overview Committee with a written statement setting out its reasons for that
decision.

May 2016 Part 4B / Page 18 of 21
Accessto Information Procedure Rules

Page 102



Appendix 1
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (as amended)
SCHEDULE 12A
ACCESS TO INFORMATION: EXEMPT INFORMATION
PART 1

DESCRIPTIONS OF EXEMPT INFORMATION: ENGLAND

This appendix to Part 4B of the Constitution is referred to at Rules 10 and 27

1. Information relating to any individual.

2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.

3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information).

4, Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated
consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter
arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or
office holders under, the authority.

5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be
maintained in legal proceedings.

6. Information which reveals that the authority proposes—

(a) to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which
requirements are imposed on a person; or
(b) to make an order or direction under any enactment.

7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the

prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime.
PART 2
QUALIFICATIONS: ENGLAND

8. Information falling within paragraph 3 above is not exempt information by
virtue of that paragraph if it is required to be registered under—

May 2016 Part 4B / Page 19 of 21

Accessto Information Procedure Rules

Page 103



(a) the Companies Act 1985;

(b) the Friendly Societies Act 1974,

(c) the Friendly Societies Act 1992;

(d) the Industrial and Provident Societies Acts 1965 to 1978;
(e) the Building Societies Act 1986; or

(f) the Charities Act 1993.

9. Information is not exempt information if it relates to proposed development for
which the local planning authority may grant itself planning permission
pursuant to regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General
Regulations 1992.

10. Information which—

(a) falls within any of paragraphs 1 to 7 above; and
(b) is not prevented from being exempt by virtue of paragraph 8 or 9 above,

is exempt information if and so long, as in all the circumstances of the case,
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest
in disclosing the information.

PART 3

INTERPRETATION: ENGLAND
11. —(1) In Parts 1 and 2 and this Part of this Schedule—

"employee” means a person employed under a contract of service;

"financial or business affairs" includes contemplated, as well as past or
current, activities;

"labour relations matter" means—
(a) any of the matters specified in paragraphs (a) to (g) of section
218(1) of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act
1992 (matters which may be the subject of a trade dispute, within the
meaning of that Act); or
(b) any dispute about a matter falling within paragraph (a) above;

and for the purposes of this definition the enactments mentioned in paragraph
(a) above, with the necessary modifications, shall apply in relation to office-
holders under the authority as they apply in relation to employees of the
authority;

"office-holder", in relation to the authority, means the holder of any paid office
appointments to which are or may be made or confirmed by the authority or

May 2016 Part 4B / Page 20 of 21
Accessto Information Procedure Rules

Page 104



by any joint board on which the authority is represented or by any person who
holds any such office or is an employee of the authority;

"registered" in relation to information required to be registered under the
Building Societies Act 1986, means recorded in the public file of any building
society (within the meaning of that Act).

(2) Any reference in Parts 1 and 2 and this Part of this Schedule to "the
authority" is a reference to the principal council or, as the case may be, the
committee or sub-committee in relation to whose proceedings or documents
the question whether information is exempt or not falls to be determined and
includes a reference—

(a) in the case of a principal council, to any committee or sub-committee of
the council; and

(b) in the case of a committee, to—
(i) any constituent principal council;

(if) any other principal council by which appointments are made to the
committee or whose functions the committee discharges; and

(iif) any other committee or sub-committee of a principal council falling
within sub-paragraph (i) or (ii) above; and

(c) in the case of a sub-committee, to—

(i) the committee, or any of the committees, of which it is a sub-
committee; and

(i) any principal council which falls within paragraph (b) above in
relation to that committee.

May 2016 Part 4B / Page 21 of 21
Accessto Information Procedure Rules

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

Part 4.C- Budget and Policy Framework Procedure
Rules

1 The framework for executive decisions

The Full Council shall be responsible for the adoption of the Budget and
Policy Framework as set out in Article 4. Once a Budget or a Policy
Framework is in place, it shall be the responsibility of the Leader to implement
it.

2 Process for developing the Policy Framework

(@  The Leader and Cabinet shall publicise the intention to recommend
adoption of any plan, strategy or budget that forms part of the Budget
and Policy Framework, and determine arrangements for consultation,
where appropriate, after publication of the proposals. The Chair of the
Scrutiny and Overview Committee shall also be notified.

(b) It is open to the Scrutiny and Overview Committee to comment on the
policy proposals and the Leader and Cabinet may take any response
from the Scrutiny and Overview Committee into account in drawing up
proposals for submission to the Council.

(c) In reaching a decision, the Council may adopt the Leader and
Cabinet’s proposals, amend them, refer them back to the Leader and
Cabinet for further consideration, or, substitute its own proposals in
their place, subject to the following procedure:

(d) Where the Leader and Cabinet has submitted a draft plan or strategy to
the Council for its consideration and, following consideration of that
draft plan or strategy, the Council has any objections to it, the Council
must take the action set out in paragraph (e) below.

(e) Before the Council -

() amends the draft plan or strategy;

(i) approves, for the purpose of its submission to the Secretary of State
or any Minister of the Crown for his approval, any plan or strategy
(whether or not in the form of a draft) of which any part is required to be
so submitted; or

May 2016 Part4C /Page 1 of 7
Budget & Policy Framework Procedure Rules

Page 107



(f)

(9)

(h)

()

0)

(k)

May 2016

(iif) adopts (with or without modification) the plan or strategy,

it must inform the Leader and Cabinet of any objections which it has to
the draft plan or strategy and must give to them instructions to
reconsider, in the light of those objections, the draft plan or strategy
submitted to it.

Therefore if it accepts the recommendation of the Leader and Cabinet
without amendment, the Council may make a decision, which has
immediate effect. Otherwise, it may only make an in-principle decision.
In either case, the decision shall be made on the basis of a simple
majority of votes cast at the meeting of the Council.

The decision shall be publicised and a copy shall be given to the
Leader and Cabinet.

Where the Council gives instructions in accordance with paragraph (e)
above, it must specify a period of at least five working days beginning
on the day after the date on which the Leader and Cabinet receives the
instructions which they may -

() submit a revision of the draft plan or strategy (the "revised draft plan
or strategy"), with the Leader and Cabinet’s reasons for any
amendments made to the draft plan or strategy, to the Council for the
Council’s consideration; or

(i) inform the Council of any disagreement that the Leader and Cabinet
has with any of the Council’s objections and the reasons for any such
disagreement.

An in-principle decision shall automatically become effective 5 clear
working days from the date of the Council’s decision, or such longer
period which the Council may specify, unless (1) the Leader informs the
Council Solicitor that no objection is to be made, in which case the
decision will be implemented immediately after that notification is
received; or (2) the Leader informs the Council Solicitor in writing
within 5 clear working days that the Leader and Cabinet object to the
decision becoming effective with reasons.

In the case of paragraph (i)(2) above, the Council Solicitor shall call a
Council meeting within a further 5 clear working days. The Council
shall be required to re-consider its decision and the Leader’s written
submission.

When the period specified by the Council, referred to in paragraph (i),
has expired, the Council must, when —

Part4C / Page 2 of 7

Budget & Policy Framework Procedure Rules

Page 108



()

(m)

(n)

() amending the draft plan or strategy or, if there is one, the
revised draft plan or strategy;

(i) approving, for the purpose of its submission to the Secretary of
State or any Minister of the Crown for his approval, any plan or
strategy (whether or not in the form of a draft or revised draft) of
which any part is required to be so submitted; or

(i)  adopting (with or without modification) the plan or strategy,

take into account any amendments made to the draft plan or strategy
that are included in any revised draft plan or strategy, the Leader’s
reasons for those amendments, any disagreement that the Leader has
with any of the Council’s objections and the Leader’s reasons for that
disagreement, which the Leader submitted to the Council, or informed
the Council of, within the period specified.

At the meeting called in accordance with (j) above, the Council may:
i) approve the Leader’s recommendation; or

i) approve a different decision which does not accord with the
recommendation of the Executive.

In either case the decision shall be made on the basis of a simple
majority of votes cast at the meeting of the Council.

The decision shall then be made public and may be implemented
immediately;

In approving the Budget and Policy Framework, the Council shall also
specify the extent of virement within the Budget and degree of in-year
changes to the Policy Framework which may be undertaken by the
Leader or Executive Director, in accordance with paragraphs 6 and 7 of
these Rules (virement and in-year changes). Any other changes to the
Policy and Budgetary Framework are reserved to the Council or
delegated to the General Purposes and Audit Committee on grounds of
urgency.

3 Provisions relating to the Budget for the Authority

(@)

May 2016

Where, the Leader submits to the Council for its consideration in
relation to the following financial year in accordance with the relevant
legal timeframes:-

0] estimates of the amounts to be aggregated in making a
calculation (whether originally or by way of substitute) in

Part4C / Page 3 of 7

Budget & Policy Framework Procedure Rules

Page 109



(b)

(©

(d)

May 2016

accordance with any of sections 31A, 31B and 34 to 36A or 42A,
42 B and 45 to 49, of the Local Government Finance Act 1992;

(i) estimates of other amounts to be used for the purposes of such
a calculation;

(i)  estimates of such a calculation; or

(iv)  amounts required to be stated in a precept under Chapter IV of
Part | of the Local Government Finance Act 1992,

(v) Confirm that a calculation has been made in accordance with
Section 52ZB of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and
that the appropriate action as is required as a result of that
calculation is pursued.

and following consideration of those estimates or amounts the Council
has any objections to them, it must take the action set out in paragraph
(b) below.

Before the Council makes a calculation (whether originally or by way of
substitute) in accordance with any of the sections referred to in
paragraph (a)(i) above, or issues a precept under Chapter IV of Part |
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, it must inform the Leader
of any objections which it has to the estimates or amounts and must
give to him/her instructions requiring them to reconsider, in the light of
those objections, those estimates and amounts in accordance with the
Council’s requirements.

Where the Council gives instructions in accordance with paragraph (b),
it must specify a period of at least five working days beginning on the
day after the date on which the Leader receives the instructions on
which he/she may —

0] submit a revision of the estimates or amounts as amended
("revised estimates or amounts"), which have been reconsidered
in accordance with the Council's requirements, with the Leader’s
reasons for any amendments made to the estimates or amounts,
to the Council for the Council's consideration; or

(i) inform the Council of any disagreement that the Leader has with
any of the Council’s objections and the reasons for any such
disagreement.

When the period specified by the Council, referred to in paragraph 3(c),
has expired, the Council must, when making calculations (whether
originally or by way of substitute) in accordance with the sections
referred to in paragraph 6(a), or issuing a precept under Chapter IV of
Part | of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, take into account -

Part4C / Page 4 of 7

Budget & Policy Framework Procedure Rules

Page 110



() any amendments to the estimates or amounts that are included
in any revised estimates or amounts;

(i) the Leader’s reasons for those amendments;

(i)  any disagreement that the Leader has with any of the Council’s
objections; and

(iv)  the Leader’s reasons for that disagreement,

which the Leader submitted to the Council, or informed the Council of,
within the period specified.

4 Decisions outside the Budget or Policy Framework

(@)

(b)

Subiject to the provisions of paragraph 6 (virement) below, the Leader,
the Cabinet, a Cabinet Committee or Executive Director may only take
decisions, which are in line with the Budget and Policy Framework. If
any of these bodies or persons wishes to make a decision which is
contrary to the Policy Framework, or contrary to or not wholly in
accordance with the budget approved by Full Council, then that
decision may only be taken by the Council, subject to 5 below.

If the Leader, the Cabinet or a Cabinet Committee or Executive Director
want to make such a decision, they shall take advice from the
Monitoring Officer as to whether the decision they want to make would
be contrary to the Policy Framework, or the Chief Finance Officer if it
would be contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the Budget. If the
advice of either of those officers is that the decision would not be in line
with the existing Budget and/or Policy Framework, then the decision
must be referred by that body or person to the Council for decision,
unless the decision is a matter of urgency, in which case the provisions
in paragraph 5 (urgent decisions outside the Budget and Policy
Framework) shall apply.

5 Urgent Decision outside the Budget or Policy Framework

(@)

May 2016

The Leader or a Cabinet Committee or the Chief Executive may take a
decision, which is contrary to the Council’s Policy Framework or
contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the Budget approved by
Full Council if the decision is a matter of urgency. However, the
decision may only be taken:

)] If it is not practical to convene a quorate meeting of the Full
Council or of the General Purposes and Audit Committee which
has power to determine any matter reserved to the Council in
cases of urgency; and

Part4C / Page 5 of 7

Budget & Policy Framework Procedure Rules

Page 111



(b)

©

i) If the Chair of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee agrees that
the decision is a matter of urgency.

The reasons why it is not practical to convene a quorate meeting of the
Council and the Chair of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee’s
consent to the decision being taken as a matter of urgency must be
noted on the record of the decision. In the absence of the Chair of the
Scrutiny and Overview Committee, the consent of the Mayor as Chair
of the Council will be sufficient. In the absence of both the Chair of the
Scrutiny and Overview Committee and the Mayor, the consent of the
Deputy Mayor as Vice-Chair of the Council will be sufficient.

Following the decision, the decision taker shall provide a full report to
the next available Council Meeting explaining the decision, the reasons
for it and why the decision was treated as a matter of urgency.

6 In-year changes to Policy Framework

The responsibility for agreeing the Budget and Policy Framework lies with the
Council, and decisions by the Leader and Cabinet, a Cabinet Committee or
Chief Executive, must be in line with the Budget and Policy Framework. No
changes to any policy and strategy, which make up the Policy Framework,
may be made by those bodies or individuals except those changes:

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

Which shall result in the closure or discontinuance of a service or part
of service to meet a budgetary constraint; or

Which are necessary to ensure compliance with the law, Ministerial
Direction or Government guidance; or

In relation to the Policy Framework, in respect of a policy which would
normally be agreed annually by the Council following consultation, but
where the existing policy document is silent on the matter under
consideration; or

Which relate to policy in relation to schools, where the majority of
schools governing bodies agree with the proposed change.

7 Review of decisions outside the Budget or Policy Framework

(@)

May 2016

Where the Scrutiny and Overview Committee is of the opinion that an
Executive decision is, or if made would be, contrary to the Policy
Framework, then it shall seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or
where it is of the opinion that an Executive decision is contrary to or not
wholly in accordance with the Council’'s Budget, then it shall seek
advice from the Chief Finance Officer.

Part4C / Page 6 of 7

Budget & Policy Framework Procedure Rules

Page 112



(b) In respect of functions which are the responsibility of the Leader, the
Cabinet, the Monitoring Officer’s report in respect of the Policy
Framework or the Chief Finance Officer’s report in respect of the
Budget shall be to the Leader and the Cabinet with a copy to every
Member of the Council. Regardless of whether the decision is
delegated or not, the Leader must decide what action to take in respect
of the Monitoring Officer’s or Chief Finance Officer’s report and to
prepare a report to Council in the event that the Monitoring Officer or
the Chief Finance Officer conclude that the decision was a departure,
and to the Scrutiny and Overview Committee if the Monitoring Officer or
the Chief Finance Officer conclude that the decision was not a
depatrture.

(©) If the decision has yet to be made, or has been made but not yet
implemented, and the advice from the Monitoring Officer is that the
decision is or would be contrary to the Policy Framework or the Chief
Finance Officer is that the decision is or would be contrary to or not
wholly in accordance with the Budget, the Scrutiny and Overview
Committee may refer the matter to Council. In such cases, no further
actions shall be taken in respect of the decision or its implementation
until the Council has met and considered the matter. The Council shall
meet as soon as practicable. At the meeting it shall receive a report of
the decision or proposals and the advice of the Monitoring Officer
and/or the Chief Finance Officer. The Council may either:

() Endorse a decision or proposal of the Executive decision taker
as falling within the existing Budget and Policy Framework. In
this case no further action is required, save that the decision of
the Council be minuted and circulated to all Councillors in the
normal way; or

(in) Amend the Council’'s Financial Regulations or policy concerned
to encompass the decision or proposal of the body or individual
responsible for that Executive function and agree to the decision
with immediate effect. In this case, no further action is required
save that the decision of the Council be minuted and circulated
to all Councillors in the normal way; or

(i)  Where the Council accepts that the decision or proposal is
contrary to the Policy Framework or contrary to or not wholly in
accordance with the Budget, and does not amend the existing
framework to accommodate it, require the Leader to reconsider
the matter in accordance with the advice of the Monitoring
Officer in respect of the Policy Framework or Chief Finance
Officer in respect of the Budget.

May 2016 Part4C /Page 7 of 7
Budget & Policy Framework Procedure Rules

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

Part 4.D - Executive Procedure Rules

1 THE EXECUTIVE
1.1 Who may make Executive Decisions
The arrangements for the discharge of executive functions are as set out in
Executive Arrangements adopted by the Council. These arrangements
provide for executive functions to be discharged by:
The Leader — who may delegate to:
i. the Cabinet as a whole;

i. a Cabinet Committee;

iii. the appropriate Cabinet Member who, within delegated powers granted
by the Leader, shall have authority to award contracts, and approve
other relevant contractual and property transaction matters, including
waiving of the Tenders and Contracts Regulations and appointment to
approved list of contractors, only when acting in accordance with the
procedures contained in the protocols (see Appendix 1);

iv. the Chief Executive;
v. an Executive Director;
vi. joint arrangements;
vii.. another local authority; or
viii. a Cabinet Member.
Key Decisions may only be taken by the Leader, the Cabinet, a Cabinet
Committee, the Chief Executive in case of urgency, or by a Cabinet Member
or officer using powers as specifically delegated by the Leader.
1.2  Sub-delegation of Executive Functions
(@) Where the Leader, the Cabinet, a Cabinet Committee or a Cabinet

Member is responsible for an executive function, they may delegate
further to a joint Committee or an Officer.

May2018 Part4D / Page 1 of 9
ExecutiveProcedureRules

Page 115



1.3

1.4

15

(b)  Where a Joint Committee is responsible for an executive function it
may further delegate its functions to a sub-committee (or an officer)
according to the terms of its constitution.

(©) Even where executive functions have been delegated, that fact does
not prevent the discharge of delegated functions by the body who
delegated.

The Council’s Scheme of Delegation and Executive Functions

The Council’'s Scheme of Delegation as set out in Part 3 of this Constitution
(Responsibility for Functions), shall be subject to adoption by the Council and
may only be amended by the Council. Within the powers allocated to the
Cabinet, amendments to the Constitution with regard to the creation or
dissolution of a Cabinet Committee and the delegation of Executive Functions
to a Cabinet Committee or an Officer may be made by the Leader.

Portfolio descriptions of Cabinet Members are set out on the Council’'s website
(www.croydon.gov.uk ) and may be amended on decision of the Leader.

Appendix 1 sets out the protocol to be followed by the appropriate Cabinet
Member in regard to approval of contractual and property transaction matters.
This Protocol and any others adopted by the Leader from time to time for
whatever purpose may be amended on decision of the Leader and shall be
set out in Appendix 1 to these Rules.

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Conflicts of Interest

Cabinet Members shall act in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct
set out in Part 51 of this Constitution. Executive Members shall also have
regard to the need, if they are consulted by a decision maker in relation to an
executive decision, to declare any conflict of interest to that decision maker
and seek a dispensation from the Chief Executive as provided for in Part 2
and Part 4B of this Constitution.

Meetings of the Cabinet

(@) The Cabinet shall meet on the dates as determined annually by the
Leader. As Chair of the Cabinet, the Leader may convene such
additional meetings of the Cabinet as are necessary to enable the
efficient conduct of business, and may cancel or re-schedule meetings
as necessary.

(b) Meetings of the Cabinet shall be held in the Town Hall, Katharine
Street and shall commence at 6.30 p.m., unless determined otherwise
and stated on the Notice and Summons for the meeting and shall last

May2018 Part4D / Page 2 of 9
ExecutiveProcedureRules

Page 116


http://www.croydon.gov.uk/

1.6

1.7

no longer than three hours, at the expiry of which period any
recommendations remaining outstanding for consideration shall be put
to the vote in turn without further debate and the Chair shall then close
the meeting.

(©) Meetings of the Cabinet shall be open to the media and public unless
the business under consideration is exempt or confidential as
determined under the Access to Information Rules set out in Part 4 of
this Constitution. Participation at meetings by the Shadow Cabinet and
Members of other Political Groups represented on the Council may be
governed by a Leader’s protocol.

(d) Notice of each meeting shall be given and the agenda and papers for
each meeting shall be available in compliance with the Access to
Information Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution.

Quorum

The quorum for a meeting of the Cabinet shall be three, one of whom shall be
the Leader or the Statutory Deputy Leader; and for a Cabinet Committee,
three Members.

Decisions taken by the Leader and Cabinet

Save for those matters reserved by the Leader to the Leader, the Leader has
chosen to reserve collective responsibility for taking executive decisions to the
Cabinet with the proviso that the Leader has delegated responsibility for
decisions relating to contractual and property transactions including the
determination of surplus land and property matters to the relevant Cabinet
Members on the basis that the responsibility will be exercised with due regard
to the Scheme of Delegation approved by the Leader and set out at Part 6C of
this Constitution and that from time to time the Leader may further delegate to
any Cabinet Member or any Cabinet Committee the Leader has created or
decides to create.

(@) Executive decisions, which have been allocated to the Cabinet, or
delegated to a Cabinet Committee, shall be taken at a meeting
convened in accordance with the Access to Information Rules set out in
Part 4B of this Constitution.

(b) Subject to any protocol relating to the same where executive decisions
are delegated to a Committee of the Cabinet, the rules applying to
executive decisions taken by them shall be the same as those applying
to the Cabinet as a whole.

May2018 Part4D / Page 3 of 9
ExecutiveProcedureRules

Page 117



1.8

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

(© Executive decisions taken by the appropriate Cabinet Member, with
regard to contractual and property transaction matters shall be taken
with regard to any Protocol governing the exercise of that delegated
power.

Recommendation to Council

Any recommendation of the Leader, Cabinet or Cabinet Committee referred to
the Full Council for approval may be made within the Business Report of the
Leader and Cabinet and shall summarise the matter, setting out the
recommendation for the Council to consider. The recommendation shall be
submitted to the next convenient Ordinary Council Meeting following the
meeting of the Cabinet or Cabinet Committee at which the recommendation
was framed.

THE CONDUCT OF EXECUTIVE MEETINGS

Appointment of Chair

The Cabinet meeting shall be chaired by the Leader. If the Leader is absent
then the Statutory Deputy Leader shall chair the meeting.

The Chair of the meeting shall decide on all matters of order, competence,
relevance and interpretation of these Rules. The Chair shall have the power
to vary the order of business to give precedence to any item of business.
Matters of urgent business shall be taken at the discretion of the Chair if
satisfied that the item cannot reasonably be deferred until the next meeting of
the Committee. The reports concerning such matters shall explain the reason
for urgency.

The decision of the Chair as to the general conduct of the meeting shall be
final. The Chair may direct a Member to discontinue speaking if they consider
the Member is being repetitive, tedious or irrelevant, uses unbecoming
language, or is in some other way breaching the order of the meeting. When
necessary, the Chair, having warned the Member shall move that the Member
called by name, leaves the meeting. The motion, if seconded, shall be put to
the vote without further debate and if carried the Member shall leave
immediately.

In the case of a member of the public disrupting the meeting or if there is a
general disturbance, the Chair may order the removal of a person or that the
public areas be cleared. Re-admission shall be at the discretion of the Chair

Business
At each meeting of the Cabinet the following business shall be conducted

although the Leader shall have the power to determine the content and order
of business:

May2018 Part4D / Page 4 of 9
ExecutiveProcedureRules

Page 118



2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

3.1

3.2

4.1

Attendance by Non-Executive Members

The Chair of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee together with the relevant
Deputy or the Vice Chair shall have automatic entitlement to attend any
Cabinet or Cabinet Committee meeting at which a report from a Scrutiny and
Overview Committee or a Sub-Committee is under consideration and
participate in the consideration of that item of business but not vote.

A job-share Cabinet Member who is not the current acting Cabinet Member
for the job-share portfolio shall have automatic entitlement to attend any
Cabinet or Cabinet committee meeting and participate in the consideration
of any item of business but not vote.

The Leader or Chair of a Cabinet Committee may agree that a non-executive
Member may attend to participate in the debate of an item of business on the
grounds that the presence of the Member concerned can be justified. Such a
Member shall not have any right to vote in deciding the outcome of the matter
under consideration. In the absence of a Cabinet Member, the relevant
Deputy shall be invited to attend and participate in the meeting in accordance
with these arrangements. A Deputy shall not have a right to vote and shall not
be included for the purposes of determining whether the meeting is quorate.

The Committees established by the Leader and their delegations as approved
by the Leader are set out in Section 3 of these Rules.

COMMITTEES OF THE CABINET

The Leader may establish one or more Cabinet Committees to exercise
specified delegated executive functions. Standing Committees established by
the Leader are listed below. In addition the Leader may from time to time
establish ad hoc committees on a time-limited basis.

General Purposes Committee

To deal with any matters of business allocated to the Cabinet.

The membership of the Committee shall comprise all 10 Cabinet Members,
and be quorate if not less than 3 Members are present.

ADVISORY COMMITTEES

The Council has established the following Advisory Committees to advise the
relevant Cabinet Member:

Traffic Management Advisory Committee
(Membership 6)

4,2 The Traffic Management Advisory Committee shall meet as frequently as

business requires for the purpose of advising the Cabinet Member for

May2018 Part4D / Page 5 of 9
ExecutiveProcedureRules

Page 119



Transport and Environment in respect of:

@ the exercise of all functions, powers and duties of the Council as Traffic
and Highway Authority in relation to Traffic Management issues,

(b) the making of comments on minor applications which fall to be
determined by other authorities, and

(© commenting on any matters which stand to be determined by the
Cabinet Member following referral by the Executive Director for Place, in
respect of highways and traffic management.

(d) Commenting on any proposal to make a Gating Order under section
129A of the Highways Act 1980 which has been referred to the Cabinet
Member for determination by the Executive Director for Place.

4.3  Participation in the proceedings of the meetings of the Committee shall be in
accord with the Protocol set out in Part 5H of the Constitution governing such
arrangements as approved by the Committee from time to time.

May2018 Part4D / Page 6 of 9
ExecutiveProcedureRules

Page 120



Appendix 1
PROTOCOLS OF THE EXECUTIVE

Each Protocol shall indicate whether it applies to the Leader, Cabinet, or, when
exercising delegated powers in taking an executive decision, a Cabinet Committee
or the appropriate Cabinet Member with regard to contractual and property
transaction matters or the Chief Executive.

1. PROTOCOL ON APPOINTMENTS OF SCHOOL GOVERNORS AND THE
APPROVAL OR AMENDMENT OF INSTRUMENTS OF GOVERNMENT

This Protocol applies to the Executive Director for People who shall exercise
delegated powers to appoint School Governors and in approving or amending
Instruments of Government relating to the size and composition of individual
governing bodies.

Appointment of School Governors

Before approving, or otherwise, any appointment of a person as a School Governor,
the Executive Director for People shall:

1 Be satisfied that the applicant or any organisation representing the applicant
has granted their full consent to be considered for the appointment
concerned; and

2 Consult the Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Learning, and
Deputy, together with the Shadow Cabinet Member for Children, Families and
Learning on the intention to appoint or not appoint the person and take
account of the views expressed by Members on the suitability of that person
for appointment.

Instruments of Government

Before approving, or otherwise, any Instrument or amendment to an Instrument of
Government, the Executive Director for People shall:

Consult the Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Learning and
Deputy, together with the Shadow Cabinet Member for Children, Families
and Learning on the draft Instrument, amended or otherwise and take
account of the views expressed by Members on the draft.

May2018 Part4D / Page 7 of 9
ExecutiveProcedureRules

Page 121



2. PROTOCOL GOVERNING THE EXERCISE OF DELEGATED AUTHORITY
TO APPROVE CONTRACTUAL AND PROPERTY TRANSACTION
MATTERS RELATED TO EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS

This Protocol applies to executive decisions on contractual and property transaction
matters including the declaration of land and property as surplus to the Council’s
requirements taken under delegated authority from the Leader by the relevant
Cabinet Member:

a) The Cabinet Member shall not consider any contractual or property
transaction relating to an executive function that has not been the subject of a
report to the Cabinet or Cabinet Member.

b) The Cabinet Member, if in agreement with the recommendations of the report
shall sign a decision notice, in the form set out in Appendix A to this Protocol,
in respect of the contractual and property transaction matter concerned
indicating that the contract shall be awarded or action taken as per the
recommendation. All matters dealt with shall be included in a schedule as part
of the next Leader’s and Cabinet Business Report to the Council. Members
may ask questions at the Council Meeting on the contents of the schedule.

C) If the Cabinet Member is not minded to agree with a recommendation set out
in the report, , the contractual and property transaction matter to which it
refers shall stand immediately referred, without further discussion, to the
Leader, if necessary to be dealt with as urgent business.

d) If the Cabinet Member has a disclosable pecuniary interest or conflict of
interest in or in relation to any contract or property transaction matter referred
for consideration, the declaration will be recorded and the relevant matters will
immediately stand referred to the Leader for decision.

e) Any contractual and property transaction matters referred to the Leader for
decision shall be the subject of a full report.

May2018 Part4D / Page 8 of 9
ExecutiveProcedureRules

Page 122



APPENDIX A
CROYDON COUNCIL

RECORD OF EXECUTIVE DECISION

TITLE:-

REFERENCE NO:-

RECOMMENDATIONS:-

BACKGROUND PAPERS/
CABINET OR COMMITTEE
REPORT:-

| agree/do not agree* to the recommendation [as amended*]
(*delete as appropriate)

Signature:
Title:

Date:

May2018 Part4D / Page 9 of 9
ExecutiveProcedureRules

Page 123




This page is intentionally left blank



1.

11

1.2

Agenda Item

CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

Part 4.E - Scrutiny and Overview Procedure
Rules

THE SCRUTINY AND OVERVIEW COMMITTEE AND ITS SUB-COMMITTEES

The Council shall have one Scrutiny and Overview Committee which shall
perform all overview and scrutiny functions on behalf of the Council. The
Committee may delegate those functions to one or more Scrutiny Sub-
Committees.

In accordance with Article 6 of this Constitution, the terms of reference of
the Scrutiny and Overview Committee shall be as follows:

() to oversee the performance of all overview and scrutiny functions,
including development of and procedures governing the operation of the
Committee and its Sub-Committees;

(i)  to carry out reviews related to the Council’'s wider power to promote
the economic, environmental and social well-being of the Borough;

(i)  to carry out the scrutiny of partner bodies and crime and disorder
matters in line with the Council’s statutory duties and powers, subject
to any delegation referred to in Rule 1.01 above;

(iv) to appoint such Sub-Committees as it considers appropriate, by
resolution determining terms of reference and membership including the
appointment of a Chair and Vice-Chair and any co-opted members to
the Sub-Committee/s in line with (x) below. This will normally be done at
the meeting of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee commencing at the
rise of Annual Council and the Sub-Committees shall not be permitted to
further co-opt members. This role shall be reserved to the Scrutiny and
Overview Committee;

(v)  to recommend the establishment of any Joint Scrutiny and Overview
Committees to the Council in accordance with Article 11 of this
Constitution;

(vi) to agree an initial annual scrutiny work programme at its first full meeting
after the Annual Meeting in accordance with section 6 of these rules;

(vii) to delegate elements of its annual work programme to its Sub-
Committees to ensure effective use of the Committee’s and Sub-
Committees’ time;

(viii)  to submit an Annual Report on the work undertaken during the year
and on the work prograp@gés:pg@ed at its first meeting of the year to

11



1.3

1.4

15

Annual Council;

(ixX) to recommend the training and development needs of the Committee to
the Learning and Development Panel;

(x)  to appoint non-voting co-opted Members.

Any Sub Committees of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee shall comprise
of a minimum of 7 Members, appointed in accordance with the overall political
balance of the Council.

The Scrutiny and Overview Committee, or any Sub-Committee appointed to
undertake scrutiny of Education functions under Rule1.01 above, shall include:

i) 2 statutory voting Church of England and Roman Catholic diocese
members nominated by the Bishop and Archbishop of Southwark
respectively;

i) 2 voting parent-governor representative members for LEA matters
nominated by parent governors of Croydon;

iif) 1 non-voting Teacher representative member nominated by the
Croydon Teaching Unions’ Joint Liaison Committee;

iv) Such representatives of Faiths other than those of the Church of England
and Roman Catholic dioceses membership as the Scrutiny and Overview
Committee considers appropriate. These representatives shall be non-voting
members.; and

v) any number of non-voting co-optees as the full Scrutiny and Overview
Committee considers necessary for the proper discharge of functions.

he above referenced voting representatives shall only have voting powers
in connection with matters concerning the Education functions of the
Executive..

Any Sub-Committee established by the Scrutiny and Overview Committee
is only permitted to undertake the specific functions delegated to it either
by this Constitution or following a formal decision of the Scrutiny and
Overview Committee. Any Sub-Committee shall:

(i) undertake its functions in accordance with terms of reference
as determined by resolution of the Scrutiny and Overview
Committee;

(i) operate within the framework of an initial work programme determined by
the Scrutiny and Overview Committee;

(iii) if the scrutiny of Health Services, Crime and Disorder matters or the
duties and functions of the Council as an Education Authority are delegated
to a Sub-Committee, that Sub-Committee shall have sole power to scrutinise
that matter included within its terms of reference and may report direct to
the Cabinet, Full Council, non-executive Committee, partner agency or
partnership board on such matters. Should such functions be delegated to
Sub-Committees, the Scrtﬂuged_‘@;@rview Committee shall be informed of



1.6

1.7

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

any recommendations made by those Sub-Committees under this provision;

(iv)  Save in relation to the exception set out in (iii) above, report its proposed
recommendations, reasons and outcomes to the Scrutiny and Overview
Committee for comment and consideration where after the Scrutiny and
Overview Committee may thereafter report the findings to Cabinet, Full Council,
non- executive Committee, partner agency or partnership board as
appropriate..

In accordance with this Constitution, the Cabinet shall consult the Scrutiny

and Overview Committee, via the Statutory Notices, on Key Decisions it is
proposing to take and on budget and policy recommendations before they are
submitted to the Council.

Members of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee and its Sub-Committees

may go on site visits, conduct public surveys, meet stakeholders and service
providers, commission research and do all other things that they reasonably
consider necessary to inform their work as a Scrutiny Member.

2 APPOINTMENTS TO THE SCRUTINY AND OVERVIEW
COMMITTEE AND SUB-COMMITTEES

All Members, except members of the Cabinet, are eligible for appointment to
the Scrutiny and Overview Committee, and any Scrutiny Sub-Committees.
However, no Member may be involved in scrutinising a decision in which
they have been directly involved.

Appointments to the Scrutiny and Overview Committee shall be made at the
Annual Meeting of the Council. Appointments to the Sub-Committees shall
normally be made at the annual meeting of the Council but the Scrutiny and
Overview Committee may, in accordance with (and subject to the
restrictions within) the provisions of Article 6(k) appoint further Sub-
Committees and shall determine the membership (including co-optees)
functions and terms of reference of the Sub-Committee so established.

Vacancies on the Scrutiny and Overview Committee shall be filled by
nomination to the next meeting of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee
following receipt of a notice of resignation to the Council Solicitor.

Further to Rule 1.2 (iv) of these procedure rules, appointments to Sub-
Committees may be varied by resolution of the Scrutiny and Overview
Committee at any point during the Municipal Year.

All voting co-opted members must sign and adhere to the Croydon Members’
Code of Conduct. Any non-voting co-opted member must sign and adhere to
the Code of Conduct for non-voting co-optees. Any person appointed to
become a voting co-opted Member who does not agree to abide by the
Croydon Members’ Code of Conduct or any non-voting co-opted members
who does not agree to abide by the Code of Conduct for Non-Voting Co-
Optees shall not serve on the Committee or Sub-Committee. Provided that
they have agreed to abide by the Croydon Members’ Code of Conduct, voting
co-opted members shall be entitled to any confidential or exempt documents
relevant to the function for which they are permitted to vote subject always to
the duty to keep such confidential and exempt information confidential and not
to use or otherwise disclose sqwarg@rm@ivn save in relation to the fulfilment of



3

3.1

3.2

3.3

their duties as a coo-opted member.

MEETINGS OF THE SCRUTINY AND OVERVIEW COMMITTEE AND ITS
SuB- COMMITTEES

Ordinary meetings of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee shall be
programmed in each Council Year, though the Scrutiny and Overview
Committee may vary this number during the course of the year to reflect its
work programme. The frequency of meetings of any appointed Sub-
Committees shall be determined by the Scrutiny and Overview Committee.

Meetings of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee shall commence at 6.30
p.m. unless otherwise determined by the Chair of the Committee.

Ordinary meetings of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee shall include the
following agenda items in addition to any business otherwise set out on the
agenda for consideration at the meeting:

i)  Apologies for absence;

i) Confirmation of the Minutes of the last meeting;
iii)  Disclosures of Interest; and

iv)  Urgent business (if any).

For avoidance of doubt there shall be no discussion of matters arising.

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

The Chair of the meeting shall decide on all matters of order, competence,
relevance and interpretation of these procedures. The Chair shall have the
power to vary the order of business to give precedence to any item of
business. Matters of urgent business shall be taken at the discretion of the
Chair if they are satisfied that the item cannot reasonably be deferred until the
next meeting of the Committee. The reports concerning such matters shall
explain the reason for urgency.

The Chair shall ensure that the split of business between Parts A and B (i.e.
Part B shall constitute that part which is exempt or confidential business) is
agreed. The Chair shall ensure that Members who wish to speak on any item
of business have the opportunity to do so, within the scope of the meeting
and within reasonable limits of time. The decision of the Chair as to the
general conduct of the meeting shall be final.

The Chair may direct a Member or Co-opted member to discontinue speaking
if they consider the Member is being repetitive, tedious or irrelevant, uses
unbecoming language, or is in some other way breaching the order of the
meeting. When necessary, the Chair, having warned the Member shall move
that the Member called by name, leaves the meeting. The motion, if
seconded, shall be put to the vote without further debate and if carried the
Member shall leave immediately.

Rules 3.2 to 3.7 shall also apply to Scrutiny Sub-Committee meetings.

Page 128



4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.1

7.2

QUORUM

The quorum for the Scrutiny and Overview Committee shall be one-third of
the voting membership of the Committee. If the meeting is inquorate, it shall
stand deferred for 15 minutes. If after 15 minutes there is still no quorum, the
consideration of any business not transacted shall be held over until the next
scheduled meeting or another date fixed by the Chair. This rule shall also
apply to meetings of Sub-Committees.

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR DEPUTY AND VICE-CHAIRS OF THE
SCRUTINY AND OVERVIEW COMMITTEE

The Chair of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee shall be appointed for the
Council Year at the first meeting of the Committee, immediately following the
Annual Council Meeting. In the event of a vacancy during the year, the
Committee shall appoint a Chair at the first meeting following the vacancy
occurring. The Chair shall be a majority group member.

The Scrutiny and Overview Committee shall appoint Members as Deputy
Chair (Majority Group) and Vice-Chair (Minority Group) . In the absence of
the Chair, the Deputy Chair will chair the meeting of the Committee.

The Chair Deputy Chair and Vice-Chair may meet together informally as a
Chairs’ Group.

WORK PROGRAMME

In accordance with Rule 1.2(vii) & (viii), the Scrutiny and Overview
Committee shall be responsible for setting its own work programme and the
work programme of its Sub-Committees.

A balanced work programme should be developed including pre- and post-
decision scrutiny, monitoring and external scrutiny. As far as reasonably
practicable, there should be wide consultation on the work programme with
Members, Chief Officers, external agencies and the wider community prior to
its consideration by the Scrutiny and Overview Committee.

he Scrutiny and Overview Committee will oversee Sub-Committee workloads,
having regard to the available officer and other resources.

AGENDA ITEMS

The Agenda for each Committee or Sub-Committee meeting should be based
on the agreed Work Programme. Timings and the order of business should
be decided by the Chair, Deputy Chair or Vice Chair, as appropriate, in
sufficient time to allow invitations and requests for reports to be made with
adequate notice.

Any Member of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee or a Sub-Committee
shall be entitled to give notice to the Chair of their wish to add an item, which
is not already on the agreed Work Programme, to the agenda for the
Committee or Sub-Committee of which they are a member, subject to such
item being relevant to the functions of the Committee or Sub-Committee in
guestion. In addition, any Member of the Council shall be entitled to give
notice to the Chair of their wish to add an item, not already on the agreed

Page 129



7.3

7.4

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

Work Programme, to the agenda for the Committee or Sub-Committee with
responsibility for the function to which the matter relates, provided that the
item is both relevant to the functions of the Committee or Sub-Committee and
it is not an “excluded matter” as defined in regulations pursuant to the Local
Government Act 2000, as amended The Committee or Sub-Committee may
agree to include this item at the next or a subsequent meeting.

Any changes to the work programme agreed by Sub-Committees will be
reported to the Chair of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee for information.
The Scrutiny and Overview Committee will monitor these arrangements and
keep them under review.

It is recognised that Cabinet Members or officers may not be available at
short notice. Members and officers invited to scrutiny meetings should
always, unless there are exceptional circumstances, receive adequate notice
and where appropriate reminders of meeting dates.

RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE EXECUTIVE, THE COUNCIL, NON-
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE, PARTNER AGENCY OR PARTNERSHIP
BOARD

The provisions of Rule 7 of the Budget & Policy Framework Procedure
Rules (Part 4C) apply to the Scrutiny and Overview Committee and its Sub-
Committees and are hereby incorporated into these Rules. Subject to the
aforgoing, where If the Scrutiny and Overview Committee, or a Sub-
Committee with delegated powers under Rule 1.01 above is required to
make a recommendation regarding matters outside the budget and policy
framework approved by the Council, it may make that recommendation to
the Council for consideration. The referral will be made by way of a report
summarising the matter and setting out the recommendation to be
considered.

Any recommendation of a Scrutiny and Overview Committee, or a Sub-
Committee with delegated powers in accordance with Rule 1.5(iii) above,
directed to the Leader or Executive for response shall be made by way of a
report summarising the matter and setting out the recommendation to be
considered.

If the report is to be submitted to the Cabinet or a Council meeting, it shall be
presented to the next convenient Ordinary Cabinet or Council Meeting
following the meeting of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee at which it
resolved to make the recommendation. The recommendation shall be listed
as an agenda item in its own right. At that meeting the Cabinet or Council will
resolve that the report be received.

In considering any report from a Scrutiny and Overview Committee or Sub-
Committee, where necessary the Cabinet shall receive at the same meeting a
further report from the relevant officer(s) on the issues arising from the
Scrutiny and Overview Committee’s recommendations.

The Cabinet shall make a response or an interim response to a Scrutiny and
Overview report within 2 months of receiving the report or any other limit
imposed by law if shorter.

Page 130



8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

9.1

10

10.1

In the event that the Cabinet accepts a recommendation, with or without
amendment, from a Scrutiny and Overview Committee or Sub-Committee, the
Cabinet shall agree an action plan for the implementation of the agreed
recommendations and shall delegate responsibility to an identified officer to
report back to the Scrutiny and Overview Committee or Sub-Committee,
within a specified period, on progress in implementing the action plan.

Subject to Rule 1.5(iv) and 8.9 the Scrutiny and Overview Committee, or any
Sub-Committee with relevant delegated powers, can make reports and
recommendations to any NHS body in the Borough, the Safer Croydon
Partnership, the Council’s Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) or any of the
LSP’s thematic partnerships. When doing so, the report or recommendations
must be copied to all responsible authorities or co-operating bodies of the
Partnership that are affected.

Subject to Rule 1.5(iv) and 8.9 the Scrutiny and Overview Committee, or any
Sub-Committee with relevant delegated powers, can make reports and
recommendations in relation to Local Improvement Targets and Local Area
Agreements. When doing so, the Committee must give notice in writing to
the relevant partner authorities that are affected.

In publishing any report, recommendation or response under this Rule
Scrutiny and Overview Committee and the Council shall exclude from such
report, recommendation or response any confidential information and may
exclude an exempt information as defined in the Councils Access to
Information Rules at Part 4B to this Constitution. In doing so, Scrutiny and
Overview Committee and the Council shall replace the information excluded
with a summary of the information if in consequence of excluding the
confidential/exempt information the report, recommendation or response
would be misleading or incomprehensible.

In providing a copy of any report, recommendation or response under this
Rule to any partner authority, Scrutiny and Overview Committee and the
Council shall exclude from such report, recommendation or response any
confidential information and may exclude an exempt information as defined
in the Councils Access to Information Rules at Part 4B to this Constitution

In providing a copy of any report, recommendation or response under this
Rule to any Member of the Council, Scrutiny and Overview Committee and
the Council may exclude from such report, recommendation or response any
confidential information or exempt information as defined in the Councils
Access to Information Rules at Part 4B to this Constitution.

RIGHTS OF SCRUTINY AND OVERVIEW COMMITTEE MEMBERS TO
DOCUMENTS

In addition to their rights as Members, members of the Scrutiny and Overview
Committee and Sub-Committees have additional rights to documents as set
out in the Access to Information Procedure Rules in Part 4B of this
Constitution.

PARTICIPATION BY MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

The Scrutiny and Overview Cogéngi]tteeel% i\ Sub-Committee may invite people



10.2

11

111

11.2

11.3

114

115

11.6

11.7

11.8

11.9

to address it, or discuss issues or answer questions on matters related to their
work. Members of the public may speak at meetings of the Scrutiny and
Overview Committee and its Sub-Committees at the discretion of the Chair.

The Scrutiny and Overview Committee or a Sub-Committee will consider any
suggested scrutiny topics submitted by members of the public for inclusion in
the Scrutiny work programme.

CALL-IN - EXERCISE OF THE POWER TO REVIEW A DECISION TAKEN
BUT NOT YET IMPLEMENTED

This procedure may only be used for executive Key Decisions after they are
taken but before they are implemented.

When a Key Decision is made the decision shall be published in accordance
with the Council’'s Access to Information Procedure Rules at Part 4B of the
Constitution.

The notice of the decision will specify that the decision may not be
implemented until after 13.00 hours on the 6" working day following the day
on which the decision was taken unless referred to the Scrutiny and
Overview Committee.

ny request shall be made on a pro-forma, available from democratic
services, which should be submitted to the Council Solicitor or their
representative electronically or on paper before 13.00 hours on the 6"
working day following the day on which the decision was taken. A
decision may only be subject to the referral process once.

The referral request shall be signed by:

i) The Chair and Vice Chair of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee and 1
member of that Committee; or for education matters the Chair, Vice
Chair and 1 member of that Committee or any Sub-Committee formed
under Rule 1.1 above; or

i)  20% of Council Members (14)

Verification of signatures may be by individual e-mail, fax or by post.

The Call-In referral shall be completed giving:

i)  The grounds for the referral

i)  The outcome desired

iii) The date and the signatures of the Members requesting the Call-In

The decision-taker and the relevant Chief Officer(s) shall be notified of the
referral and shall suspend implementation of the decision. The Chair of the
Scrutiny and Overview Committee shall also be notified.

The referral shall be considered at the next scheduled meeting of the Scrutiny
and Overview Committee unless, in the view of the Council Solicitor, this
would cause undue delay. In such cases the Council Solicitor will consult with
the decision-taker and the Chair of Scrutiny and Overview to agree a date for
an additional meeting. The Scrutiny and Overview Committee may only
consider a maximum of three referrals at any one meeting.

At the meeting, the referraPa@@e t3Ridered by the Committee which shall



11.10

11.11

11.12

11.13

11.14

11.15

12.1

12.2

determine how much time it will give to the call-in and how the item will be
dealt with including whether or not it wishes to review the decision. If having
considered the decision there are still concerns about the decision then the
Committee may refer it back to the Cabinet for reconsideration, setting out in
writing the nature of the concerns. The Cabinet shall then reconsider the
decision, amending the decision or not, before making a final decision.

The Scrutiny and Overview Committee may refer the decision to the Council if
it considers that the decision taken by the Leader or Cabinet is outside the
Budget and Policy Framework of the Council. In such circumstances, the
provisions of Rule 7 of the Budget & Policy Framework Procedure Rules (Part
4C) apply The Council may decide to take no further action in which case the
decision may be implemented. If the Council objects to Cabinet’s decision it
can nullify the decision if it is outside the Policy Framework and/or
inconsistent with the Budget.

If the Scrutiny and Overview Committee decides that no further action is
necessary then the decision may be implemented.

If the Council determines that the decision was within the Policy Framework
and consistent with the Budget, it will refer any decision to which it objects,
together with its views on the decision, to the Cabinet. The Cabinet shall
choose whether to either amend, withdraw or implement the original decision
within 10 working days, or at the next meeting of the Cabinet after the referral
from the Council.

The responses of the decision-taker and the Council shall be notified to all
Members of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee once the Cabinet or
Council has considered the matter and made a determination.

If either the Council or the Scrutiny and Overview Committee fails to meet in
accordance with the Council calendar or in accordance with Rule 11.8
above, then the decision may be implemented on the next working day after
the meeting was scheduled or arranged to take place.

The referral procedure shall not apply in respect of urgent decisions. A
decision will be urgent if any delay likely to be caused by the referral process
would seriously prejudice the Council's or the public interests. The record of
the decision and the notice by which it is made public shall state if the
decision is urgent and therefore not subject to the referral process. The Chair
of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee must agree that the decision
proposed cannot be reasonably deferred and that it is urgent. In the absence
of the Chair, the Deputy Chair's consent shall be required. In the absence of
both the Chair and Deputy Chair, the Mayor's consent shall be required. Any
such urgent decisions must be reported in the Cabinet Business Report to the
next available meeting of the Council including the reasons for urgency.

SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE
The following Sub-Committees have been established with the terms of

Reference as set out below.

Streets, Environment and Homes scrutiny Sub-Committee

1. To scrutinise: Page 133



12.3

12.3

N

S@rooo0oTy

The built environment

Planning policies

Public realm

Transport

Highways and streets

Green and clean

The environment, conservation, climate change and sustainability
Housing policies including homelessness

To scrutinise Flood Risk Management and report findings direct to the
Cabinet and/ or other partners ;

Children and Young People Scrutiny Sub-Committee

To undertake scrutiny of duties and functions of the Council as a local
social services authority relating to children.

To scrutinise all services pertaining to the education and well-being of
children and young people including youth services.

To scrutinise life-long learning.

Health and Social Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee
To nominate two substantive committee Members to the Standing South

West London Joint Health and Overview Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC)
and

If necessary, to appoint one of the Health and Social Care Scrutiny Sub-
Committee Members in the role of observer on the Standing South West
London JHOSC.

To nominate up to two substantive Committee Members for any JHOSC
that maybe established during the municipal year 2016/17

To undertake all powers of Health Scrutiny as defined in the Health and
Social Care Act 2001 and National Health Service Act 2006

To scrutinise Health and Social Care

Page 134



11

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Agenda ltem 12

CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

Part 4.F - Non-Executive Committee Procedure
Rules

Application

Without prejudice to the Licensing, Licensing Sub-Committee, Planning
Committee and Planning Sub- Committee Procedure Rules, these Rules shall
apply to meetings of all Non-Executive Committees and Sub-Committees
established by the Council.

Appointments

Appointment as a member of a Committee or Sub-Committee shall be limited
to the duration of the Council Year or the remainder of it. Vacancies on Sub-
Committees arising during the Council year shall be filled by decision of the
parent Committee.

Membership of a Statutory Review Board shall be drawn from a Panel of
Members appointed for that purpose by the Council. The Council Solicitor
shall have delegated power to constitute a Review Board. The Appointments
Committee shall be constituted as and when a Committee is required to make
an appointment. Membership of the Licensing Sub-Committee shall be drawn
from the membership of the Licensing Committee. The Council Solicitor shall
have delegated power to constitute a Licensing Sub-Committee as and when
a hearing under the Licensing Act 2003 or Gambling Act 2005 is required.

With the exception of the Licensing Sub-Committee, every Committee and
Sub-Committee and Panel, at their first meeting shall appoint a Chair and
Vice-Chair for the duration of the Council Year. The Licensing Committee
shall appoint a Chair and two Vice-Chairs. The Licensing Sub-Committee
shall appoint a Chair for the duration of business for which that Sub-
Committee is convened.

In the event of a vacancy to either the Chair or Vice-Chair arising during the
Council Year, this shall be filled by election at the first meeting of the relevant
Committee or Sub-Committee following notification of the vacancy to the
Council Solicitor. In the event of the absence of a Chair and Vice-Chair from
a Committee or Sub-Committee, the representative of the Council Solicitor
shall arrange for the election of a Chair for the purposes of the meeting.

May 2016 Part4F / Page 1 of 6
Non-Executive Committee ProcedureRules

Page 135



2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

3.1

3.2

3.3

Seats shall be allocated in accordance with the rules governing
proportionality, by the Council at its Annual Meeting or at any Ordinary or
Extraordinary Meeting as appropriate should a vacancy arise during the
Council Year. Exceptin the case of the Licensing Sub-Committee it shall be
in order for a Member to be appointed to a Sub-Committee although they are
not a member of the parent Committee. The Council Solicitor is empowered
to make in year appointment to committees after consultation with party
whips.

During the Council Year, changes in membership shall be notified either by
way of a resignation from the Member concerned or notification from the
relevant Group Secretary. The relevant Group Secretary shall also submit a
notification of the Member nominated to fill a vacancy arising for a seat
allocated to that particular Group. In all cases the notification shall be
submitted to the Council Solicitor.

The Council Solicitor shall cause an item to be placed on the agenda of the
next meeting of the relevant Committee, or in case of urgency the General
Purposes and Audit Committee, and the Committee shall resolve that a
named Member be appointed to the vacancy.

The Council Solicitor shall arrange for any Member appointed to the Licensing
Committee or its Sub-Committee to receive appropriate training before that
Member shall serve as a Member of the Committee or Sub-Committee.

Powers of the Chair

The Chair of the meeting shall decide on all matters of order, competence,
relevance and interpretation of these Rules. The Chair shall have the power
to vary the order of business to give precedence to any item of business.
Matters of urgent business shall be taken at the discretion of the Chair if
satisfied that the item cannot reasonably be deferred until the next meeting of
the Committee. The reports concerning such matters shall explain the reason
for urgency.

The Chair shall ensure that the split of business between Parts A and B (i.e.
Part B shall constitute that part which is exempt or confidential business) is
agreed, if necessary by a majority of the Members present. The Chair shall
ensure that Members that wish to speak on any item of business have the
opportunity to do so, within the scope of the meeting and within reasonable
limits of time. The decision of the Chair as to the general conduct of the
meeting shall be final.

The Chair may direct a Member to discontinue speaking if they consider the
Member is being repetitive, tedious or irrelevant, uses unbecoming language,
or is in some other way breaching the order of the meeting. When necessary,
the Chair, having warned the Member shall move that the Member called by

May 2016 Part4F / Page 2 of 6
Non-Executive Committee ProcedureRules

Page 136



3.4

3.5

4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

name, leaves the meeting. The motion, if seconded, shall be put to the vote
without further debate and if carried the Member shall leave immediately.

In the case of a member of the public disrupting the meeting or if there is a
general disturbance, the Chair may order the removal of a person or that the
public areas be cleared. Re-admission shall be at the discretion of the Chair.

The recording/reporting of meetings using any type of audio or visual
equipment is permitted subject to the proviso that any such
reporting/filming/photography does not become distracting, disruptive or
contrary to the good order or conduct of the meeting. Should any such
reporting/filming/photography become distracting, disruptive or contrary to the
good order or conduct of a meeting, the person/s responsible may be asked
by the Chair to terminate this, regardless of the format in which the
reporting/filming/photography is taking place.

Recommendation to Council

Any recommendation referred to the Council for approval shall be made by
way of a report summarising the matter and setting out the recommendation
for the Council to consider. The Report shall be presented to the next
convenient Ordinary Council Meeting following the meeting or meetings of the
relevant Committee at which the recommendations are made.

Agendas and Minutes

The Council Solicitor shall ensure that an Agenda and Summons for each
meeting are despatched to Members and available to the public in advance of
the meeting.

The Council Solicitor shall ensure that a record is made of the decisions taken
at every meeting of a Committee or Sub-Committee. The minutes shall also
include a record of the Members in attendance, those absent and any
apologies received.

The disclosure of any disclosable pecuniary interests not already on a
Members’ Register of Interest or subject to a pending notification to the
Monitoring Officer shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting and notified
by the Member to the Monitoring Officer in accordance with the Members’
Code of Conduct.

All minutes, except those prepared following a meeting of an Appointments
Committee or Licensing Sub-Committee shall be considered for approval at
the next meeting of the Committee or Sub-Committee to which they relate and
shall be open to question as to their accuracy before being signed. The
accuracy of the minutes of a meeting shall not be open to question or

May 2016 Part 4F / Page 3 of 6
Non-Executive Committee ProcedureRules

Page 137



5.5

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.1

8.1

amendment other than at a meeting of the Committee or Sub-Committee
concerned.

Minutes shall be made available to Members, the public and press in
accordance with the Access to Information Procedure Rules at Part 4B of this
Constitution.

Dates and Frequency of Meetings

The dates of scheduled meetings with the exception of those for the
Appointments Committee and Licensing Sub-Committees shall be as printed
in the Council diary. Each Committee or Sub-Committee or the Council
Solicitor in consultation with the relevant Chair may convene meetings on
such other dates as they may agree in the light of business to be transacted.

The Planning Committee shall generally meet at three-weekly intervals and
the Planning Sub-Committee at six-weekly intervals. The Licensing
Committee and its Sub-Committee shall meet as frequently as business
requires.

The Chair shall have power to cancel a meeting for lack of business or
reschedule a meeting, having observed the courtesy of consulting any
member of the Committee or Sub-Committee designated as the Opposition
Spokesperson for the Committee or Sub-Committee in question.

Attendance by Members not appointed to a Committee or Sub-
Committee

The Chair of a Committee or Sub-Committee may agree that a Member not
appointed to the Committee or Sub-Committee may attend and participate in
the debate of an item of business on the grounds that the presence of the
Member concerned can be justified. Such a Member shall not have any right
to vote in deciding the outcome of the matter under consideration. This
provision shall not apply in respect of the Licensing Sub-Committee.

Quorum

No business shall be considered at a meeting of a Committee or Sub-
Committee unless there are present either one third of the membership of the
Committee or Sub-Committee or 3 members, whichever figure is the greater.
If the meeting is inquorate, it shall be deferred for 15 minutes. If after 15
minutes there is still no quorum, the consideration of any business not
transacted shall be held over until the next scheduled meeting or another date
fixed by the Chair.

May 2016 Part 4F / Page 4 of 6
Non-Executive Committee ProcedureRules

Page 138



8.2

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

Where the Licensing Sub-Committee is inquorate and it is not possible to
appoint a Chair for the duration of the business as provided for in Rule 2.03
above, the Chair of the Licensing Committee or in the absence of the Chair,
one of the Vice Chairs, shall be deemed to be appointed as Chair for the
purpose of deferring the business to the next scheduled meeting if
appropriate, to another date fixed for hearing of the business or to a later time
on the date of the scheduled meeting for hearing of the business.

Rules of Debate

A Member may indicate their desire to speak by raising their hand, but shall
only speak when called by name by the Chair.

Members shall, when speaking, address the Chair and:

1 refer to each other as Chair or Member, as the case may be;

2 refrain from using unbecoming language;

3 refrain from comments of a personal nature about another Member;
4 not attribute improper motives to another Member.

Only one motion or amendment may be considered at a time. A motion or
amendment once moved and seconded may be withdrawn, only by the mover.
No further debate shall take place on a motion or amendment once it has
been withdrawn.

Every motion or amendment must be moved and seconded.

An amendment to a motion may be proposed, provided it is seconded and:

1 is not moved whilst another amendment is under discussion;

2 does not have the same meaning as one already defeated at the
meeting;

3 refers to the subject matter under discussion and does not introduce a
new subject.

A Member may raise a point of order by declaring “point of order” identifying
the appropriate Procedure Rule number, in which case the Chair shall ask the
Member speaking to give way. The Chair shall invite the point of order to be
explained by the Member concerned.

A Member may assert a right to be heard immediately on a point of personal
explanation by declaring “point of personal explanation”, in which case the

May 2016 Part4F / Page 5 of 6
Non-Executive Committee ProcedureRules

Page 139



10

10.1

10.2

10.3

11

111

Chair shall ask the Member speaking to give way. The Chair shall invite the
point of personal explanation to be made by the Member concerned.

Voting

Unless required otherwise by law, all matters shall be decided by a simple
majority.

Where immediately after a vote is taken at a meeting of a Committee or Sub-
Committee, if any Member so requires there shall be recorded in the minutes
of that meeting whether the person cast their vote for or against the question
or whether they abstained from voting.

In the event of an equality of votes on either side, the Chair shall have a
second or casting vote.

Disclosure of Interests

Every agenda shall include as an item of business “Disclosures of Interest”.
Members shall abide by the Members Code of Conduct set out at Part 51 of
this Constitution. It is the responsibility of every Member to declare any
disclosable pecuniary interest during the course of a meeting that is not
already on their register of interests or subject to a pending notification to the
Monitoring Officer. Each disclosure shall be minuted but Members are
required to notify the Monitoring Officer of any disclosure so minuted in
accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct.

May 2016 Part 4F / Page 6 of 6
Non-Executive Committee ProcedureRules

Page 140



Agenda Item 13

CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

Part 4.G — Delegations to Executive Directors
Decision Making Procedure Rules

1 Departmental Schemes

1.1  This Constitution includes a range of delegations. Executive Directors should
identify who amongst their senior staff shall exercise these, both on a day to
day basis and in the event of their absence. These arrangements shall be
written up by each Executive Director as their departmental scheme, which
shall be deposited with the Council Solicitor.

1.2 A departmental scheme might involve specific delegations to individual senior
officers or generic delegations to a group of officers. It is for each Executive
Director to decide what is reasonable in the context of their Department’s
needs and staffing structure. It would not be unreasonable for an Executive
Director to delegate the entirety of his delegated powers to the Department’s
second tier staff but not appropriate to re-delegate on a general basis more
widely. Further advice is available from the Monitoring Officer on the style and
content of the scheme of delegations appropriate for a particular
Department. The Council’s Financial Regulations at Part 4 of this Constitution
provide that the Chief Finance Officer must approve all financial schemes of
delegation.

2 Decisions which should be formally recorded

2.1 Most of the Council’'s most senior managers are taking decisions on a regular
basis and the general nature of the delegations included in the Constitution
provides authority for this. However, certain classes of decisions and the
reasons for them should be recorded in writing in order that they can be
defended if challenged (either informally or through the Courts) and to protect
managers from any suggestion that they are abusing their authority.
Furthermore, certain types of decisions are required by statute to be recorded
and made available to the public. Finally, where executive decisions are being
taken by officers, regard must be had to the provisions of Part 4B Access to
Information Procedure Rules in this Constitution.

2.2  Given that Officers shall be taking a wide range of managerial, service and
statutory decisions it is not easy to identify with complete certainty those
where a formal record should be retained. However the following classes of
decision, which are not mutually exclusive, are required by statute to be
formally recorded:

May 2016 Part4G/Page 1 of 6
Delegations to Executive Directors Decision Making Procedure Rules

Page 141



I. Any decision taken by an officer which would otherwise have been
taken by the relevant Council decision making body, or a committee or
sub-committee of that body or a joint committee in which that body
participates, but it has been delegated to an officer of that body either-

e Under a specific express authorisation; or
e Under a general authorisation to officers to take such decisions
and, the effect of the decision is to:

a) Grant a permission or licence;
b) Affect the rights of an individual; or

c) Award a contract or incur expenditure which, in either case,
materially affects that relevant local government body’s
financial position.

il. A written record must be produced as soon as reasonably practicable
after the decision making officer has made the decision and must
contain the following information —

e The date the decision was taken;

e A record of the decision taken along with the reasons for the
decision;

e Details of alternative options, if any, considered and rejected,
and

e Where the decision is taken pursuant to an express
authorisation from a the relevant Council decision making body,
the names of any Members of the Council decision making body
who has declared a conflict of interest in relation to the decision.

2.3 In addition to the above, the following classes of decision, which are not
mutually exclusive, provide a guide as to those where a specific record including
reasons should be retained:
I. Statutory Determinations
il. Any decision which is prejudicial to the rights or interests of an
individual or a third party
iii. Any decision which is likely to be challenged

iv. Any decision to issue a formal Notice or instigate a formal procedure
V. The dismissal of a member of staff or any decision which is prejudicial
to the interests of an individual or a group of staff
Vi. The approval of expenditure over £10,000
Vil. Any decision, which may be or is at variance with Government
guidance
May2016 Part 4G/ Page 2 of 6

Delegations to Executive Directors Decision Making Procedure Rules

Page 142



2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

vii  Any decision requiring the execution of formal documentation by the
Council Solicitor.

iX Any other executive decision, as defined in Part 4B Access to
Information Procedure Rules in this Constitution, such record to include
the decision and date it was made; the reasons for the decision; details
of any alternative options considered and rejected by the officer when
making the decision ; any conflict of interest declared by any Executive
Member who is consulted by the officer which relates to the decision;
and in respect of any declared conflict of interest, a note of
dispensation granted by the Head of Paid Service

Decisions relating to the appointment of staff are already well documented if
carried out in accordance with the Council’s recruitment policies and the
Guide to Successful Staff Selection.

Decision documentation

The need to document decisions and their reasons can be met in a number of
ways. It is suggested that the most appropriate is either:

(@ A decision letter setting out reasons and signed by a manager with
delegated authority;

(b)  Aninternal memorandum setting out reasons and a recommendation to
a manager with delegated authority and then endorsed as “approved”
and signed and dated by that manager; or

(c) A decision record form for non-executive decisions designed for the
purpose — an example of such a form is attached at appendix 1 to
these rules.

(d) In relation to an executive decision as defined in Part 4B Access to
Information Procedure Rules in this Constitution, an executive decision
record form is required, as attached at appendix 2 to these rules.

The decision documentation should then be retained (in hard or electronic
form) on a central departmental file in addition to any subject file. The Council
Solicitor shall require a copy of the documentation when executing formal
documentation on such matters.

The manager with delegated authority must be either the Executive Director
or a senior manager given delegated authority under the departmental
scheme referred to in paragraph 1 above.

As with a report to the Leader, the Cabinet or a Committee for decision the
reasons given should show that the Authority (acting through the delegated
manager) has had regard to all appropriate considerations in reaching a

May 2016 Part 4G/ Page 3 of 6
Delegations to Executive Directors Decision Making Procedure Rules

Page 143



decision. This must include all those that the Authority is required to have
regard to by statute (such as human rights or crime and disorder) as well as
those that are required by good practice. The general approach adopted in
Committee or Leader/Cabinet reports may be a helpful guide although the
documentation for delegated decisions may be more concise.

May 2016 Part 4G/ Page 4 of 6
Delegations to Executive Directors Decision Making Procedure Rules

Page 144



Appendix 1

CROYDON COUNCIL
.................................. DEPARTMENT

RECORD OF NON-EXECUTIVE DELEGATED DECISION

TITLE:-

REFERENCE NO:-

OPTIONS CONSIDERED:-
[Including any rejected]

ANY CONFLICT OF
INTEREST DECLARED BY A
MEMBER of the Decision
Making Body which expressly
delegated authority to the
officer taking the decision.

RECOMMENDATIONS:-

BACKGROUND PAPERS/
CABINET OR COMMITTEE
REPORT:-

| agree/do not agree* to the recommendation [as amended*|
(*delete as appropriate)

Signature:
Title:
Date:

May 2016 Part 4G/ Page 5 of 6
Delegations to Executive Directors Decision Making Procedure Rules

Page 145




Appendix 2
CROYDON COUNCIL

.................................. DEPARTMENT

RECORD OF EXECUTIVE DECISION

TITLE:-

REFERENCE NO:-

SUMMARY:-
[Include all appropriate
considerations to the decision]

OPTIONS CONSIDERED:-
[Including any rejected]

ANY CONFLICT OF
INTEREST DECLARED BY
AN EXECUTIVE MEMBER
CONSULTED by the officer in
making the decision.

ANY DISPENSATION
GRANTED TO THE
EXECUTIVE MEMBER
CONSULTED BY THE CHIEF
EXECUTIVE.

RECOMMENDATIONS:-

BACKGROUND PAPERS/
CABINET OR COMMITTEE
REPORT:-

| agree/do not agree* to the recommendation [as amended*]
(*delete as appropriate)

Signature:
Title:

Date:

May 2016 Part 4G / Page 6 of 6
Delegations to Executive Directors Decision Making Procedure Rules

Page 146




CONSTITUTIONOFTHE

Agenda Iltem 14

LONDONBOROUGHOFCROYDON

Part4.H-Financial Regulations

1. Status of Financial Regulations
e Status
e Financial Control Framework
e Scheme of Financial Delegation
2. Other Financial Accountabilities
e Virements
e Treatment of Year-End Balances
e Accounting Policies
e Annual Statement of Accounts
e Trading Accounts
3. Financial Planning and Budgeting
e Policy Framework
e Budgeting
e Budget Preparation
e Financial Management Process
e Maintenance of Balances & Reserves
e Capital Programme
4. Petty Cash
5. Procurement Cards
6. Banking Arrangements and Cheques
7. Risk Management and Insurance
8. Internal Control
e Audit Requirement
e Preventing Fraud & Corruption
9. Assets
10. Management of Contracts
11. Treasury Management
12.  Systems and Procedures
Part 4H
Financial Regs Sept. 2016 Page 1 of 29

Page 147



13.  Income and Expenditure
e Leasing Arrangements & PFI / PPP Funding Arrangements
e Payments to Employees & Members

14. Taxation

15. External Collaboration
e Partnerships
e External Funding
e Work for Third Parties

16. Retention of Records

17. Devolution of Financial Management

Full Council, Cabinet and Committees
Statutory Officers

Executive Directors

Budget Holder

Part4H

Financial Regs Sept. 2016 Page 2 of 29

Page 148



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

Part4H

Status of Financial Regulations

The Financial Regulations (the Regulations) provide the governance
framework for managing the Council’s financial affairs. They apply to all
Members, officers of the Council and anyone acting on its behalf. It is
likely to be considered a disciplinary offence to breach these Financial
Regulations and procedures.

They seek to ensure that the Council conducts its affairs in a way that
complies with specific statutory provisions, generally accepted accounting
policies and professional good practice.

The Local Government Act 1972 (Section 151) makes the Chief Financial
Officer responsible for the proper administration of the Council’s financial
affairs. These Regulations are issued pursuant to these responsibilities.

All Members and officers have a general responsibility for taking
reasonable action to provide for the security of the assets under their
control and for ensuring that the use of these resources is legal, is
properly authorised and achieves value for money. In doing so proper
consideration must be given at all times to matters of probity and
propriety in managing the assets, income and expenditure of the
Council.

The Regulations apply to the control of both the General Fund finances
(except maintained schools), Capital and the Housing Revenue Account, as
well as other grants received. Schools must adopt their own financial policy
and procedures based on the principles within the Regulations but also
taking account of more specific guidance issued, including the Croydon
Scheme for Financing Schools.

The Regulations identify the financial responsibilities of:

. The full Council;

. The Cabinet;

. The Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive);

. The Chief Financial Officer (Executive Director of Resources and also
the Council’s Section 151 Officer);

. The Monitoring Officer (Council Solicitor and Monitoring Officer);

. Executive Directors

. All officers and Members of the Council

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for maintaining and regularly
reviewing the Regulations and has delegated authority for any additions
or changes.

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for issuing advice and guidance
to underpin the Regulations to which Members, Officers and others acting
on behalf of the Council are required to have regard.

Financial Regs Sept. 2016

Page 149

Page 3 of 29



1.9 The Chief Financial Officer is also responsible for reporting, where
appropriate breaches of the Regulations to the Council and/or to Cabinet.

1.10 The Regulations are supported by a set of mandatory Financial Procedures
which provide more detailed direction on the arrangements to be complied
with.  All officers and Members must ensure that they read and follow these
procedures. Failure to comply may constitute misconduct and lead to
formal disciplinary action.

Financial Control Framework

1.11 The financial administration framework of the Council is organised in
accordance with Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, requiring
that every local Authority in England and Wales should “make
arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs and
shall secure that one of their Officers has responsibility for the
administration of those affairs.” The framework comprises:

. Constitution: The principal rules governing the Council’s affairs,
including financial, and the delegation of authority to Members and
Officers.

. Financial Regulations: this document is part of the Constitution,

created by the Council, with amendments delegated to the Chief
Financial Officer, to provide a framework for its financial procedures.

. Financial Procedures: set out controls and responsibilities of all staff
and Members

. Schemes of Delegation

. Scheme of Financial Delegation

. Contracts Handbook

. Tenders & Contracts Regulations

. Project and Project Management Framework

Scheme of Financial Delegation

1.12 The Chief Financial Officer must approve the Council’'s Scheme of Financial
Delegation which sets out the financial authorisation limits for staff.

1.13 The Scheme of Financial Delegation is administered by the Head of
Governance. Amendments to the scheme will be approved by the Chief
Financial Officer.

Part4H

Financial Regs Sept. 2016 Page 4 of 29

Page 150



Part4H

2. OtherFinancialAccountabilities

Virements

2.1

2.2

2.3

Virement is the term used to transfer (or vire) budgetary provision from one
budget heading to another. Transfer of budgetary provision within the
same budget heading is not considered a virement however appropriate
evidence for this transfer must be maintained and completed in
accordance with the Scheme of Financial Delegation.

An inter-departmental virement is a transfer between budgets within
different departments. An intra-departmental virement is a transfer
between two budgets within the same department.

Virements must not be fragmented to circumvent the limits set out below.
Any transfers intended to have a permanent effect must form part of the
budget setting process and will be set out within the “Council Tax and

Budget Setting report”.

Approval

Limit

Heads of Service

Up to £100k for virements within
their budgets

Directors

Up to £500k for virements within
their division.

Executive Directors

Unlimited for virements within their
department.
Up to £500k between departments.

(Both Executive Directors to agree).

Cabinet with full support of Chief
Financial Officer. The  Chief
Financial Officer must have formal
agreement from both Executive
Directors.

Above £500k for inter-departmental
virements.

Assistant Director of Finance &
Deputy Section 151 Officer.

Unlimited non-controllable
virements*.

*Non-controllable virements are those which need to be undertaken for
accounting purposes (such as depreciation and recharges).

Treatment of year-end balances

2.4

Requests to carry forward revenue budgets at the end of the financial year must
be made by the budget holder as part of the closing of accounts process.
Requests are to be made via an official form and will be approved by the Chief
Financial Officer. Once approved the budget will be included in the annual

statement of accounts as an earmarked reserve. Requests need to be made

annually and any balances at the end of a financial year will not automatically

be carried forward.

Financial Regs Sept. 2016

Page 151

Page 5 of 29



2.5  Slippage of Capital schemes should be identified as soon as possible
during the financial year and reported to Cabinet as part of the financial
monitoring cabinet report. At the end of each financial year slippage will
be approved by the Chief Financial Officer and reported to Cabinet for
approval as part of the July financial review report.

Accounting policies

2.5 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for selecting the Council’s
accounting procedures, records and policies, including any changes to those
policies, and ensuring that they are applied accurately and consistently.

The Annual Statement of Accounts

2.6 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for ensuring that the annual
statement of accounts is prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom. The General Purposes &
Audit Committee is responsible for approving the annual statement of
accounts.

2.7  The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation and publication
of an Annual Governance Statement (AGS). This is the outcome from an
annual review of the Council’s risk management, internal control and
governance arrangements and is included with the Statement of Accounts.
The AGS is signed by the Chief Executive and the Leader and is approved
by the General Purposes & Audit Committee.

Trading Accounts

2.8  The Chief Financial Officer must advise on the establishment and operation
of trading accounts to ensure the accouting and control processes comply
with the Council’s, accounting requirements and that the results of any
trading operations are properly recorded and reported.

Part4H
Financial Regs Sept. 2016 Page 6 of 29

Page 152



3. Financial Planningand Budgeting

This section deals with the frameworks and processes by which the financial
situation of the Council is planned, controlled and reported. The Strategic Budget
process can be summarised as below:

3.1 The full Council is responsible for agreeing the Council’s policy framework
and budget, which will be proposed by the Cabinet at the council tax setting
meeting at the end of February.

In terms of financial planning, the key elements are:

. the medium term financial strategy;
. the budget;

. the capital strategy;

. the capital programme.

Policy Framework

3.2  The Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive) is responsible for proposing
the Corporate Plan to the Leader and Cabinet for consideration before its
submission to the full Council for approval. The Corporate Plan sets out
how the Council will achieve its organisational objectives and can be multi-
year.

Budget format

3.3  The general format of the budget will be proposed by the Leader orCabinet
on the advice of the Chief Financial Officer and approved by the full
Council. The draft budget should include allocation to different services
and projects, proposed taxation levels and contingency funds.

Budget preparation

3.4 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for ensuring that a revenue
budget and capital programme and budget, are prepared on an annual
basis. The full Council may amend the budget or ask the Leader and
Cabinet to reconsider it before approving it.

3.5  The Chief Financial Officer will issue details of the Council budget to
Executive Directors as soon as possible following approval by the full
Council. Each of the Executive Directors will be expected formally to
sign off their budget with the Chief Financial Officer before submission to
the Cabinet.

3.6  Itis the responsibility of Executive Directors to ensure that budget
estimates reflect agreed service plans and are submitted to the Chief
Financial Officer. The Chief Financial Officer will provide a detailed
Directorate budget book before 1st March relating to the next budget year.

Part4H
Financial Regs Sept. 2016 Page 7 of 29

Page 153



The total for the Directorate budget book must equal the budget agreed by
the Executive Directors.

Financial Management Process

3.7  The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the financial management
process enabling capital and revenue budgets to be monitored effectively.

3.8  The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for monitoring and controlling
expenditure against budget allocations and reports the actual position in
comparison to the budget, projected out-turn position and any proposed
action to be taken by departments to deal with any variances to:

. the Leader and Cabinet at least quarterly; and
. the Executive Leadership Team.

3.9  Executive Directors are responsible for:

. controlling income and expenditure within their area and monitoring
performance, taking account of financial information provided by the
Chief Financial Officer and / or their own systems;

. quarterly and monthly reporting for areas of high financial risk, in
accordance with the agreed corporate format and timetable, on
variances within their own areas;

. taking any action necessary to avoid exceeding their budget
allocation and alerting the Chief Financial Officer if this cannot be
achieved;

. Ensure that fees and charges are reviewed annually as a minimum

and changes reflected through the budget planning process
Maintenance of Balances and Reserves

3.10 Itis the responsibility of the Chief Financial Officer to advise the Leader and
Cabinet and / or the full Council on prudent levels of balances and reserves
to be maintained for the Council.Use of the contingency fund has to be agreed
by the Chief Financial Officer.

Capital Programme

3.11 Capital expenditure is expenditure which is used to purchase fixed assets or
to add value to existing fixed assets where those assets have a useful life
extending beyond a year (for example, expenditure used to purchase land and
buildings).

Full Council must agree the overall capital programme as part of the
Council Tax setting report each year. Quarterly financial monitoring of the
capital programme, including spend to date, projected spend for the
financial year and slippage will be presented to Cabinet as part of the

Part4H
Financial Regs Sept. 2016 Page 8 of 29

Page 154



financial monitoring report. Programme and Project managers along with
the relevant Executive Director must ensure that any variances to budget
are reported as soon as they are aware of them.

3.12  The Growth Board is the officer control mechanism by which all non IT and FM
capital expenditure is managed and assured. Details on its role are contained
in the Growth Board Terms of Reference.

3.13 ICT and FM capital expenditure is approved through their own officer boards.
All of these boards must be presented with a business case that details the
expenditure to be incurred and the timing of that expenditure to ensure
accurate financial management and monitoring.

Part4H
Financial Regs Sept. 2016 Page 9 of 29

Page 155



4. Petty Cash

4.1  Petty cash accounts may consist of either a cash float, or bank imprest
account used to reimburse expenditure.

4.2  The Chief Financial Officer will provide petty cash accounts as appropriate
to such services that need them. Such accounts will be maintained in the
manner and delegation prescribed by the Chief Financial Officer.

4.3  The responsible budget holder and account holder will:

. Make adequate arrangements for the safe custody of the account;

. Limit payments from the account to minor items of expenditure (i.e.
abnormal purchases with a value of less than £25) and to other such
items as the Chief Financial Officer may approve;

. Obtain a receipted voucher in relation to each purchase. Where
appropriate (and in the case of all purchases over £5 attracting VAT)
a proper VAT receipt must be obtained;

. Record transactions promptly;

. Reconcile and balance the account at least monthly; reconciliation
sheets to be signed by the responsible officer and the budget holder
and retained; and

. Provide an annual return in timely manner.

4.4  No income received on behalf of the Council may be paid into the petty
cash account but must be banked or paid to the Council.

45  Petty cash accounts must not be used for cashing personal cheques or
making personal loans. They must not be used for travel and subsistence
claims because of tax implications.

4.6  The Chief Financial Officer will, on the recommendation of the Head of
Governance, consider, and approve where appropriate, requests for
variations from the standard rules governing the operation of petty cash
accounts, based on specific needs and individual circumstances.

4.7  All officers administering petty cash accounts must ensure that they comply
with the petty cash procedures.

Part 4H
Financial Regs. Sept. 2016 Page 11 of 29

Page 156



5. Procurement Cards

5.1  Procurement cards (Pcards) are used to pay for small value transactions
which cannot be paid through the P2P system. The Procurement Card
Procedures govern the use and includes credit limits, card holders
responsibilities and monitoring.

5.2  Any exemptions to transactions and credit limits will require a delegated
decision under the Council’s Scheme of Financial Delegation to be agreed
by the Chief Financial Officer.

Part 4H
Financial Regs. Sept. 2016 Page 12 of 29

Page 157



6. Banking Arrangements and Cheques

6.1  All arrangements with the Council’'s bankers concerning the Council’s bank
accounts will be made through the Chief Financial Officer. The opening of
new bank accounts must be made by at least two authorised signatories
approved by the Chief Financial Officer.

6.2  All bank accounts should be reconciled with the Council’s cashbooks at least
once in each quarter (more frequently in specified cases).

6.3  Cheques and books will be ordered via the bank only on authority from
the Chief Financial Officer, who will make adequate arrangements for
their safe custody and use.

6.4  Cheques on the Council’'s accounts will bear the facsimile signature of or be
signed by the Chief Financial Officer or as delegated by the Chief Financial
Officer. Under no circumstances should an account be opened in the name of
an individual officer.

6.5 Where funds are held on behalf of third parties, Executive Directors will
arrange for their secure administration, approved by the Chief Financial
Officer and shall ensure that written records of all transactions are
maintained.

Part 4H
Financial Regs. Sept. 2016 Page 13 of 29

Page 158



7. RiskManagementand Insurance

7.1  The Council is committed to establishing an effective risk management
framework and culture to enable management at all levels to deliver their
objectives in the light of those risks. The Chief Financial Officer has
responsibility for establishing and delivering corporate risk management
arrangements across the Council.

7.2  The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for preparing the Council’s Risk
Management Policy Statement and for promoting it throughout the Councll,
including the Executive Leadership Team.

7.3  The General Purposes & Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Council’s Risk Management Policy statement and strategy and is
responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of risk management via a
quarterly review of the high level risks on the Council’s risk register.

7.4 At adepartmental level Executive Directors, Directors and Heads of
Service should ensure that risk assessments are conducted, followed by
appropriate work to manage the risks identified and to monitor current and
emerging risks.

7.5  The Chief Financial Officer shall effect and periodically review all insurance
cover in consultation with other Executive Directors and Directors who shall
provide such information as may be required.

7.6  Directors shall promptly notify the Chief Financial Officer of all new risks
and any alterations, terminations, loss or liabilities that affect existing
insurances. Where appropriate, Directors should also inform the Police as
soon as possible of any losses and inform the Head of Governance.

7.7 Directors shall consult the Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive in

respect of the terms of any indemnity which the Council is required to obtain
or provide.

Part 4H
Financial Regs. Sept. 2016 Page 14 of 29

Page 159



8. Internal Control

8.1 Internal control refers to the systems of controls devised by management to
help ensure the:

. Council's objectives are achieved in a manner that promotes
economical, efficient and effective use of resources;
. Council’s assets and interests are safeguarded.

8.2  The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for advising on effective
systems of internal control. These arrangements need to ensure
compliance with all applicable statutes and regulations, and other relevant
statements of best practice. They should ensure that public funds are
properly safeguarded and used economically, efficiently, and in
accordance with the statutory and other authorities that govern their use.

8.3  Executive Directors are responsible for establishing sound arrangements for
planning, appraising, authorising and controlling their operations in order to
achieve continuous improvement, economy, efficiency and effectiveness and
for achieving their financial performance targets.

8.4  Executive Directors are required to complete an annual assurance
statement for their departments.

Audit Requirements

8.5  The basic duties of the external auditor are governed by National Audit
Office in its Code of Practice.

8.6  The Council may, from time to time, be subject to audit, inspection or
investigation by external bodies such as HM Revenue & Customs, who have
statutory rights of access.

8.7  The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for arranging an adequate and
effective internal audit to examine the accounting records and systems of
internal control of the Council in accordance with proper practices.

8.8 Internal Audit has unrestricted access to all Council records and information
(both hard copy and digital), activities, property, other assets, officers,
Members and contractors it considers necessary to fulfil its responsibilities.
This may be where necessary on demand and without any prior notice.
Rights of access to other bodies funded by the Council should be set out in
the conditions of funding.

Part 4H
Financial Regs. Sept. 2016 Page 15 of 29

Page 160



8.9  Contracts let for the provision of services and works on behalf of the Council
will ensure that the Council’s internal and external auditors have right of
access to any of the contractor’s records associated with their contract with
the Council.

Preventing Fraud and Corruption
8.10 The Council is committed to:

+ taking fraud and other avoidable losses (arising from error or
mismanagement) seriously and tackle it on all fronts

« ensuring that all its funds are legitimately used and only those entitled
to services and benefits receive them

+ fight against fraud and avoidable loss as this is an important aspect of
its public accountability. The Council’'s approach to tackling fraud is set
out in its Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policy.

8.11 All officers and Members must ensure they comply with the Council’s Anti-
Fraud & Corruption Policy, the Anti-money Laundering Policy and the Anti-
Bribery Policy.

8.12  All officers have a duty to inform the Head of Governance or the Chief
Financial Officer of any incident or circumstance which gives rise to the
suspicion that fraud, misappropriation or financial irregularity may be or have
taking place, in connection with the activities of the Council. This may be
made directly or via the Council’s whistleblowing arrangements.

8.13 All officers and Members are responsible for referring any suspicions of
money laundering to the Head of Governance who is the Council’s
designated Money Laundering Reporting Officer or one of the deputies
under the policy.

Part 4H
Financial Regs. Sept. 2016 Page 16 of 29

Page 161



9. Assets

9.1  The Growth Board will make recommendations to the Chief Financial
Officer regarding the acquisition or disposal of any land or property up to
£500k in value.

9.2 Recommendations on acquisitions or disposals valued between £500k
and up to £5m may be approved by the Cabinet Member for Finance
and Treasury in consultation with the Leader of the Council, subject to
the intention to do so having been reported to a previous meeting of
Cabinet and in accordance with the Leader’s Scheme of Delegation.
Recommendations on acquisitions or disposals valued over £5m will be
reported for approval to Cabinet.

9.3 Asset disposals, between £5k and £500k and mainly non land and
buildings, must be authorised in accordance with the Council’s Scheme of
Financial Delegation and the Assets Procedure. The Head of SCC
Resources must be consulted prior to any assets being disposed of to
ensure that the best possible price is obtained and that the method of
disposal is appropriate. For items over £100k disposal should be by
competitive tender or public auction

9.4  Asset disposals up to £5k must be authorised in accordance with the
Council’s Scheme of Financial Delegation and be reasonable as regards
methodology, value obtained and recorded.

9.5  The total value of leasehold acquisitions or disposals includes the value of all
rental payments and service charges over the life of the lease. The total value
of lettings includes the value of all rental payments and service charges over
the life of the lease.

9.6  Officers must notify the Assistant Director of Finance or Accountancy
Manager before entering into any lease, to ensure that the correct
accounting treatment can be applied.

9.7  For further guidance on assets please consult the Council’s AssetsProcedure.

Part 4H
Financial Regs. Sept. 2016 Page 17 of 29

Page 162



10. ManagementofContracts

10.1 The Strategy Communities and Commissioning Division will maintain a
contracts register in the form of electronic copies of all contracts issued and
entered into by the Council.

10.2 Officers entering into contracts must ensure that upon completion of any
contract document, contract information is entered onto the Deeds and
Documents Register and the Council’s copy of the original contract is sent to
the Business Support Team for safe storage.

10.3 Variations to contracts to be written in an approved form. The relevant
Executive Director or a senior officer nominated by them or the contract
administrator appointed by the Council shall authorise variations and a copy
of the variation order be retained as a document appertaining to the contract.

10.4 In accordance with the Council’s Tenders and Contract Regulations, contracts
between £100k and £500k in value will require appropriate sign off of the
procurement strategy and award of contract by the Director of Strategy,
Communities and Commissioning on the recommendation of the Contracts
and Commissioning Board (CCB). Contracts in value above this and up to
£5m will require appropriate sign off of the procurement strategy and award of
contract by the nominated Cabinet Member on recommendation of CCB and
above £5m by Cabinet. Contracts over £100,000 in value must also be
completed on behalf of the Council by an authorised signatory in Legal
Services.

10.5 Where contracts are administered on behalf of the Council by persons other
than the Council’s own officers, the Executive Director concerned should
ensure that those persons comply with the Council’s Constitution, Financial
Regulations and Tenders and Contracts Regulations as if they were Officers
of the Council. The relevant Executive Director and the Chief Financial
Officer should be entitled to inspect all records and documents relating to
such contracts.

10.6 When entering into contracts, staff must not deviate from the Council’s

standard purchasing terms unless this is formally agreed by the Chief
Financial Officer.

Part 4H
Financial Regs. Sept. 2016 Page 18 of 29

Page 163



11. Treasury Management

11.1 The Council has adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA), Treasury Management in the Public Services:
Code of Practice (2011).

11.2 The full Council is responsible for approving the Treasury Management
Policy Statement setting out the matters detailed in CIPFA’s Code of Practice
for Treasury Management in the Public Services. The policy statement is
proposed to the full Council by the Cabinet. The Chief Financial Officer has
delegated responsibility for implementing and monitoring the Statement.

11.3  All money which the Council physically holds is controlled by the Officer
designated for the purposes of Section 151 of the Local Government Act
1972, for the Council’s purposes this is the Chief Financial Officer.

11.4 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for reporting to the Leader and
Cabinet a proposed treasury management strategy for the coming financial
year at or before the start of each financial year. Adoption of the strategy is by
full Council.

11.5 All Leader and Cabinet decisions on borrowing, investment or financing are
delegated to the Chief Financial Officer who is required to act in accordance
with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public
Sector 2011 Edition.

11.6 The Chief Financial Officer will review mid financial year the activities of
the treasury management operation

11.7 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for reporting to the General
Purposes and Audit Committee on the activities of the treasury
management operation and on the exercise of his delegated treasury
management powers. One such report will comprise an annual report on
treasury management for presentation by 30th September of the succeeding
financial year.

Part 4H
Financial Regs. Sept. 2016 Page 19 of 29

Page 164



12. SystemsandProcedures

12.1 Sound systems and procedures are essential to an effective framework of
accountability and control.

12.2 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the operation of the Council’s
accounting systems, the form of accounts and the supporting financial
records. Any changes made by Executive Directors to the existing financial
systems or the establishment of new systems must be approved by the Chief
Financial Officer.

However, Executive Directors are responsible for the proper operation of
financial processes in their own departments.

12.3 Any changes to agreed procedures by Executive Directors to meet theirown
specific service needs should be agreed with the Head of Finance for that
department.

12.4 Executive Directors must ensure that, where appropriate, computer and
other systems are registered in accordance with data protection legislation.
Executive Directors must ensure that members of staff are aware of their
responsibilities under Data Protection and Freedom of Information legislation
and the Computer Misuse Act.

12,5 The Council publishes data each month on all payments over £500 as part of
its Transparency Policy. For reasons of privacy, personal details are omitted;
these include payments to individuals including foster carers, children and
adult carers, staff salaries and pensions.

Part 4H
Financial Regs. Sept. 2016 Page 20 of 29

Page 165



13. Incomeand Expenditure

13.1

13.2

13.3

The Scheme of Financial Delegation identifies staff authorised to act in
respect of payments, income collection and placing orders, together with the
limits of their authority.

It is the responsibility of Executive Directors to ensure that the scheme of
financial delegation is operating effectively within their area and the
responsibility of all staff on the Scheme to ensure that they operate within
the limits defined by the Scheme.

Executive Directors are responsible for complying with the Procurement
Strategy, Tender and Contract Regulations and the Council’s Project and
Programme Management Framework, and should make use of common
supplies and services provided by other Departments of the Council. All staff
with payment responsibilities should ensure that they read and abide by the
Council’'s Payment Procedures.

Leasing Arrangements & PFI/PPP Funding Arrangements

13.4

Before entering into any finance or operating lease, or lease rental agreement,
or PFI/PPP arrangements, Executive Directors must seek agreement from
the Chief Financial Officer to ensure that the arrangement is financially
advantageous to the Council. Executive Directors should take appropriate
legal advice from the Council’s Solicitor and Finance team to ensure that they
meet the revised guidance for finance and operating leases under the
International Financial Reporting Standards Interpretations, IFRIC4 as this
may alter the treatment of the income.

Payments to Employees and Members

13.5

Part 4H

Financial Regs. Sept. 2016

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for all payments of salaries and
wages to all employees, including allowances, expenses and overtime,
and for payment of allowances to Members.

Page 166

Page 21 of 29



14. Taxation

14.1 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for advising Executive Directors,
the Leader and Cabinet and full Council in the light of guidance issued by
appropriate bodies and relevant legislation as it applies, on all taxation issues
that affect the Council.

14.2 Directors, Heads of Finance and Budget Holders are responsible for
ensuring that the appropriate controls and procedures are operated within the
department or relevant services area, in relation to taxation issues. Budget
Holders must ensure that they retain the necessary documentation to allow
the Council to reclaim VAT where applicable.

14.3 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for maintaining the Council’s tax

records, making all tax payments, receiving tax credits and submitting tax
returns by their due date as appropriate.

Part 4H
Financial Regs. Sept. 2016 Page 22 of 29

Page 167



15. External Collaboration

15.1

The Council provides a distinctive Leadership role for the community and
brings together the contributions of the various stakeholders. It must also act
to achieve the promotion or improvement of the economic, social or
environmental well-being of its area.

Partnerships

15.2

15.3

15.4

155

15.6

15.7

The Leader is responsible for approving delegations for executive functions,
including frameworks for partnerships. The Leader and Cabinet are the focus
for forming partnerships with other local public, private, voluntary and
community sector organisations to address local needs.

The Leader may delegate executive functions, including those relating to
partnerships, to Officers. These are set out in the scheme of delegation that
forms part of the Council’s constitution. Where functions are delegated, the
Leader remains accountable for them to the full Council.

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for promoting and
maintaining the same high standards of conduct with regard to financial
administration in partnerships that apply throughout the Council.

The Chief Financial Officer must ensure that the accounting arrangements
to be adopted relating to partnerships and joint ventures are proper. In
consultation with the Monitoring Officer, they must also consider the overall
corporate governance arrangements and legal issues when arranging
contracts with external bodies.

They must ensure that the risks have been fully appraised before agreements
are entered into with external bodies.

Executive Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate approvals
are obtained before any negotiations are commenced in relation to work with
external bodies.

External Funding

15.8

Part 4H

Financial Regs. Sept. 2016

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for ensuring that all funding
notified by external bodies is received and properly recorded in the Council’s
accounts.

Page 168

Page 23 of 29



Work for Third Parties

15.9 The Cabinet Member for the service holding the relevant budget, in
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance and Treasury, (or
the Leader where it is the Cabinet Member for Finance and Treasury)
is responsible for approving the contractual arrangements for any work

forthird parties or external bodies in relation to contracts funded from
capital or revenue budgets.

Part 4H

Financial Regs. Sept. 2016 Page 24 of 29

Page 169



16. Retention of Records

16.1 Records held locally in establishments shall be retained in accordance with
approved local information management schemes, which in turn must meet
the Council’s standards.

16.2 Executive Directors and Budget holders are responsible for ensuring that
financial records are carefully and systematically filed and retained for
inspection by the Chief Financial Officer or agencies (e.g. HM Revenue &
Customs) in line with the approved local management information schemes
that meets relevant statutory requirements.

16.3 The advised minimum periods for the retention of financial records are set out
in the Retention Guidelines for Local Authorities. The list is not exhaustive
and, where there is uncertainty, advice from the Information Manager must be
sought. Periods referred to for the majority of financial records are six
years plus the current financial year.

16.4 Financial records should be retained in accordance with the Financial Records
Retention Schedule.

16,5 The Chief Financial Officer and the Monitoring Officer shall have access to
documents as deemed necessary.

16.6  Further guidance on information management is available on the Council’s

Intranet to assist departments meet the requirements of the Data Protection
Act, the Freedom of Information Act and other statutory requirements.

Part 4H
Financial Regs. Sept. 2016 Page 25 of 29

Page 170



17. DevolutionofFinancialManagement

17.1  Financial management covers all financial accountabilities in relation to
the running of the Council, including the policy framework and budget.

The Full Council, Cabinet and Committees

17.2  The roles and responsibilities of these bodies are set out in the Articles Part
3 of the Constitution.

The Statutory Officers

17.3 The Head of Paid Service (the Chief Executive) is responsible for the
corporate and overall strategic management of the authority as a whole.
They must report to and provide information for the Cabinet, the full
Council, and other committees. The Head of the Paid Service is
responsible for establishing a framework for management direction, style
and standards and for monitoring the performance of the organisation. The
Head of Paid Service is also responsible, together with the Monitoring
Officer, for the system of record keeping in relation to all the full Council’s
decisions.

17.4  The Monitoring Officer is responsible for promoting and maintaining high
standards of financial conduct and for reporting any actual or potential
breaches of the law or maladministration to the full Council. The
Monitoring Officer is also responsible for maintaining an up to date
constitution.

17,5 The Monitoring Officer together with the Chief Financial Officer is
responsible for advising full Council about whether a decision is likely to
be considered contrary or not wholly in accordance with the budget or the
policy framework.

17.6  The Chief Financial Officer is the Council’s Section 151 Officer under the
Local Government Act 1972 and has statutory duties in relation to the
financial administration and stewardship of the Council. This statutory
responsibility cannot be overridden.

17.7  The Chief Financial Officer will nominate a properly qualified officer to act
as the Council’s Deputy Section 151 Officer in their absence.

17.8  To ensure that all financial implications of all reports are agreed and
approved with the responsible Heads of Finance prior to their submission
to the Cabinet, a Committee, the Executive Leadership Team or other
bodies within and external to the Council.

17.9  To ensure that all appropriate financial controls and systems are in
place where not specified above.

Part 4H
Financial Regs. Sept. 2016 Page 26 of 29

Page 171



17.10 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible, in relation to these regulations
for:

17.10.1 the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs;

17.10.2 setting and monitoring compliance with financial
management standards;

17.10.3 amendments to the Financial Regulations;

17.10.4 advising on the corporate financial position and on the key
financial control necessary to secure sound financial
management;

17.10.5 providing financial information;

17.10.6 approval of financial schemes of delegation;

17.10.7 preparing the revenue budget and capital programme;

17.10.8 Treasury management;

17.10.9 Internal Audit;

17.10.10  Anti-Fraud;

17.10.11 Risk Management; and

17.10.12 Insurance.

17.11 Section 114 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 requires the
Chief Financial Officer to report to the full Council, the Cabinet and the
External Auditor of the Council if one of its Officers:

17.11.1 has made, or is about to make, a decision which involves
incurring unlawful expenditure;

17.11.2 has taken, or is about to take, an unlawful action which has
resulted or would result in a loss or deficit to the Council;

17.11.3 is about to make an unlawful entry in the Council’s accounts.

17.12 Section 114 of the 1988 Act also requires:

17.12.1 the Chief Financial Officer to nominate a properly qualified
member of staff to deputise should he or she be unable to
perform the duties under Section 114 personally — this is the
Assistant Director of Finance;

17.12.2 the Council to provide the Chief Financial Officer with
sufficient staff, accommodation and other resources, including
legal advice where this is necessary, to carry out the duties
under Section 114.

Executive Directors

17.13 Executive Directors are responsible for ensuring that Cabinet and
Committee Members are advised of the financial implications of all
proposals and that the financial implications have been agreed by the Chief
Financial Officer.

17.14 It is the responsibility of Executive Directors to consult with the

Part 4H
Financial Regs. Sept. 2016 Page 27 of 29

Page 172



Chief Financial Officer and seek approval on any matter liable to
affect the Council’s finances materially, before any commitments are
incurred.

Assistant Director of Finance and Heads of Finance

17.15 The Assistant Director of Finance and Heads of Finance have
responsibility for the financial affairs of the departments including the
departmental financial management staff, processes and systems. They
must equally report financial issues to the appropriate Executive Director
and the Chief Financial Officer.

17.16 The Assistant Director of Finance and Heads of Finance should
report to the Chief Financial Officer and where appropriate to the
Executive Director:

17.16.1 any unlawful expenditure immediately it is realised that it is
about to take place or has taken place;

17.16.2 any area where a loss or deficiency is about to occur;

17.16.3 any occasions where the overall departmental budget is
projected to be overspent or where any individual budget is
projected to be overspent by more than £5,000.

17.16.4 any concerns as regards the slow or non-banking of cash
immediately;

17.16.5  any significant loss of stock or concerns immediately;

17.16.6 any other matter of financial significance.

Budget Holder

17.17 The Budget Holder is responsible for the financial affairs of the service
area. The responsibilities of the role include:

17.17.1 leading the production of revenue and capital programme
budgets for the service area ensuring all plans have
appropriate and necessary budget provision;

17.17.2  ensuring plans and realistic prudent profiled budgets exist
for the delivery of the Medium Term Financial Strategy and
to report year to date variances and forecast outturn adverse
or favourable variances immediately they exist;

17.17.3 ensuring that appropriate financial controls exist and are
maintained properly within the service area and report on any
deficiencies to the Head of Finance;

17.17.4  providing appropriate financial information to the Head of
Finance and their respective teams in a timely, accurate and
appropriate form and level of detail;

17.17.5 actively seeking additional income or savings opportunities,
including grant and new financing opportunities, and
reporting to the Head of Finance ;

17.17.6  ensuring that appropriate financial controls exist and are
applied within the service area and report on any deficiencies

Part 4H
Financial Regs. Sept. 2016 Page 28 of 29

Page 173



to the Head of Finance;

17.17.7  ensuring that the appropriate financial controls are in place to
ensure that all the Council’s cash is paid into its bank
accounts quickly and efficiently;

17.17.8  ensuring value for money is obtained for the whole
Council when undertaking any procurement activity

17.17.9 reconciling all cash received by the service area on a regular
basis (at least monthly);

17.17.10 ensuring all monies due to the council are recorded
accurately and recovered promptly;

17.17.11 ensuring that all accounts payable invoices are settled
within 30 days unless special terms have been agreed by
Chief Financial Officer; and

17.17.12 Budget monitoring via Hyperian in a timely manner (as per
the timetable issued by the Assistant Director of
Finance).

17.18 The Budget Holder should report to their Head of Finance:

17.18.1  any unlawful or inappropriate expenditure immediately it is
realised that is about to take place or has taken place;

17.18.2 any area where a loss or deficiency is about to occur;

17.18.3 any occasions where the overall service budget is projected
to be overspent or where any individual budget is projected to
be overspent by more than £5,000;

17.18.4  any concerns as regards the slow or non-banking of cash
immediately;

17.18.5 any significant loss of stock or concernsimmediately.

17.19 To confidentially inform the Chief Financial Officer, Internal Audit or
the Monitoring Officer of any fraudulent activity and other losses
through error and mismanagement by any party connected with or
employed by the Council.

17.20 To ensure that all financial implications of all reports are agreed and
approved with the Assistant Director of Finance prior to their
submission to the Cabinet, a Committee, Executive Leadership Team
or other bodies within and external to the Council.

17.21 To ensure that all appropriate financial controls and systems are in
place where not specified above.

Part 4H
Financial Regs. Sept. 2016 Page 29 of 29

Page 174



Agenda Item 15

CONSTITUTION OF THE
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON

Part 4. — Tenders and Contracts Regulations

These Regulations form part of the Constitution of the London Borough of Croydon
and were adopted by Full Council on 23 May 2016

CONTENTS PAGE
Background

Section 1 — General
1. The Legislation Governing these Rules

Glossary of Terms is provided at Appendix 1
Application of the Regulations
Officer Responsibilities
Director Responsibilities
6. Declaration of Interest
Section 2 — General Approach and Principles
7. Aggregation
8. Procedures and approval process for the Council’'s tendering and request for
guotation activities
9. Pre Tender Market Consultation
10. London Living Wage
11.The Social Value Act
12.Nominated or named sub-contractors and suppliers
13. Collaboration.
14.Use of e-sourcing (tendering)
15. Provision of services and works for other organisations
16. Tendering with or through other Public Bodies

Section 3 — Steps Prior to Procurement
17.General

18.Waivers

19. Preparation of a specification

20. Advertising and the number of Tenders

21. Standards and Evaluation Criteria

22.Standard Contract Clauses

23.Form of Contract for all Contracts

24. Invitations to Tender and Quotations/Tendering Instructions
25. Submission, receipt and opening of tenders/quotations
26.Post PQQ and Tender clarification

27.Contract Award

28. Contract pre-conditions and preliminaries

29. Extras and variations

abrown

Page 175



Section 4 — Contract Records
30. Tender records

31.Contract Register
32.Contract Storage

Section 5 - Contract Management
33. Managing Contracts

34.Risk Assessment & Contingency Planning
35. Contract Monitoring, Evaluation & Review

Background

These Tenders and Contracts Regulations are designed to ensure that all Contracts
covered by these Regulations will be cost effective, efficient and add value to life
experiences of the people and communities of Croydon, particularly Croydon’s
commitment to:

Demonstrate an understanding of local needs and priorities of local citizens and
communities;

Identify services that promote the social, emotional and physical wellbeing of
citizens;

Be cost effective, flexible and sustainable;

Promote responsible procurement in terms of addressing social, economic and
environmental issues, local sustainability and equality and diversity;

Address local economic regeneration by ensuring access to public contracts by
local business, particularly local small and medium enterprises and third sector
organisations.

These Regulations are also the best defence against allegations that a purchase has been
made unfairly, incorrectly or fraudulently. All those involved in the commissioning and
procurement process must comply with these Regulations.

The principles of Croydon’s commissioning regime are:

to achieve good value for money and deliver social value wherever possible;

the need for a competitive process;

non-discrimination, with fair and transparent procedures, and equal treatment of all
potential suppliers;

to encourage and ensure continuous improvement in the delivery of Council
services through the application of value for money principles;

to incorporate effective and best practice procedures;

to publish clear and understandable rules;

to minimise risks and to protect the Council’s interests and reputation;

to ensure controls and accountability, and always to act within the law

to maintain an auditable trail of all tender activity;

to be responsive to any weaknesses identified by internal/external audit;

to ensure that regulations reflect the current procurement environment;

to effectively support the delivery of direct services;

to have regulations with which everyone complies.

Part 4.1 Tenders and Contract Regs
Approved May 2016 20f31

Page 176



These Tenders and Contracts Regulations are designed to achieve these key
commissioning and procurement principles.

SECTION 1 - GENERAL
1. The Legislation Governing these Rules

These Regulations are made under Section 135 of the Local Government Act 1972 and
any subsequent qualifying or amending legislation. Under the Local Government Act 2000
the making and amending of these Regulations and the approval of any exceptions to
them are part of the Council’s non-executive functions.

These Regulations are part of the Council’'s Constitution and govern all relevant Contracts
(including agreements funded by way of grant given or received by the Council) with an
estimated total Contract value of £100,000 and over.

Any change to the EU Rules, national legislation and related PCR 2015, which affects
contracts under these Regulations, takes precedence.

These Regulations are subject to any general waivers agreed or provided for by these
Regulations e.g. Regulation 18

Anyone operating these Regulations must also follow the Council’s Financial Regulations.

These Regulations support the Public Services (Social Values) Act 2012 which allow for
specific non-commercial considerations to be taken into account in contracting decisions.

2. Glossary of Terms is provided at Appendix 1
3. Application of the Regulations

These Regulations apply if the Council intends to enter into a contract either as a
purchaser or as a provider with another entity and the estimated contract value (including
any optional periods of extension) of the contract is £100,000 or more.

If a Contract involves generating income for either the Council or a provider, the Officer
responsible must make an estimate of the notional value of the contract and use these
Regulations if the value is estimated to be £100,000 or more.

Contracts to which these Regulations apply include arrangements for:
a. The supply and/or purchase of products or goods
b. The undertaking of works and construction
c. The hire, rental or lease of goods or equipment
d. The provision or purchase of consultancy or other professional services
e. The delivery or purchase of services, including (but not limited to) those related
to land and property transactions and some financial and consultancy services

Contracts that are not covered by these Regulations include:

a. Contracts for the purchase of supplies, services or works, or for a Contract for
any other purpose (including ‘sales’), the value of which is less than £100,000.
Such contracts below this threshold need to comply with Part 4 PCR 2015 and

Part 4.1 Tenders and Contract Regs
Approved May 2016 3o0f31

Page 177



further advice on the application of these Regulations in relation to Low Value
Expenditure can be found in the relevant guidance document.

b. Contracts of employment which make an individual a direct employee of the
Authority

c. Fines

d. Payment of taxes

e. Situations where the Council carries out work by arrangement with the owner of
any property but in exercise of the Council’s statutory default powers;

f. Agreements directly associated with the acquisition, disposal, or transfer of
assets or land (to which the Financial Regulations shall apply)

g. Section 75 Agreement (s.75) — agreements made under section 75 of the
National Health Services Act 2006 between a local authority and an NHS body in
England.

4. Officer Responsibilities

Officers involved in the commissioning and procurement process must comply with these
Regulations, the Council’s Financial Regulations, the Council’s Staff Code of Conduct, the
Council's Gifts & Hospitality Procedures and Anti-Bribery policy, arrangements for
declaring conflicts of interest and Council's Scheme of Delegation and with all UK and
European Union binding legal requirements. Officers must ensure that any agents,
consultants and contractual partners acting on their behalf also comply through relevant
provision in the contract of engagement or other suitable means. Any arrangements, which
might, in the long term, prevent the effective operation of fair competition, must be
avoided.

Officers must:

a. Have proper regard for all necessary legal, financial and professional advice

b. Declare any personal financial interest in a contract. Corruption is a criminal

offence

Report any offers of bribes or inducements

Conduct any relevant value for money review

e. Ensure that there is adequate budget provision for the procurement being
undertaken

f. Check whether there is an existing contract that can be used before undergoing
a competitive process

g. not advertise a contracting opportunity or invite any tenders for a relevant
Contract unless approval of the procurement/commissioning strategy has been
given

h. Allow sufficient time for the submission of bids

i. Keep all supplier bids confidential

J.  Keep records of all dealings with suppliers

k. The project manager should ensure the safe keeping of contract documentation
in line with Croydon’s document retention policy.

I.  Obtain all required approvals at the correct point in the procurement process as
advised by these Regulations and complete a written contract (and sealed, as
required) before placing an order or raising a purchase order for any supplies,
services or works

m. Where appropriate, not award a contract until the standstill period is over

n. Enter all purchase order information onto the Oracle financial system

Part 4.1 Tenders and Contract Regs
Approved May 2016 40f 31

Page 178

o o



0. Based on the Scheme of Delegation, identify a senior manager who is the
designated contract owner responsible for the relationship with the supplier. In
addition a contract manager with responsibility for day to day issues and
ensuring the contract delivers as intended may also be appointed

p. Not divide up any contract in order to avoid any rules set out in the Contract
Standing Orders

g. Throughout, ensure that the procurement exercise delivers against the
Outcomes Framework as set out in the Counci's Commissioning Framework
and Community Strategy

When any employee either of the Council or of a service provider may be affected by any
transfer arrangement, Officers must ensure that the Transfer of Undertaking (Protection of
Employment - TUPE) issues are considered along with any issues related to employees’
membership of the LGPS, and Teachers Pension Scheme.

5. Director Responsibilities

a. ensuring that these Regulations are followed and enforced within their areas of
responsibility;

b. making staff aware of the requirements;

c. ensuring the Leader, nominated Cabinet Member, and the CCB are aware of
commissioning intentions and are advised in advance of the purpose of any
Contract that falls within these Regulations, including the commissioning and/or
tendering process to be followed to secure the Contract and of any anticipated
issues for the process, with particular regard to any service imp